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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
For a Medicaid pilot project for hyperbaric oxygenation treatment; to provide for a report to 
legislative management; to provide an appropriation; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1-12 

 
Vice Chairman Rohr: Opened the Hearing for HB 1359. 
 
Representative Dick Anderson, District 6:  Introduced HB 1359. (see attachment1) 
Explained brain injury and recently the results of treatment look much better now.   Section 
one of the bill, right now there is no insurance coverage for this program. They need a clinical 
study to get the data that would convince them to have insurance coverage.  I went to 
Medicaid but they didn’t want to go along with the pilot program since hyperbaric oxygen 
treatment wasn’t approved to treat concussions.   We need enough data for a trial to convince 
the insurance companies to go along with it.   In Line 16 of the bill in item one add the word 
“moderate” instead of “severe” at some time.  I also have some information about the 
appropriations that we might need to start this program.  Medicaid helped provide that. (See 
Attachment 2). (1:50-4:47)  
 
Representative M. Ruby:  How many people would benefit from this? 
 
Representative Anderson:  I really don’t have a specific number.  We were just going to 
treat a limited number to keep the cost down.  I would say that 10% of the population has 
had a head injury or concussion at one time or another.  The number is quite large. 
 
Representative M. Ruby:  If we are going to have to limit this is it going to be a first come 
first served or is it a severity issue? 
 
Representative Anderson:  We do have some criteria set up in the program, moderate to 
severe brain injury.  
 
6:00-9:00 Representative Austen Schauer District 13:  In support of HB 1359. (See 
Attachment 3)  
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9:20 Dr. Daphne Denham: (Refers and explains attachment 1) In support of HB 1359.  
Explained how hyperbaric oxygen treatment helps brain injury and the budget.  We are asking 
for enough money to treat 30 patients for approximately 40 treatments. (page 4 of attachment 
1) There where almost 1200 sever head brain injury patients that Medicaid contributed to 
and the expenses where over 9 million dollars a year, excluded hospital stay and the 
physicians visits. As a state we are spending about 7-8 thousand dollars per brain injury.  
The cost is major for patients on average it’s a loss of life time income of 50% and many it’s 
a life time loss of 100%. A major part of the study is not just to treat the patients but to show 
we will save Medicaid money. 
 
13:25-19:00 Next page is Safety (Page 6 of attachment 1) We follow hospital standards or 
better. Out of 463 thousand treatments in a 2year period of time there where minimal 
complications. Hyperbaric is very safe. It is an FDA approved treatment for 13 indications.  
With hyperbaric we can increase the oxygen from 500 to 1200% with pressure very similar 
to flying on an airplane.  
 
Representative Westlind: Have to ever seen any patients suffering from dementia see 
improvement?  
 
Dr. Daphne Denham: Yes, we have.  
 
Representative Dobervich: You said there are 13 conditions currently approved by the 
FDA, of those are traumatic Brain Injuries, concussions or depression in that list?  
 
Dr. Daphne Denham: They are not on the list, however one of the improved indications that 
we are working with is in the acute concussion scenario is what is called a crush injury, or a 
compartment syndrome.  If someone is remover, their arm, there are wraps around the 
muscles that the blood vessels and the nerves are under, when the muscles start to swell 
the wrap limits that swelling. So hyperbaric is FDA approved to help reduce that swelling and 
the inflammatory process that goes with it to protect skeletal muscle and nerves.  
 
Representative Porter: In the Medicare component of this they have a medical necessity in 
order to use that diagnoses code; can you explain that to us?  
 
Dr. Daphne Denham: The diagnoses code for Medicare is not approved for payment but I 
spoke to Medicare this past week and to get them to reopen their coverage determination 
they require enough data on 65-year-old plus patients otherwise they might do a specific 
limited reexamination of their policy but they need data. That’s why this pilot project through 
North Dakota would be invaluable throughout the United States.  
 
Representative Porter: Are there any insurance companies that currently pay for your 
services?  
 
Dr. Daphne Denham: FDA indications yes, and we are working with an insurance company 
for the acute concussions following the work we have already been doing with the Dakota 
medical foundation. An acute concussion being defined as a 10 days or less from injury.  
24:30 Representative Porter: The way the bill is written we are looking at funding a pilot 
project, if the department isn’t able to get the waiver necessary from the federal government 
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to do it, that would really limit it down to the 335 thousand dollars of state funding.  Looking 
at this as a clinical study to further prove the benefits and the patient outcomes but I don’t 
see that written into the pilot project the way it is written right now. 
 
Dr. Daphne Denham: We have a pilot written up as far as all the protocols as far as 
publishing in a medical journal if we don’t have a placebo control medical journal wont except 
it. It’s unethical to waste that opportunity, that time and the machine and not benefit patients. 
We want to show that not only will it benefit these patients but also the state of North Dakota.   
 
Representative Porter: Is that written in the way this is set up?  
 
Dr. Daphne Denham: That’s the intention.  
 
 28:15 Vice Chairman Rohr: You don’t think that to be eligible for the federal waiver that 
you have to look at this as a clinical trial? The inclusion criteria you have here, is there going 
to be any age limit?  
 
Dr. Daphne Denham: That is correct, and the age limits would be up to you as far as 
Medicaid providers.   
  
29:30 Bruce Murry, Registered Lobbyist: I am here as a volunteer for Dr. Biberdorf who 
was unable to attend. (see attachment 4)  
 
30:10 Lonnie Wangen, ND Vets Affairs Commissioner: In my many roles I have learned 
a lot about hyperbaric, one of the most interesting was a couple of Vietnam vets that went 
through this and after a week their feet hurt and I thought that was terrible. They said no we 
haven’t felt our feet in years because of diabetes. There was a medical doctor that was in 
Afghanistan and obtained a traumatic brain injury, he came back, his wife had to care for 
him, he lost his medical license, he ended up in Florida and start hyperbaric therapy. When 
I met him he has his license back and was treating patients again and it was a miracle for 
him it really changed his life.     
 
32:00-41:00 Read testimony of Dr. Edward F. Fogarty: (see attachment 5)  
 
Vice Chairman Rohr: Questions? Further testimony?  
 
41:25-45:10 Hannah Anderson from Leads ND (see attachment 6)  

 
45:25-52:50 Mike Callahan, Valley City:  I am an athletic trainer and have been in sports 
medicine for 25 years my wife and I lost our son January 3rd 2018.  Dr. Daphne Denham and 
I met 6 months to late. We had taken our son to many neurologist, Nero surgeons, Rochester 
Minnesota twice; that’s when they told us he had 15 concussions. My son was left in despair, 
they tried treating the symptoms, it did not work. I don’t need placebo or anything else, when 
I hear from parents that say I can’t believe my daughter/son is back.  We spent thousands 
and thousands of dollars with no answers, after our experience I have sent many kids to Dr. 
Daphne Denham. I’ve sent teachers, athletes, this isn’t about getting back to athletics for me 
it’s about getting people back to life. They used to tell us if you have a concussion you should 
go rest for a week, we wouldn’t do that for any other injury, it just doesn’t make sense. I had 



House Human Services Committee  
HB 1359 
January 16, 2019 
Page 4  
   

an athlete this year get a concussion, went through the normal protocol of the impact 
program, we have a base line and then there are follow up and return to play protocols. Kid 
returns to play and received a second concussion he went down to Dr. Daphne Denham, I 
am not sure how many treatments he had but after 3 treatments his parents said they couldn’t 
believe the improvements. I asked if I could retest him after all his treatments, his numbers 
where higher than any base line I had or any return to play post injury test I did. They were 
much higher.  
 
53:15-55:00 Lisa Anderson, Leads North Dakota:  Hannah’s Mom (see attachment 7)  
 
55:15-59:45 Lynne Ostrem from Rugby, ND (see attachment 8)  
 
1:00:00-1:03:30 Dianna Alcon, Minot, ND: March 18th 2018 my daughter had a stroke, we 
were told she would not survive. We spent a month at Trinity hospital and two months in 
Denver at the rehab hospital there. I had to stay with her night and day because her memory 
so bad she would get frightened if I left the room. After many months of therapy, speech, OT 
and PT and home health care we finally started HBOT therapy on January 9th with Dr. 
Daphne Denham. After her first treatment she told me I didn’t have to come back because 
she wasn’t afraid anymore, after third treatment she was able to tell me who the president is, 
what month it was and what season it was. These are things that were asked everyday while 
we were in Denver. The week before we started a neurologist asked her these questions and 
she wasn’t able to answer them. After every treatment my husband and I notice 
improvements. Please pass this bill. 
 
1:03:45- 1:05:00Jim Nelson, Spokesman for the ND Vets Legislative Council (see 
attachment 9) Just two things I would like to note about my testimony; (page 3 of attachment 
9) this is testimony of veteran that underwent a pilot program by Dr. Harch. There are also 
tendencies and after a few treatments 10 of those people exhibited no signs of suicidal 
tendencies.  VA calls it “off label” they allow it but they don’t pay for it so perhaps this study 
could get that changed.  
 
Vice Chairman Rohr: Any other testimony? Any Opposed?  
 
1:05:50-1:10:05 Tammy Zachmeier, Utilization Review Administrator for the Medical 
Services Division in the Department of Human Services: (see attachment 10)  
 
Representative Schneider: After hearing all this testimony, are you willing to work with 
medical community to break down barriers to be able to provide this treatment and promote 
some leadership in the state and nation?  
 
Tammy Zachmeier: As health care providers and a nurse myself that is certainly where my 
heart is, I truly appreciate all of the information we have received today. From a federal stand 
point, I do not know if federal funds are going to be able to be used for this project. It is 
important for the committee to understand that, as a department we will gladly help out 
Representative Anderson and any of these other people in any way we can if the project was 
to go forward.  
Representative Ruby: Do you have an idea of the cost to have this research outsourced? 
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Tammy Zachmeier: It would depend on the scope of the study. I believe it would be a limited 
number of people in the initial study, that would help keep the cost under control.  
 
Vice Chairman Rohr: Dr. Daphne Denham has 30 patients planned in her testimony and 
you have on the fiscal note 500.  
 
Tammy Zachmeier: We have determined that based on the number of brain injuries in the 
past 5 years in North Dakota. There would be 2500 eligible population and we took only 20% 
and that is 500. If we are legislated to cover this, it’s always been Medicaid history that we 
would cover all individuals weather they are in this study or not.  
 
Vice Chairman Rohr: Any further questions? Any neutral testimony? We will close this 
hearing.   
 
Attachments 11-12 where passed out but not addressed.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
For Medicaid pilot project for hyperbaric oxygenation treatment to provide a report to 
legislative management, appropriation and to declare an Emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Weisz:  Opened HB 1359. 
 
Rep. Anderson:  Basically the new amendment replaces just about the whole bill 
 because I had a lot of difficulty going through Medicaid Services.  I thought visiting 
with Dr. Denham and Jennifer Clark, we decided to put it through the Department of 
Health, and running a pilot program through there.  There was a beginning date and 
an ending date.  We couldn’t decide where we wanted the money to go to so we put 
parameters in there to hopefully funnel the money to where we thought it would do 
the best job.  I believe Dr. Denham and her treatment center in Fargo, she’s figured 
out the protocol that she has the best results for. That’s why the language is the 
way it is and using that RightEye improvement study seems to show a lot of beneficial 
results.  She will make periodic reports to the budget section and I am not sure what 
the time frame should be for that.  Maybe that should be defined a little better. 
The whole purpose of this study is to get data that the insurance companies need 
To make a decision whether to provide coverage for HBO. (Attachment 1) 
 
Vice Chairman Rohr:  Who would be the nonprofit entity on Number 2?  
 
Rep. Anderson:  I would say the Dakota Medical that Dr. Kramer runs. 
 
Chairman Weisz:  Who establishes protocol?  The Department of Health? 
 
Rep. Anderson:  I would think that the RightEye is basing the protocol. 
 
Rep. Devlin:  On the original bill, before the hog house arrived, there was an 
emergency clause.  
 
Rep. Anderson:  I thought about that if it goes through appropriations July 1st. 
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I know Blue Cross Blue Shield are interested in pursuing this but they are not 
there yet. I am just trying to get the data because I believe what she is doing  
works well.  It is initially going to save a lot of money and provide some quality 
of life improvements for a lot of different people. 
 
Rep. Porter:  I would just like to make a blanket suggestion to Rep. Anderson 
on this amendment.  On the top, I would overstrike budget section and put 
legislative management so it goes to one of the interim committees on health. 
The budget section isn’t really going to care how the treatment protocols are 
working and how things are going.  I would definitely make legislative management 
push this off to one of the health care committees.  Sub one I would cross off 
general fund and put strategic investment fund.  The general fund is broke.  I  
would get rid of recognized and make that realized. 
 
Rep. Anderson:  I would agree with that. I appreciate Rep. Porter’s comments. 
 
Chairman Weisz:  Are there any other changes? 
 
Rep Anderson:  I move the recommendations by Rep. Porter.  Changing budget 
section to legislative management both in section one and paragraph 3 changing 
 paragraph one to strategic investment funds and paragraph 3 changing the word 
recognized to realize. 
 
Chairman Weisz:  Everyone understand the amendment? 
 
Rep. Schneider:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Voice vote carried.   
 
Chairman Weisz:  We have an amended bill in front of this committee. 
 
Vice Chairman Rohr:  I move a Do Pass as amended on HB 1359 and rereferred 
to appropriation. 
 
Rep. Skroch:  Seconded the motion to Do Pass as amended on HB 1359. 
 
Rep. Anderson will be the Carrier. 
 
Roll Call Vote  Yes 12  No 1 Absent 1 
 
HB 1359 passed as amended and rereferred to appropriations. 
 
Hearing closed.  
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DP d/�01 
Adopted by the Human Services Committee 

February 4, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1359 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
hyperbaric oxygen therapy pilot program; to provide an appropriation; and to provide 
for a report to the legislative management. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION - HYPERBARIC OXYGEN THERAPY PILOT 
PROGRAM - REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT. 

1. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the strategic investment and 
improvements fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the 
sum of $335,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the state 
department of health for the purpose of contracting with a third party to 
implement a hyperbaric oxygen therapy pilot program, for the biennium 
beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2. The department shall contract with a local nonprofit entity with experience 
implementing studies using hyperbaric oxygen for traumatic brain injuries 
to conduct a pilot program for treatment of moderate to severely 
brain-injured North Dakotans using an established protocol of hyperbaric 
oxygen therapy provided by a private entity with experience in treating 
traumatic brain injury using medical-grade hyperbaric chambers 
pressurized with one hundred percent oxygen. The goals of the study 
include demonstrating improvement in brain-eye function using RightEye, 
significant improvement in quality of life of injured patients, significant 
improvement in cognitive abilities of injured patients, and financial savings 
and increased revenues for the state, including possible savings for 
medical assistance and workers' compensation and a positive impact on 
income tax revenues. The pilot program design must be established in 
consultation with a third-party physician. 

3. During the 2019-21 biennium, the department shall make periodic reports 
to the legislative management on the status of the pilot program and 
whether the goals are being realized." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0646.02002 
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Committee 
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Recommendation: 0 Adopt Amendment 

Other Actions: 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Rep. Anderson Seconded By Rep. Schneider 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Robin Weisz - Chairman Gretchen Dobervich 
Karen M. Rohr - Vice Chairman Mary Schneider 
Dick Anderson 
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Bill Devlin 
Clayton Fegley 
Dwight Kiefert 
Todd Porter 
Matthew Ruby 
Bill Tveit 
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If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Voice Vote - Motion carried to adopt amendment 
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Kathy Skroch X 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 5, 2019 8:01AM 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_22_010 
Carrier: D. Anderson 

Insert LC: 19.0646.02002 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1359: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (12 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 
1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1359 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
hyperbaric oxygen therapy pilot program; to provide an appropriation; and to provide 
for a report to the legislative management. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION - HYPERBARIC OXYGEN THERAPY 
PILOT PROGRAM - REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT. 

1. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the strategic investment and 
improvements fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the 
sum of $335,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the 
state department of health for the purpose of contracting with a third 
party to implement a hyperbaric oxygen therapy pilot program, for the 
biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2. The department shall contract with a local nonprofit entity with 
experience implementing studies using hyperbaric oxygen for traumatic 
brain injuries to conduct a pilot program for treatment of moderate to 
severely brain-injured North Dakotans using an established protocol of 
hyperbaric oxygen therapy provided by a private entity with experience in 
treating traumatic brain injury using medical-grade hyperbaric chambers 
pressurized with one hundred percent oxygen. The goals of the study 
include demonstrating improvement in brain-eye function using RightEye, 
significant improvement in quality of life of injured patients, significant 
improvement in cognitive abilities of injured patients, and financial 
savings and increased revenues for the state, including possible savings 
for medical assistance and workers' compensation and a positive impact 
on income tax revenues. The pilot program design must be established in 
consultation with a third-party physician. 

3. During the 2019-21 biennium, the department shall make periodic reports 
to the legislative management on the status of the pilot program and 
whether the goals are being realized." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

HB 1359 
2/14/2019 

32760 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Risa Bergquist by Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide for a hyperbaric oxygen therapy pilot program; to provide an 
appropriation; and to provide for a report to the legislative management.  
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Delzer: Opened hearing. There is no sunset on it.  
 
Representative Weisz: The 335,000 is for the patients in this 2-year study and the average 
cost for the full treatment is 10 thousand dollars. So the point of this is to get enough data so 
the insurances could have enough information so that they would cover it, and also that we 
could ask the department for a waiver to include that under Medicaid expansion. Currently it 
is not an acceptable treatment, and there is no reimbursement.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Does it need to be 30 patients? 
 
Representative Weisz: We are not sure how many people we will need, but the rules at 
Sanford would be that much so that they will cover this. This is largely for traumatic brain 
injuries, but it’s not an accepted practice yet. If it’ll work like they say it will, this program 
would save the state a lot of money. 
 
4:40 Chairman Delzer: Adam, it says that it is a pilot program and there is some reporting, 
do we need to put a sunset on this as well? 
 
Adam Cronquist, Legislative Council: The money would only be available for this 
biennium. 
 
Chairman Delzer: We give some transfer authority to the department of human services, 
would they then be able to transfer this money anywhere else? 
 
Adam: It would be clear from this that the intent would be that it would be used for this 
program. It may result in an audit finding.  
 
Chairman Delzer: We do give them authority to transfer some things.  
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Representative Kreidt: Are there facilities in the state that can provide this therapy?  
 
Representative Weisz Yes there is one in Fargo. 
 
Representative Kreidt: Is that the only one? 
 
Representative Weisz: As far as I know, that is the only one. We also have support from 
the doctor in UND school of medicine, but I don’t believe he does it himself.  
 
Representative Kreidt: Insurance companies don’t recognize this as a legitimate 
procedure? 
 
Representative Weisz: Correct.  
 
Representative Meier: Would the individual in Fargo have proven results? 
 
Representative Weisz: It would depend on the definition of improvement. I do have a lot of 
testimony in favor of this procedure.  
 
Representative Meier: How long has this doctor been in Fargo? 
 
Representative Weisz: I don’t know that answer.  
 
Representative Beadle: The doctor commutes between Fargo and Chicago. There has 
been some evidence coming out of there too.  
 
Representative Schobinger: Are we doing something that is already out there? 
 
Chairman Delzer: I think that what they are trying to do is quantify the information that is out 
there, and the Department of human services would give a report on it.  
 
Representative Weisz: There’s been a number of people that have had this treatment and 
it’s been a positive treatment for them. However, it isn’t currently a recognized treatment so 
there is no quantified research to go along with it.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Is there anything in the language that restricts it to instate patients?  
 
Representative Weisz: No, I would think that is probably assume.  
 
Chairman Delzer: There may be some rules for that within the department.  
 
No further questions, meeting closed.  
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      Committee Clerk: Risa Bergquist by Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
Adopting amendments.  
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Delzer: Bring HB 1359 back up, I have heard a lot of good things about this. I’m 
not sure about the money side however. Some of the information that I got was that with the 
traumatic brain injury, some of your vessels close up and they don’t get the oxygen they 
need. So this treatment would allow the vessels to get that needed oxygen.  
 
Representative Beadle: One of the things that they can measure is eye movement, and 
they track how this therapy can impact eye function.  
 
Representative Kempenich: I’ll move a do pass. 
 
 Representative Schatz: Second. I have a son with a traumatic brain injury and I really think 
that we need to support this bill. This bill would have potential to help many different people, 
not just those with traumatic brain injuries.   
 
Chairman Delzer: I will support the bill as well. How are they going to collect the information?  
 
Representative Beadle: When talking to Dr. Denim, I know one of the things they are doing 
is trying to get a clinical reporting and coverage for it.  
 
Chairman Delzer: I would hope and expect that this reporting would be similar to the 
department’s.  
 
Representative Monson: If the department has to make the report then it is up to them to 
get the data.  
 
Chairman Delzer: If everyone is honest and on the record about gathering the data and 
information and making the report, then I think that is probably okay.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: had we had this bill in our section with the health department, I 
think that language could have been changed. We also wouldn’t have funded it with the 
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strategic investment and improvements fund (SIFF) funding, instead it would be with the 
tobacco prevention funding because there are adequate funds in there and they will run out.  
 
Chairman Delzer: I don’t think that there would be a difference to anyone if we change that 
funding source. We already have one motion out, but would they withdraw it?   
 
Representative Kempenich:  I’ll withdraw my motion. 
 
 Representative Schatz:  I will also withdraw the second.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: I make a motion to amend by changing the fund that supports 
this from SIFF funds to the tobacco prevention and control fund.  
 
 Representative Meier: Second.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: Should we add a reporting mechanism?   
 
Chairman Delzer: Well if everyone thinks it’s ok how it is right now; I can live with that. The 
department has to give periodic reports, so they must also gather the information.  
 
Voice vote. Motion carries.  
 
Representative Kempenich: Motion for a do pass as amended  
 
Representative Monson: Second. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 20 Yes, 0 No, 1 Absent.  
 
Motion carries.  
 
Floor assignment: Representative D. Anderson 
 
Meeting closed.  
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the House Appropriations Committee 

February 14, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1359 

Page 1, line 6, remove "strategic investment and" 

Page 1, line 7, replace "improvements" with "tobacco prevention and control trust" 

Renumber accordingly 
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For Medicaid pilot project for hyperbaric oxygenation treatment: to provide a report to 
Legislative management, appropriation and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments # 1-6 

 
Madam Chair Lee opens the hearing on HB 1359. 
 
(00:25-03:20) Representative Dick Anderson, District 6 introduces HB 1359 and gives 
a brief overview.  
 
(02:05) Representative Anderson: Right now I think human services spends about 10 
million dollars a year on treating brain injuries and the way I am looking at this; it will reduce 
that quite a bit. There is just one other thing I would like to mention, originally I had an 
emergency clause on it and then when I had to re-write it I forgot to put the emergency clause 
back on. If you guys could put that on I would appreciate it because Dr. Denham has people 
who are waiting to be treated and the sooner, we get started the better data we will get. 
 
(3:20) Senator Anderson: Tell me why this treatment isn’t being run by a regular clinical trial 
rather than us funding it and doing it in the state of North Dakota. 
 
Representative Anderson: The FDA does not approve of this, and they wanted to have a 
placebo in the test and how do you put a placebo in a hyperbaric treatment. I think Dr. 
Denham could answer that better than I can. We have also found out that in Europe it has 
worked for MS (multiple sclerosis) and it does work for dementia as well.   
 
Senator Anderson: My concern is here; we have a lot of anecdotal stories. Typically, in 
medicine we like to see things proven and reproducible before we start paying for them and 
that is why the FDA hasn’t approved it yet. We are dealing with the marijuana bills in this 
committee and of course there are hundreds of anecdotal stories about how it helps and 
there are some clinical trials that proves that certain constituent chemicals of the marijuana 
plant are good for certain things but there are a lot of other hoaxes that are perpetrating 
people because we are pretending things are good for aliments that they are really not.    
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Representative Anderson: You will hear testimony today from people and I hope they can 
convince you. I think sometimes the FDA and the federal government are a little slow on 
reacting to things and I think we have a chance here that is going to be unique for the rest of 
the country to follow and I think we are going improve a lot of people’s lives and that is why 
it is important. This bill is kind of under the radar and maybe that is the way it should be until 
we get it passed but I’m sure after you hear all the testimony, you will be convinced like I 
was.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Have you had any inputs from the insurance companies? 
 
Representative Anderson: Yes, I have and I think Dr. Denham are working with the 
insurance company. We are making strides right now because of the evidence that we are 
seeing I think they are seeing also. One of the insurance companies did tour the clinic so I 
think they have their eyes open somewhat too.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The 335,000 that is coming from the tobacco fund, is that taking any 
funding away from any other program that is currently funded through that source? 
 
Representative Anderson: I probably couldn’t tell you, that would be an appropriations 
question. You know appropriations works, unless you are there all the time you just don’t 
know.  
 
Senator Clemens: Is this the clinic in Fargo that you are talking about? 
 
Representative Anderson: Yes, it is. I think the clinical in Fargo is using medical grade 
equipment and I think Dr. Denham has found a protocol that works because hyperbaric 
oxygen treatment is not new but somehow she has figured it out to make it work and has 
spent a lot of time doing that.  
 
Senator Clemens: I think the hospital in Jamestown are doing some of this too correct? 
 
Representative Anderson: I think they are doing some of it but I think they don’t have the 
medical grade chambers like there are in Fargo. I believe the clinic in Fargo is probably the 
only area in the state where you can do the medical grade equipment if I am right.  
 
Senator Clemens: The location in Fargo, I see the bill talks about non-profits so this is 
obviously a non-profit? 
 
Representative Anderson: We set the language up the way we did to run it through the 
Dakota Medical foundation. We want a third party looking at the results and tried to make the 
data so that the insurance companies will accept it and that is what we are up to here.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Can you elaborate a little bit on Dakota Medical Foundations 
involvement? 
 
Representative Anderson: No, not really.  
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Madam Chair Lee: I just wondered if they are viewing it as one of the studies they would get 
involved with or are they just the fiscal agent.  
Representative Anderson: I think basically they are going to be a fiscal agent.  
 
Senator Hogan: As a pilot project, do you see this as meeting all the standards for research 
and evidence that the FDA would need so that you could it verifiable because those are very 
strict protocols.  
 
Representative Anderson: I’m not sure about that, if I can get the insurance companies to 
accept it, that is what I am up to. I am not that familiar with the FDA I just know that sometimes 
the federal government drags their feet on a lot of things.  
 
Senator Hogan: But they have standards for evidence on research and I just wondered if 
that was your expectation.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The FDA’s protocol for drugs for example, first it is tested in the lab, the 
next level the drug is tested on healthy people, and the third level is it is tested on people 
with the condition which it is supposed to treat. It isn’t supposed to be released to the rest of 
us until it is demonstrated to be safe and effective. There really is a reason for the protocol 
that they make sure what comes to us is safe and effective and worthy of use so bypassing 
some of that could be an inappropriate risk.  
 
Representative Anderson: Your sitting in the hyperbaric oxygen chamber, everyone needs 
oxygen. It is not pharmaceutical, there are no surgeries involved, and from what I see the 
results are fantastic. The risk to me is very low, I have a lot of confidence in Dr. Denham. I 
think if you can get someone that was at a level here after a brain injury and get them back 
up to here, what a wonderful thing that would be for a lot of people.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: Did this legislation move any quicker because of the Trump 
administration signing off on the legislation for right to try now? 
 
Representative Anderson: I really can’t answer that. I see a chance to get my foot in the 
door and that is what I am trying to do here. If the data shows that it works than it will be a 
wonderful difference for a lot of people.  
 
(13:28-15:35) Representative Austen Schauer, District 13. Testifying in support of HB 
1359. Please see Attachment #1 for written testimony.  
 
Representative Schauer: If you have friends whose children have suffered a concussion, it 
is a horrible situation and you don’t know what to do and then the affects linger. Fargo has 
an opportunity for you to take a look at. Yes, the results have not been determined long-term 
but on short-term, they are there.  
 
Senator Hogan: Did you look at the BIRI (Brain Injury Research Institute) institute and did 
they have any input on this treatment? 
 
Representative Schauer: I did not look that deeply.  
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Senator Hogan: Or whether they confirm that this is a viable treatment.  
 
Representative Schauer: I did not look at that specifically no.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Have you or Representative Anderson had any contact with Rebecca 
Quinn who runs the Brain Injury Network? 
 
Representative Schauer: I have not.  
 
Representative Anderson: I am on the Brain Advisory Council and Dr. David Biberdorf is 
the one who helped me understand what this clinic was all about.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: So what has Rebecca Quinn had to say about this? 
 
Representative Anderson: She hasn’t said a lot; we did have people there in the council 
who agreed that this was a bill worth pursuing so that is what it is.  
 
(18:30-00:00) Dr. Daphne Denham, testifying in support to HB 1359. Testimony is as 
follows: Thank you for the opportunity to discuss this bill. If I may just clarify somethings, 
Jamestown does have hospital grade chambers and are affiliated with the hospital. Typically, 
it is a hospital rule not to use hyperbaric chambers for non-FDA approved indications. That 
is why the study would be very difficult to be done in a hospital affiliated hyperbaric centers. 
At one-time cerebral edema or brain swelling was an FDA approved indication for the use of 
hyperbaric treatment. There was an article in 2006 it is called the Polemics of Hyperbaric 
Medicine, it was thought to be because of the cost in the hospital at that time, the cost of a 
treatment was about 2,000 dollars and since then Medicare has brought the cost of treatment 
down for hospitals and the cost of treatment up for outpatient centers so it is becoming more 
equivocal for providing FDA approved indications in a private center versus a hospital as far 
as Medicare and insurance reimbursements. 
 
(20:30) Senator K. Roers: So the brain edema used to be FDA approved indication and it 
no longer is and you believe the reason it no longer is was because the cost ratio was off? 
 
Dr. Denham: The cost and politics. The gist of the article written by Dr. Richard Neubauer 
who many felt to be the grandfather of hyperbaric for the brain he felt, was a very political 
move so I will share that article with you but, there are 13 indications for hyperbaric medicine 
currently and one of those indications is a compartment syndrome or a crush injury, and by 
definition that is nerve damage currently by definition to an arm or a leg after a crush, the 
muscle swells so much that the fascia limits it so the nerves are damaged. If you re-examine 
that definition and replace skull for fascia, a concussion or any traumatic brain injury fits that 
very same definition. We are actively working with a private insurance company; this bill is 
for moderate to severe brain injuries. What I have been doing for the past three and a half 
years aggressively is treating acute concussions meaning patients who may or may not have 
required an ER visit are discharged from the ER and are not thought to have a severe brain 
injury and in your packet for the pilot program (please see Attachment #2) we discuss that 
for this bill they will be at one point classified by a physician in their hospital records 
somewhere as a moderate to severe brain injury. The work that I have done in Fargo with 
the help of the Dakota Medical Foundation, they set up the Concussion Care Initiative, a 
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private donor put money into that. Patients anywhere in North Dakota and western Minnesota 
could come with a concussion, again a different brain injury from what we are talking about, 
could come and were treated at no charge to the patient we billed the Dakota Medical 
Foundation Medicare rates for that treatment so that Medicare gets the cheapest treatment 
rate. In that data we have found that an average of only three treatments is needed to 
completely resolve symptoms and that repair is sustainable and by coming to Fargo we have 
objective evidence with the Right Eye tool that is now FDA approved as a concussion 
diagnostic tool. I say all of that to say, we are making an enormous leap for acute concussions 
and private insurance are extremely interested and now doing a pilot program, I owe them a 
little bit more data by the end of this week for them to hear by the end of this month and we 
will know if they are going to take on the pilot for the acute concussions. What we are asking 
now because moderate and severe brain injuries are much more difficult to treat, take more 
treatment, and would be more funding than I could do myself. Prior to coming to Fargo I 
treated acute concussions at no charge to the patient in my clinic in Northbrook, but the 
reason to come to Fargo was to work with Dr. Biberdorf and the Right Eye to have objective 
evidence because we don’t have concussion diagnostic tool until the Right Eye was just 
approved. By asking for this money for the moderate to severe, doing the same type of 
research and during my seven years of surgical residency I did two years of research in the 
lab. I am used to doing research that was under a university, we are expecting to get IRB 
(Institutional Review Boards) approval through the University of North Dakota and patients 
will be evaluated objectively outside of the clinic to show the improvement for this bill. We 
should be doing that quality level of research but there is not a placebo for hyperbaric, you 
waste enormous time and money, and patients know whether or not their ears pop, if their 
ears don’t pop then they know that they didn’t get a treatment. Some studies have used air 
that has increased the pressure but that is the whole concept of increasing the pressure, 
when you fly on an airplane by increasing the pressure you increase the oxygen that goes 
into any mammalian system and therefore it was not an inactive placebo so those studies 
are flawed by saying that they were placebo studies when they weren’t.  
 
(26:03) Madam Chair Lee: What I would like to ask, is if you could put in writing the 
information that you just provided because I only see the information on the product itself not 
any written testimony.  
 
Senator K. Roers: When you were talking about with the acute, you said three treatments 
 
Dr. Denham: On average. 
 
Senator K. Roers: Yes, on average but how quick are those? 
 
Dr. Denham: Ideally, within four to five hours which follows the compartment syndrome 
protocol. 
 
Senator K. Roers: Three in one day? 
 
Dr. Denham: Correct 
 
Senator K. Roers: Do you know what the average healing time is for the untreated versus 
what you are seeing? 
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Dr. Denham: An article came out in September demonstrating that a clinic in Boston had 
about 161 acute concussions that presented within the first ten days of their injury and at 28 
days, 58% of those patients still had symptoms. We are seeing patient’s symptom free on 
average in three to four days. A lot of patients may get a concussion on Friday night, we treat 
them Saturday twice, Sunday twice, and they are back in homeroom Monday morning as if 
nothing ever happened. The data on the academic need of concussions is that 14% still need 
academic help at a year and we got these kids in and doing well. The last two pages of the 
right hand side of the packet are the Right Eye test. This was from a 31-year-old who was 
six years out from a moderate to severe brain injury so this is data for that would apply to the 
bill we are talking about. If you compare the two, the score when he presented, his brain 
health score was a 38 and if you look at the marker he is way in the yellow headed to the 
red. In three weeks his brain health score exceeded the functional level, he was up to 79. 
The right eye device, a patient sits in front of a computer screen with their chin on a rest and 
the device picks up each individual eye as they track the same marker on the screen and 
that is why we get a red for the right and a blue for the left but if you look at his circular 
tracking he should be tracking on this black dotted line and he is completely off. What is so 
important certainly for the kids is that the horizontal tracking is essentially reading, and these 
kids are not able to read and they say that their vision is blurred or their eyes hurt and often 
times it is dismissed. We for the first time unlike other studies have true objective evidence, 
this gentleman who was six years out cannot change in three weeks what he presented with 
statistically impossible, so we have objective evidence for this study and is not placebo driven 
because of there not being a good placebo. I put some cartoons in here just to explain how 
hyperbaric works because so many people question how it works. I think what is most 
important and what we as physicians have appreciated is number 3 “after a brain injury, there 
is a lot of brain inflammation” and if you skip past number 4 “research ties, inflammation to 
post concussive symptoms” and I believe that is what we are seeing and what animal models 
support the reason for hyperbaric working but we are not going to take brain biopsies of 
humans after hyperbaric, because of the blood brain barrier we won’t just be able to draw a 
blood test and get appropriate inflammatory markers, and with the objective eye evidence it 
almost doesn’t matter at this point. We in medicine say if you watch ten people come out of 
an airplane with a parachute do you really have to do the study that the parachute helped 
them. At some point yes, the FDA requires all of these things and I think it is perfectly 
appropriate but private insurance looks at money savings. Private insurance covers 
inflammatory bowel disease and some other hyperbaric treatments that are not FDA 
approved so the significance of this bill is to gather the data for private insurance to look at 
this and say yes, this is a safe treatment and it is going to save us thousands. The budget of 
what we are asking for and I apologize this is on 2018 numbers, 2019 Medicaid gave 
hyperbaric centers a pay raise in the G code but honestly since we used this budget my 
sincere hope is that we are going to come in under budget based on the treatment numbers 
needed, standard of care, and all the research is based on 40 treatments per individual to 
potentially 80 but by acknowledging the inflammatory response and what I have been 
working on for three and a half years we are not seeing that using the protocol that we have 
developed. Perhaps the most important thing is the page cost to the patient, for every 15 
point IQ increase it translates to about 20,000 dollars a year of income. One of the data points 
that we really want to look at is the potential to get patients with a moderate to severe head 
injury either not requiring as much care and medical expense but my sincere hope is that we 
shift them from a tax burden to a tax payer. That is what several other studies have shown 
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with military veterans. We are not addressing veterans in this study but it is out sincere hope 
that this study helps the VA to recognize, they have been ignoring the opportunity for a very 
long time. I did print out the protocol that we would take patients with a moderate to severe 
brain injury and do appropriate objective measures, pre-treatment my preference would be 
most of those objective measures are done outside of my office except the Right Eye, they 
can’t fake that test nor can we manipulate that data. We obviously want to be extremely 
diligent in making sure that this is safe, well tolerated, and making progress. I would prefer 
that their objective testing be done elsewhere. I didn’t go through all of my sheets, I tried to 
oversimplify everything.   
 
(36:00) Madam Chair Lee: In addition to traumatic brain injuries, are these treatments also 
beneficial to someone who has had a stroke or another kind of brain injury? 
 
Dr. Denham: In Israel they did a beautiful stroke study and they did not enroll any patient in 
the stroke study until they were at least six months out from their stroke so that they were not 
clouded with what patients could gain within the first six months. They did a cross over study 
designed, which is sometimes accepted by the FDA, in that half the patients waited an 
additional six months and had ongoing standard of care, the other half had hyperbaric 
treatments and had a statistical improvement in multiple modalities that they tested. After six 
months the standard of care were crossed over and they made the same as a whole 
statistically improved quality of life ability to do their ADL’s (activities of daily living) etc. There 
was no difference for that stroke study that some patients waited an additional six months 
that shows that we can heal brain injuries even in a delayed fashion.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Is there any regression from the improvement over a longer period of 
time for either the stroke victim or for someone who has had a concussion or another brain 
injury? 
 
Dr. Denham: I know for the acute concussions we are not seeing regression and we are 
actually seeing that they are less at risk of the next concussion because I know they would 
be coming back if they were concussed and they are not coming back, and that has been 
three and a half years since I started this. The chronic injuries however, there are some 
patients based on previous protocols that need six months to a year to come back for a few 
treatments. Dr. Paul Harch out of Louisiana has the most data on that and he refers to it as 
an oil change. Dr. Harch and I go two different ways when we talk about protocols and with 
what I have seen with the acute concussions and the anti-inflammatory response, we have 
walked that back for patients with chronic brain injury and that is the protocol that others will 
testify to and most of them know exactly when they get the treatment that is the most anti-
inflammatory.   
 
Madam Chair Lee: The money that you are talking about here, is this because the grant is 
running out from the private donor and you want to move on or is this additional? Talk to me 
about the money please. 
 
Dr. Denahm: Through the Dakota medical foundation we originally had 100,000 dollars and 
then an anonymous donor donated another 50,000 dollars but we treated acute concussions. 
They needed to present within seven days and be walking and talking out of the hospital. 
What we are asking for as far as funding are the patients who present to the emergency room 
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unconscious and have a Glasgow coma scale of 12 or less, many of those have severe brain 
injuries that they are in a coma for a month and learn to walk and talk again. We are trying 
to add to that or just finish that off depending on the duration from their injury and from the 
data I have been looking at, much of that is due to this inflammatory response. Every cell in 
the body is within vessel range to get oxygen but after an injury there is brain death but there 
are swollen cells that are not able to get enough oxygen to function as brain cells but they 
are still alive. It is as if you were gainfully employed and took a massive pay cut, you could 
still feed the family but there are no frills. What hyperbaric does especially in the acute setting 
is to take away the swelling and to allow all of those cells that are still alive to regain full 
function.  The inflammatory response is pulling oxygen away from these already necessary 
or under nourished brain cells and that is why we see such a dramatic change in patients 
when we turn off that inflammatory response which is why my protocol is different than other 
protocols.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Have you explored grant funding or partners among any of the national 
partners that might be likely supporters of this or why are you coming to this state, since we 
don’t generally get in the research funding areas? 
 
Dr. Denham: I met Dr. David Biberdorf on January 18, 2018 and we opened July 23, 2018 if 
that tells you how desperately I wanted to find somewhere where we could do the research 
and with Dr. Biberdorf and the Right Eye data have objective data. I was so tired of these 
kids getting dramatically better and going back to their concussion doctor who had to clear 
them to play per the high school rules or per their club’s sport rules and they were told that 
all of that was just relaxation, hyperbaric doesn’t do anything and Dr. Denham is doing is not 
okay, then the kids would get in the care from that appointment and the kid says to his mom 
“I can still go can’t I, I feel so much better”. How horrible is that for the kids in that area so I 
would tell the kids it is not your job to convince physicians that hyperbaric works, so the 
opportunity to leave that scenario when I knew it worked but we had the world against us to 
an opportunity that we can continue to do treatments with no costs to the patient so we got 
a true idea of what each patient needed. We have enormous amounts of data that we need 
to get put together but as of now I am so busy in the clinic I haven’t had time to do that but 
we are working on getting someone data and just to do data so that we can extend the hours 
of the clinic.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: That means that you haven’t applied for grants in any other place, that 
was the question.  
 
Dr. Denham: We have through some others, I have tried to work with some other national 
institutes but again, they are not interested and if you look some people have interior motives 
for patients not getting better it is a shame to say.  
 
Senator Hogan: Could you tell us what your academic background is and have you had any 
published national research? 
 
Dr. Denham: Yes, I trained as a general surgeon from 1993-2000 and I did two years of 
basic science research looking at inflammatory markers in pancreatitis which is part of the 
reason the inflammation means so much to me and I have several national publications 
presented at several national meetings but that was 20 plus years ago. We even published 
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a change of standard of care article on the approach to parathyroid surgery making minimally 
invasive parathyroid surgery standard of care and the article that I published was looking at 
the cost effectiveness of it.  
 
Senator Hogan: Can you tell me a little bit about you IRB, I was pleased you are getting an 
IRB approval from UND (University of North Dakota) Medical School. Can you tell me who 
you are working with and how that process would work? 
 
Dr. Denham: Dr. Biberdorf is part of the adjunct faculty at UND and he has been working 
with Dr. Tom Petros and we do have IRB for the retrospective publication of the acute 
concussion work that we are doing and we will get IRB for this particular pilot project.  
 
Senator K. Roers: Can you tell me when you are talking about the Glasgow coma scale of 
12 etc. How do you intend to get you referral source, how do you make sure that people 
know about your trial and also making sure you’re not getting people who are self-selective? 
 
Dr. Denham: That will be an issue but that is why having objective evidence. Someone who 
walks into the clinic and is talking and able to do a job, how do we know that they were a 
moderate to severe brain injury? We would need to have hospital records and I want to talk 
to their therapists or preferably have a third party talk to their therapists so that their therapists 
don’t know that they are getting hyperbaric, they are doing everything they can but there is 
just a hump they can’t jump over. We recently got an e-mail for an infant that was severely 
injured that I would like to potentially be our first patient so that is why I changed it to age 
appropriate things. It is going to be word of mouth and word of mouth is extremely effective 
in Fargo.  
 
Senator K. Roers: Have you tried working with the healthcare systems in Fargo and/or the 
NRI (National Research Institute)?  
 
Dr. Denham: Through Dr. Biberdorf, he is part of the brain injury committee here in North 
Dakota and most people on that committee are aware of it, we have reached out to the other 
healthcare systems. When I first got here we had multiple open houses for physicians to 
come in and see and certainly if we are successful with this pilot and the pilot through private 
insurance, we will be targeting again the referral source. 
 
Senator Anderson: If you could provide us with some links to the study that you mentioned 
that said hyperbaric wasn’t any good and also if we have your IRB in electronic format I would 
like to look at that.  
 
Dr. Denham: Well we haven’t written the IRB for this yet.  
 
Senator Anderson: Do you have a problem with the authorization of funding being based 
on your receiving the IRB for the study? 
 
Dr. Denham: No.  
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(51:40-55:53) Jim Nelson, Legislative Director for the North Dakota Veterans 
Legislative Council. Testifying in support of HB 1359. Please see Attachment #3 for written 
testimony.  
 
Senator Anderson: The study that is being designed here, how do you see that relating with 
the veterans and their injuries.  
 
Jim Nelson: Basically the way we looked at it was a concussion is a concussion. Whether 
you get it from a bomb, gun blast, car accident, or football injury.  We see the possibility that 
the VA would acknowledge this if the effects are indeed as we believe they are and as 
another avenue for them to take a harder look. We see the same thing in a lot of our Vietnam 
veterans that have went for years undiagnosed and untreated and this is a possibility to 
eliminate that epidemic of 20 plus suicides a day.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: We have kind of two parallels of the PTSD treatment one with the 
medical marijuana and the other with this new coming issue. Is your group going to team 
together and do research to see what these two are going to be doing with your group? Has 
that been brought forward at all?  
 
Jim Nelson: Not to my knowledge.  
 
(58:13-1:14:43) Nicole Rude and her son Payton Rude, hyperbaric patient. Testifying in 
support of HB 1359. Written testimony was provided and e-mailed to the committee after the 
hearing on HB 1359. Please see Attachment #4 for written testimony. 
 
Nicole Rude: We are here today in support of HB 1359 and for you to understand why we 
are here and where we come from is to understand our backstory for the last three years of 
Payton’s post concussive symptoms. Along with this I want to give you my background too, 
I was a kindergarten teacher at the West Fargo Kindergarten Center. I have stayed home to 
take care of our four children and I have adjunct at Minnesota State University Moorehead in 
the Education Department, I have a Masters in Curriculum and Instruction and my Bachelor’s 
degree in two areas of special education. I am currently University Supervising, supervising 
student teachers. As Payton has struggled through his post concussive pieces, I have 
definitely noticed the behavioral pieces that go along with that and more importantly those 
educational pieces that have played into that role of Payton getting ready and back into 
school.  
 
Payton Rude: I have had four concussions. My first concussion was in a basketball game 
three years ago now, the second one was in physical education class in middle school just 
diving for a volleyball, and the third one was last year in December a basketball hit my head 
and about a year ago in may I got hit by a pool noodle.  
 
Nicole Rude: So to understand the significance of all those multiple concussions, those 
concussions all four happened within two years. When Dr. Denham was talking about the 
inflammation on the brain a child should have been able to withstand being hit in their right 
temple by a pool noodle but the inflammation in his brain you can’t see a brain injury which I 
think is an important thing to recognize too. Although he was cleared and we were trying to 
get him back into school, we were doctoring with Mayo Neurology, they were like let him be 
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a kid but, just that simple impact of a pool noodle created another concussion. I took him 
down to visit with the baseball coach who is also a varsity football coach who I asked if he 
thought that I should take Payton in and he looked at me and said “Nicole here’s the deal, a 
kid looks like that on our football field, we have the ambulance on the field hauling him in. 
You need to go now to the ER.” In my head it is a pool noodle, tell me I’m wrong this isn’t 
another concussion but, it was. Now to kind of line that up, there have been many doctor 
appointments along that, with the first concussion it was around the time that I was actually 
going through cancer treatments so when he talked about having headaches and not 
sleeping well, we were all stressed out. Six months later when he had the second concussion 
in P.E. (physical education) class we went to the ER, a week late we went back in because 
he still couldn’t even have a curtain open in the house and the said that he just needed to 
get back to school and get back in routine. His words are slurring, so as a parent that is not 
cool to hear your child and know that it is his brain. Nine months later we were still not able 
to get back into school full time so we started doctoring with Neurology at Mayo. At the Mayo 
appointment about nine months post his second concussion he was referred for various 
therapies, one including that his balance was off for physical therapy. He would have been 
starting physical therapy two weeks after that appointment, we took off for the four of July 
week and he broke his leg. It wasn’t just a simple break, we were in our camper and he rolled 
his ankle which rolled with enough force and broke the bone up here also. We really feel that 
was because of his vision and balance being off. The cast comes off and we are back in 
Mayo in October for another re-check. His leg still has pain, but we start physical therapy. By 
December the physical therapists are ready to cancel him because she can’t make progress 
with him. Multiple tests, MRI’s, X-ray’s, he is now diagnosed with CRPS (complex regional 
pain syndrome) which is a disorder that his brain was recognizing paint that is necessarily 
not there. What Payton felt, every day, every step, even if air or water touched his leg, so 
now we have a third concussion on top of this, we are back to Mayo with this referral for 
CRPS. In 2018 we went to Mayo six different times for treatment of post concussive, CRPS, 
and then most recently digestion issues. Along with that we have also had issues with 
digestion track with the May concussion he had, September we visited with the neurologist 
about his stomach not feeling well and in October he had to miss a few days because he 
couldn’t get out of bed. At Mayo they did a lot of different testing to rule out many different 
diagnoses and at the end the doctor there felt that it was also brain related. Payton has had 
so many therapies to be able to count, with his CRPS diagnoses his neurologist actually took 
him out of school for the rest of the year. Post concussive symptoms that Payton has had, I 
will let him read those to you.  
 
Payton Rude: I have had headaches from the concussions, vision issues, balance issues, 
dizziness, body temperature control, nausea, fatigue, sensitivity to light and sound, slurred 
speech, and memory loss. I was just overwhelmed with all the symptoms I was having. I also 
was feeling depression and anxiety.  
 
Nicole Rude: And I am going to say the one that you skipped because I know it is hard for 
you, Payton has also had a lot of suicidal thoughts too. Part of that not only comes with the 
post concussive piece of that and I know that you had also touched on that with our military 
families but when that brain isn’t thinking clearly and there is inflammation and you have all 
of these other pieces that you’re not able to do, life feels pretty desperate at points. We were 
actually on two different time on this journey, asked to put him in an inpatient hospital at the 
advice of one time with a social worker and another time with a psychologist and along with 
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the psychologist recommendation out psychiatrists said absolutely not, this is a brain injury 
if we put him in there, we need to keep him at home where we can control environment as 
long as you can keep him safe. The medications that he has been on has also caused some 
of those symptoms that go along with that. Along this journey he has been on 14 different 
types of medication. Let me talk about the school piece, in sixth grade he missed 98 days 
without full attendance, in seventh grade he had 25 days without full attendance, and for the 
second half of the year he had a home bound tutor. He was in a 504 education plan and has 
had 54 days this year so far that are not full attendance because mostly for appointments. 
To understand the insurance costs of that, our insurance company has been close to 100,000 
dollars for his therapies and treatments and our out of pocket is nearing 15,000 dollars along 
with the fact of travel and my work piece being cut don’t drastically to be at home taking care 
of him.  
 
Payton Rude: We went to go see Dr. Biberdorf at the hyperbaric clinic. I didn’t really know 
what was going to happen, I just thought it was going to be another eye appointment. He 
gave me the right eye test and it was very low in the dysfunctional region and with that he 
recommended doing hyperbaric treatments to help with the eye functioning and with that the 
scores from that improved.  
 
Nicole Rude: If you look down here, this is what Dr. Denham was talking about with the 
reading piece. Payton struggled with the horizontal tracking and along with that vertical 
tracking is taking notes from the board and down to your paper. In those areas Payton was 
at the 35th percentile. Looking at educational data that 35th percentile is when we would do 
remediation on any child. His score was in the 47th overall eye health which is in the 
dysfunctional range. After doing one week of hyperbaric, he had ten treatments and at the 
end of that week his tracking had improved and he was in the 71st percentile. Here in his 
horizontal tracking he now went to 95th percentile, so from 35th percentile then one week of 
treatment and one week of post treatment he is now in the 95th percentile. His eye functioning 
went to 72%. Two weeks after that we went back for another eye test and his overall eye 
functioning was now at 88%, which means for Payton this is a huge gain. He is a very smart 
and studious student, we at one point were seeing a neuro psych because his words were 
slurring and he said that Payton is in the genius level but we still saw this discrepancy and 
gap so how do we get him back to where he was? When Dr. Denham talked about that pay 
check, that is the thing as a parent I saw slipping away. I saw this kid that was going to be 
very successful and yet I saw a kid who couldn’t start the microwave. His first day after 
treatment he was able to go back to Skyzone (a trampoline park) and now he is playing 
drums again, playing outside, and really his symptoms are gone. I just want you to imagine 
the possibilities of a kid, that they are able to show his visual tracking is at a 16th grade, he 
was only tracking at a 10th grade with his visual tracking prior to the hyperbaric.  
 
(1:14:50-1:18:18) Hannah Anderson from Leeds, North Dakota. Testifying in support of 
HB 1359. Please see Attachment #5 for written testimony.  
 
(1:19:08-1:21:30) Lisa Anderson from Leeds, North Dakota. Testifying in support of HB 
1359. Please see Attachment #6 for written testimony.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: We have two therapies that we are looking at. Is that other therapy from 
the medical marijuana something that you have thought about? 
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Lisa Anderson: I haven’t done the research. I run the support group for the brain injury 
survivors in Devils Lake and I know there are a couple of them there who are interested in 
that but I personally haven’t done any of the research for medical marijuana.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: This therapy that she is doing will this continue for a lifetime or as long 
as the Right Eye testing comes back good? 
 
Lisa Anderson: Dr. Denham said that she didn’t believe that Hannah would need any 
additional treatment unless she received a concussion or had another brain injury, which the 
possibility of having another brain injury increases after they have had a brain injury.  
 
(1:23:53-1:24:31) Vicki Bitner, Resident of Fargo, providing testimony from a patient 
Bruce A. Hendrickson. Please see Attachment #7 for written testimony. 
 
Senator Anderson: I don’t know if you want to close the hearing but we need to hear from 
the health department.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We can get that later.  
 
Senator K. Roers: Blue Cross said that they are still waiting for data to make a decision on 
which way they are going.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: There are interest in each of those places because they want to support 
good things that are going on too but there has to be some process in the whole thing.  
 
Madam Chair Lee closes the hearing on HB 1359. 
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Madam Chair Lee opens the discussion on HB 1359. 
 
(00:10-04:18) Senator Clemens describes his tour of the hyperbaric facility of Dr. Denham. 
Senator Clemens explained that the facility was a nice and clean facility. Senator Clemens 
was not impressed with the technicians that there were on staff, there were two technicians 
that were manning the hyperbaric chamber and Senator Clemens said they “did not seem 
professional”. During the time of his tour Senator Clemens and Representative Schauer had 
a conversation with Dr. Denham and one thing that stood out to Senator Clemens during the 
conversation and that was the feeling of Dr. Denham being “desperate” for income and does 
not feel that the committee should be funding her business. 
 
(04:20) Senator K. Roers: I learned that Blue Cross had sent something to me saying that 
they have not accepted this concept for a pilot, they are waiting for the data from Dr. Denham 
and she has not been providing it in a timely fashion. Blue Cross is interested in her results, 
they asked for her data and that is where it stands. They support the evidence and what the 
veterans are after but, there isn’t enough evidence for insurance coverage, she shows 
promising progress but she needs to get her data together to us before we can pilot. It’s not 
that the insurance companies are against this, it is that they are asking her to follow a path 
and it’s not happening. I would agree with your final statement; I feel like they are asking the 
government to basically subsidize her business which I don’t agree with.  
 
Senator Anderson: The only way I would vote for this is if we considered an economic 
development project for North Dakota. There are a lot of people around the country working 
on this and there are trials underway. In spite of the anecdotal evidence, I have never been 
one to base medical decisions on anecdotal evidence even with the marijuana issue, this 
may help some people, we haven’t heard from the people who didn’t help. Without some 
more research, it is unusual to see a program that was FDA approved and then for some 
reason is not. I don’t even know how that process works. The only time I know of when some 
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drug or treatment falls off of the FDA approval list is when there is injury to people. They don’t 
generally pull it because it doesn’t work once it is approved.  
 
Senator K. Roers: And she said it had to do with politics as well.  
 
Senator Anderson: Politics might affect the state of North Dakota or Illinois or some other 
but politics isn’t going to affect a federal program I don’t believe unless the president’s son 
was in a competing business of something but generally not. I would want to do a little more 
research before I thought we should fund a study, its North Dakota getting into the clinical 
trial business and that is a dangerous road to go down because there are a lot of different 
things that we could be in trials about and we could fund. It is a dangerous precedent to 
establish even though we think this might help some people but there are a lot of things that 
might help some people.  
 
(07:30-08:02) (Inaudible) 
 
(08:04) Senator Clemens: She also stated when we were in that tour, she was telling us 
that treatments were about 175 dollars for typical treatment and they could do a couple a 
day. After three or four treatments they were done so you’re looking at less than 1,000 dollars 
for a lot of the cases that she was referring to so its not a real expensive hardship either.  
 
Senator Anderson: You talked about Jamestown and I don’t know we could touch base with 
Jamestown and see what they say. Obviously they thought it was worthwhile to buy a couple 
of these chambers.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I can give you a little clarity on that. In Fargo at Sanford we have 
hyperbaric oxygen as an option for the FDA approved purposes and so Jamestown also has 
them for wound healing and other things like that but not for this purpose so I think it is just 
her utilization that is different not the facility that is any different.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Alex (Intern), could you google Dr. Denham for us. Im just curious about 
her medical background.  
 
Senator K. Roers: She didn’t answer that question very clearly either, her medical 
background. She jumped straight to certain things but she didn’t say where she went to 
school or where she did her residency or any of that. Dr. Biberdorf I know the name but I 
don’t know who it is.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: He has two brothers, one of whom is the guy who was a state official 
that manages oil and this brother must be an ophthalmologist not an optometrist. This guy’s 
name was Dave and Bob, the one you and I know. I would think that he is a highly credible 
guy by knowing the family.  
 
(11:10-11:40) The committee goes over the medical credentials of Dr. Denham that the 
Senate Human Services Intern found.  
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Senator Clemens: I was just going to mention, I think that after I went through her clinic I 
got a little interested and googled Jamestown and they are into this hyperbaric quite a bit, 
but I’m sure they aren’t doing any more than what they would in Fargo.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: When they are doing that eye testing is that an optometrist? 
 
Senator K. Roers: What is interesting is his professorship or adjunct is with the Department 
of Psychology at UND (University of North Dakota) which I remember my psych classes 
learning a lot about the eye and brain so I guess its not completely un heard of.  
 
(13:23-13:40) Dr. Denham still holds active licenses in Illinois and has never been 
disciplined. (information supplied by the Senate Human Services Intern) 
 
Senator K. Roers: So this is from the FDA’s site “hyperbaric oxygen therapy doesn’t be 
misled. No hyperbaric oxygen therapy has not been clinically proven to cure or be effective 
in the treatment of cancer, autism, or diabetes but do a quick search on the internet and you 
will see all sorts of claims for these and other diseases for which the device has not been 
cleared or approved by the FDA. Involves breathing oxygen in a pressurized chamber, has 
clear hyperbaric chambers for certain medical uses such as treating decompression sickness 
suffered by divers. Patients may be unaware that the safety and effectiveness of hyperbaric 
oxygen treatments have not been established for these diseases and conditions including: 
HIV/AIDS, Alzheimer’s, Asthma, Bell’s Palsy, Brain injury, Cerebral Palsy, Depression, Heart 
Disease, Hepatitis, Migraine, MS, Parkinson’s, Spinal Cord Injury, Sports Injury, and Stroke. 
Thirteen uses have been cleared by the FDA they include treatment of: Air or Gas Embolism, 
Carbon Monoxide Poisoning, Decompression Sickness, and Thermal Burns” Those are 
some of the thirteen it doesn’t list all of them.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: If I had something as exciting as this could be I think I would figure out a 
way to get the data together so that I could apply for grants because then it would be exciting 
for somebody.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I move a DO NOT PASS on HB 1359. 
Seconded by Senator Anderson  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN  
5 YEA, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES  
Senator K. Roers will carry HB 1359 to the floor.  
 
Madam Chair Lee closes the discussion on HB 1385. 
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Madam Chair Lee: We had some very interesting testimony in the morning but the afternoon 
discussion wrapped a bit around other sources of funding and I spoke this morning with Pat 
Traynor. A little back ground there yes, they are handling Gary Tharaldson’s contribution to 
that project and they are willing to help her. After our conversation I said the data is the issue 
because she has it and Pat said too he knows she has it, it just isn’t in any organized form at 
all so I said we had two issues that came through really in the afternoon. One is, the data are 
not organized and presented in a way to make it possible to apply for grants. I said, a 
gentleman was here who is one our advocates for the medical marijuana issue and in about 
three minutes he found six places that there would be opportunities for grants. The second 
is, the tobacco funds are 241,000 dollars already in the hole so there isn’t any money in the 
fund, it’s all in your books Justin (Senate Human Services Clerk) put it in, I got it from Alan 
Knutsen what the request already are for the money there. The third is, should the state really 
be in the business of directly funding research projects. If the research universities for 
example, they get the funding for research which has been requested, I could see her having 
her ducks in a row by that time, because DMF is going to help her with that, applying for a 
grant from UND for example in conjunction with the medical school could do this and he 
agreed that would be the proper place for it to go. I have to talk to Dick Anderson which 
Senator K. Roers did last night and told all about what is going on but I want to make sure I 
touch base with him as well. It is not that we reject the importance or the value of what she 
is doing but that is kind of where we came from. State funding is opening a Pandora’s box; 
we just weren’t comfortable. How many requests would we have next session? We cannot 
evaluate grants, they are professionals who do that and good work recognized by everybody, 
data has to be lined up and if Pat can help her which he said he would, then she can apply 
both in and out of state for grants that are available so this can continue. He said there is 
resistance from providers who do not want to refer who feel that they have a protocol in place 
for trauma treatment for concussion treatment and that everyone isn’t ready to leap on board 
with this. Well, it isn’t proven yet and that is part of the deal. This just may be a work in 
progress and it would be really interesting to see how this goes, it seems to be pretty effective 
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for the ones who came and talked to us but we are back at anecdotes again. I am open to 
further discussion about that if somebody has comments to offer at this point.  
 
Senator Hogan: You know I spent an hour on the phone with Pat Traynor as well. I was very 
clear about exactly those same concerns in the pre-conversation before I heard what you 
said. The lack of research and one of my biggest concerns was the lack of partnership and 
relationship with key players whether it be the medical school or healthcare providers. It is 
too isolated and way too independent. I have my niece who is the head of the PTSD research 
for the veteran’s hospital association based out of Austin University and I forwarded her this 
and she said, okay it is out there. She looks at all types of scientific issues and we will look 
at it.  It is interesting because it is a total lack of integration that made me nervous. Most 
research is so collaborative with research.  
 
Senator Clemens: I don’t negate the technology and the fact that shit is probably helping is, 
the problem I am having with this is, I toured the facility which I told you yesterday, I sensed 
that there is some desperation and the fact that we would be funding the business enterprise, 
that is what I don’t like about it. I’m not opposed to hyperbaric but that is the issue I’m having.  
 
Senator Anderson: I talked to Representative Anderson this morning and of course he is 
convinced that it works for these concussion protocols and he is just trying to get some 
additional money to serve more people. I don’t think the state of North Dakota should be in 
the business of funding these investigational studies and I have an additional concern as I’m 
not sure this study that she is doing meets the qualifications of a real clinical trial. She talked 
about getting IRB approval and so forth but we could always put the funding contingent on 
that approval but still mostly IRB approval is protection of the patient who is going into the 
study not so much the study design or what is going to come out of it. I’m just uncomfortable 
with us funding clinical trials on a case by case basis like this and that is what I told 
Representative Anderson.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I appreciate Representative Anderson so much, he has worked so hard 
on this, he is committed to it and I just think that he is a wonderful guy and im glad he cares 
enough to work this hard on it.  
 
Senator Hogan: Did you have any opportunity to get any feedback from the Health 
Department? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: I meant to ask that last night. The three physicians that are the advisory 
council for the Health Department, I mentioned it to them but I did not ask them to comment 
specifically on this particular thing. I did not inquire to the department. We seem to have 
enough reasons to not do it. We left the vote open for you, if you would like to vote on it.  
 
Senator Hogan: I am totally comfortable with voting YES on a DO NOT PASS (Absent vote 
is reflected on Job # 33590 which was a final vote of 5 YEA, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT) 
 
Madam Chair Lee: I think we are pretty much on the same page, I’m sure no one has 
changed their mind overnight. 
 
Madam Chair Lee closes the discussion on HB 1359. 
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Madam Chair Lee: I had visited with doctor Winn and we chatted this morning about the 
possibility of looking at the university research appropriations. You were up to that speed. I 
have told everyone this, individually you all said that we had real concerns about this bill and 
ironically everyone’s reservations were the same about giving state funds this is opening a 
Pandora’s box and she doesn’t have the data for the application. I got some e-mails last night 
from a house member saying it was going to be hard time finding the money for the behavioral 
health programs in 2012 if we don’t talk about this again, well that is unconstitutional and 
immoral in my book.  

 
Senator Anderson: I think we should report that as an ethics violation. 

 
Madam Chair Lee: It is an ethics violation. I talked to Senator Hogan and Pat Traynor. We 
learned they were the fiscal agent for Gary’s money and it turns out that Gary is willing to 
provide additional support.  When I told pat that the presentation had been less than sterling 
from Dr. Denham because we didn’t have data and we looked at grants and told him about 
the guy from the medical marijuana group that googled and found multiple grants that could 
be submitted for topics like that. This is a popular topic right now. Pat said he would have 
someone help her get her data in order. Rebecca Quinn was being blamed by house member 
for sabotaging this. She did not say anything to me that would be anything but supportive of 
addressing this problem. It is just a rumor mill run amuck. She sent a message to me today 
about helping Dr. Denham with her data and research and also find another source of 
funding. So we have Dakota Central that is going to assists her but she is going to have to 
be a part of the solution and Rebecca Quinn is going to as well. In the mean time I visited 
with Dr. Wynne again and last message which I did forward to all of you but in her report she 
made it clear that the money is just for treatments. Now I have to call Dr. Wynne back 
because he said that if we appropriate dollars to UND because of the medical school, to a 
research university for the dedicated purpose of exploring treatments for serious brain injury. 
That would be ok but there has to be a faculty person attached to it. What you see in front of 
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us is where we were until we found out that she was only going to use the money for 
additional treatments and I talked to Dr. Wynne and he said no we can’t do that, so that is 
where we are. In addition to the house members who are mad at me and collectively us but 
I’m a big girl and I don’t care because I am angry about the response to this and they also 
went to the governor, he had a discussion with the governor about whether or not this is 
appropriate and he said yeah we are kind of on the same page and he understands why we 
have this position. So, I am bringing this back to you but I am only one person on this 
committee. You would all agree that we had a lot of discussion and collaboration with her 
and everybody came up with the same conclusion that this wasn’t ready to roll and she needs 
to be a part of that. Now we have both Rebecca Quinn and Pat Traynor that will assist her 
with that project. We cannot be directly sending state dollars to a private provider for 
treatment of a condition or disease, and that is Dr. Wynne’s point as well as Senator 
Wardner’s and Senator Holmberg’s not just me. So if you have any big differences of opinion 
with this, I have a very short time to address this because Senator Holmberg will want this in 
his committee if we are going to hook it up to the university system on Monday. I think we 
probably come back to the point we were at when we finished the discussion in committee 
which is, we probably did the right thing in the first place, but I am asking if you want to go 
forward with some different kind of legislative process here because I see this here that can 
informally have done privately between Rebecca and Pat Traynor and Dr. Denham to get her 
things together, apply for grants, to get the support of Gary Tharaldson for funding.  

 
Senator Anderson: I am a little confused are you telling me that this would satisfy the people 
in house? 

 
Madam Chair Lee: I haven’t even talked to the people in the house about it because by the 
time we had this all put together we found out that we got the message from her saying that 
she will only use it for additional treatments, that is what she wants the money for.  
 
Senator Anderson: We could pass this and unless she wants to go along with the research 
project. I am in favor of a research project if the proper project is designed and the IRB 
approval is given, I don’t have a problem with that. I was in favor of the 45 million dollars for 
research at the universities and this could one of them. I wouldn’t even be opposed to putting 
all the money that dick put in there and see what happens but 100,000 dollars isn’t much.  

 
Madam Chair Lee: That wasn’t a suggestion that was a pretty firm request from the head of 
appropriations. I don’t have any debate with that, you have to have a little skin in the game. 
It could be from Gary Tharaldson or from wherever they want to go.  
 
Senator Clemens: I’m opposed to any money being approved by this committee. I’m a little 
upset about this now. I think we are being given the run around by her and its irritating she 
doesn’t cooperate with an offer and then we come back and I don’t think we have to be trying 
to convince her to be going with this program so, I’m a no on this.  
 
Senator Anderson: It is not unusual for us to do legislation to make other people happy or 
to get their votes. I have a bill in house human services which they voted 8-5 do not pass 
and then agreed to bring it back to give me an opportunity to fix it so they might be happy 
with it. It isn’t unusual that we do that but my bill isn’t contingent on what we do here. if we 
can come up with a solution that gets peoples votes and accomplishes something for the 
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state. The e-mail that Senator Lee eludes to, I wouldn’t be opposed to turning that in, that is 
a current ethics violation if somebody did that. 

 
Madam Chair Lee: I got it, do you want it? 

 
Senator Anderson: That is clearly a violation right now and I would be opposed to turn that 
in but, that is a different issue. You know what we are trying to do here is accomplish 
something and a research study is fine with me, I don’t have a problem with your position 
either. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: I don’t think that the university should be the ones that have to come up 
with the matching funds, I think that she is the one who has to come up with the matching 
funds.  

 
Senator Anderson: Or whoever. 

 
Madam Chair Lee: Our intern has done a great job on this but that has to be matching or 
there is no question that appropriations won’t consider it. It says to UND school of medicine 
for a study and the funds appropriated maybe spent and the university provides two dollars 
of matching funds from non-state sources but I don’t think that they should be the ones who 
have to hustle the money is my point. She and Pat Traynor and whoever else.  
 
Senator Anderson: Someone else can volunteer the money that is not unusual we were just 
talking about when we didn’t get the money to build the addition to Sudro hall well legislature 
said they would authorize you to spend the money but you have to raise it from outside 
sources so we did that, the 39 million dollars that was used to build that addition all came 
from outside sources.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: Even though I guess I heard that she’s only going to use it for patients 
or whatever when the funding source is there and they can only get money from research it’ll 
be pretty quick but it’ll sink in that I have to use my patient for research and I think she will 
come around to it.   
 
Senator Hogan: if I hadn’t seen particularly the traumatic brain injury young women from 
Leeds who I have known for six or eight years maybe, I think this does have some viability. I 
think in that sense it seems like a reasonable compromise. I shared your concerns when I 
voted no but the fact that there was not a real research plan and I think that would guarantee 
this and would ensure this. I kind of like this.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I don’t think anybody in the committee was not impressed with the fact 
that there is an impact there but the fact that anybody thinks they can threaten me or 
intimidate me into doing anything tells me they don’t know much about me, I’m just saying. 
I’m here to bring it to you or I would have said forget this a long time ago this afternoon. I am 
not unwilling to discuss whatever it is that you would like to discuss. I absolutely understand 
Senator Anderson’s point and if it’s done in a way that can be appropriate, I think Dr. Wynne 
will be interested in the research part of it but I want that private money to be raised by private 
people and I don’t think that UND should have to be doing it so, somehow we have to make 
that very clear. 
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Senator Anderson: I can remember; does it make any difference if we voted for or against 
the bill if we are going to move reconsideration? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: We all voted against it so anybody, Senator O. Larsen voted for it so he 
can’t make the motion. You now have copies of the emails that I got from Dr. Denham 
(Attachment #1) and from Rebecca Quinn (Attachment #2).  
 
Senator Anderson: I’ll move reconsideration of HB 1359.  
Seconded by Senator Hogan 
 
VOICE VOTE TAKEN 
MOTION CARRIES TO RECONSIDER.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Do you feel that the language is tight enough as we have it? I would also 
like to Alex (Senate Human Services Intern) on the fine job of putting this together 
(Attachment #3 Christmas tree bill) because she had to do it kind of on the fly.  
 
Senator Anderson: This language to me, in spite of being mad about what happened, it’s 
easy for me to put that aside because I have been in this legislative business for a little while.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: So have I.  
 
Senator Anderson: I believe, had this bill come to use with this language we probably would 
have supported it. I’m willing to move a DO PASS on this amendment.  
Seconded by Senator K. Roers 
 
Madam Chair Lee: May I ask one thing? If we change the word “provides” to “receives” two 
dollars of matching funds from non-state sources on the second page, line 15. How would 
you feel about that change? That way they are not responsible for providing it but they can 
accept it. Would you be willing to consider that in your amendment? 
 
Senator Anderson: That’s what I meant.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I heard that, I’m pretty sure.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I’ll tell you I’m also upset but I do agree, had this come this way I think 
the concerns that we had, would have had a different conversation because the things that 
we were so opposed to was appropriating dollars directly to her and this does provide a way 
through and theoretically it could be someone other than her, so I think that is something I 
can live with. However, I don’t believe I can carry the bill and not share my frustration at the 
same time.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We may not be able to share it on the floor but we can express our 
concerns.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I’m just saying I might not be able to hold the distain in.  
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Senator O. Larsen: As we were dealing with this I think that my own shortcomings that, my 
grammar and spelling are horrible but, my ideas are amazing. So this idea, if we can get 
passed all of the bad grammar and the spelling the idea is amazing because we are stumbling 
over ourselves with the medical marijuana and the new therapy. If we can get rid of migraines 
without having to go get my medical marijuana card and be hooked on that for a lifetime. I 
see this as a parallel avenue to that and I really like the idea that there is no name attached 
to it so maybe Jamestown and Fargo will get excited about it. I didn’t want the idea to die, 
the idea is amazing.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I don’t think anybody did, I think we just felt that what was being proposed 
was wrong.  
 
Senator Anderson: Some hospital might say I would like to partner with the University of 
North Dakota and we use (inaudible) chambers.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Except those aren’t the high intensity ones I don’t think.  
 
Senator Clemens: Senator Anderson mentioned, and I was thinking it earlier too. Let’s say 
Jamestown. I know they are not involved with the high level brain injury but could they still 
do the study? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: They could apply, but didn’t we learn that those chambers that she is 
using are high intensity. It’s a stronger concentration isn’t that what she said? Senator K. 
Roers is shaking her head, well then I misunderstood that so they are all the same right? 
 
Senator O. Larsen: The big difference with that is the concentration level in that eye chart 
thing, that is what they are using as the key. If the oxygen level and the pressure isn’t quite 
there, then they stick them back in for an adjustment.  
 
Senator Anderson: She expressed using that right eye coordination as her test. Now we 
don’t say anything about that here. The researcher at the University of North Dakota might 
decide that is or is not a validation of success in this thing and of course if a researcher is 
going to do that, the right eye doc can’t be associated with her clinic it has to be someone 
else, and she did mention that she would rather have an optometrist or ophthalmologist 
outside of her doing that right eye thing because she realized that when her employee is 
doing that it is questionable. The University of North Dakota wouldn’t allow you to do that 
with your own person that you employ, it would have to be someone else doing that 
validation. I’m comfortable with the universities approach to this and I would be surprised if 
she ended up being the one.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Well the original draft did talk about the right eye in more details and Alex 
and I worked on that a little bit and I said we need to get that detail out of there.  
 
Senator K. Roers: When I build policies for my workplace, we purposely don’t use brand 
names so I remember in that bill thinking, this sounds like a brand name, granted its FDA 
approved but it made me think that so I’m glad that it isn’t in this draft.  
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Madam Chair Lee: There was much more detail than the original one that had come out so. 
Any other discussion on the motion to amend? 
 
Senator Clemens: Looking at this new bill here, it just refers to treating brain injuries so 
there is not a level here of what type of brain injury this has to go to. Earlier in the discussion 
we were saying that Jamestown doesn’t do high level.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: But the medical school gets to decide what level of intensity. That is why 
it’s not there, it’s an intentional thing unless you’re not comfortable with that.  
 
Senator Anderson: Obviously we pass it this way and if we get it passed on the senate floor, 
the conference committee may not agree and we may be in conference committee forever if 
they don’t agree to that.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Appropriations may not agree with us in the senate.  
 
Senator Anderson: They may not. Of course we don’t say where the money comes from 
either, this is just general fund money now.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Jon Nelson told me that it was seven million in it at the beginning that is 
why they put it in there, everybody else wants it. I knew you would be logical and bring me 
back to reality. I think you would have been equally frustrated and annoyed with the incidents 
of the last 20 hours or so because it has been so inappropriate and ridiculous and the gossip 
and trash talk that was coming from the house was so absolutely unacceptable that why 
would they think that I would want to anything even the least bit cooperative and collaborative. 
It’s only because I am surrounded by all these noble people now that have convinced me 
that I have to go forward with this because it’s a good goal in the end so thank you, to the 
committee. Anyone else wants to talk before we vote on the amendment which includes the 
change to instead of “provides” to “receives”? 
 
Senator Anderson: Before we proceed to the vote, do we need to make any change in the 
title of the bill based on the way.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Yes, we don’t need to report to legislative management. 
 
Senator Anderson: Ok, so whatever my motion is I will include fixing the title.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Everyone comfy with those changes? 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN  
6 YEA, 0 NAY, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES TO ADOPT AMENDMENT.  
 
Senator Anderson: I will move DO PASS, AS AMENDED, AND REREFFER TO 
APPROPRIATIONS. 
Seconded by Senator Hogan  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN  
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6 YEA, 0 NAY, 0 ABSENT  
MOTION CARRIES DO PASS, AS AMENDED, REREFFER TO APPROPRIATIONS.  
Senator Anderson will carry HB 1359 to the floor.  
 
Madam Chair Lee closes the hearing on HB 1359. 
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Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
study of the efficacy of hyperbaric oxygen therapy; and to provide an appropriation. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. UNIVERSITY OF NORTH DAKOTA SCHOOL OF MEDICINE 
AND HEALTH SCIENCES STUDY- HYPERBARIC OXYGEN THERAPY. During the 
2019 -21 biennium, the university of North Dakota school of medicine and health 
sciences may design and implement a study of the efficacy of hyperbaric oxygen 
therapy in treating brain injuries. 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $100,000, or 
so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the university of North Dakota school of 
medicine and health sciences for the purpose of a study of hyperbaric oxygen therapy, 
for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. The funds 
appropriated in this section may be spent only to the extent the university of North 
Dakota school of medicine and health sciences receives two dollars of matching funds 
from nonstate sources for each one dollar provided from the general fund." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide for a study of the efficacy of hyperbaric oxygen therapy. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments: 0 

 
Legislative Council:  Adam Mathiak  
OMB:  Stephanie Gullickson  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Called the committee to order on HB 1359.   
 
Former Senator Pete Naaden: Came in to the committee room for a visit.  
 
(1:45) Representative Dick Anderson, District 6, Bottineau, Renville & McHenry 
Counties 
 
This is pilot program for getting a study or data and hopefully getting insurance coverage for 
severe and moderate brain damaged individuals. The clinic in Fargo has been working with 
Blue Cross Blue Shield on getting a program for acute, which is minor concussions through 
sports related injuries. I am looking for a pilot project to get the data for severe to moderate 
brain injury victims that have probably been living with the injury for a series of years. The 
appropriation sum of $335,000 would treat approximately 30 patients with 40 treatments. 
That is $11,000 per person. Working with Dr. Denham, I have found out that she’s treated 
people up to 10 times, 2 times a day. Some people have fully recovered. There are others 
who have more severe damage. I don’t know how many treatments they would need. We 
basically put it up to 40 treatments for those individuals. I am not sure if you understand what 
hyperbaric treatment does. You’re put into a chamber of pressurized oxygen. It will go up to 
two atmospheric pressures. They use a right eye brain scan function to monitor the results 
of the treatment. It’s liked you have a clogged fuel line. You can start a diesel tractor up on 
idle. The only way to get the brain to function fully, would be to get the oxygen flow going 
back to the cells. It’s like cleaning out the fuel line and making sure the fuel is flowing to the 
brain cells. In a brain injury, there is inflammation and a chemical reaction. In a lot of cases, 
the cells do not die. The oxygen flowing between the cells is restricted. Through this clinic in 
Fargo, they have found a way to get that airway open again. The results are amazing. We 
spend about $10 M in Medicaid services and the Human Service Department per year in 
dealing with people who have had a brain injury. I am very positive that this would reduce 
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this quite a bit. I am just looking for a pilot project to get the data so we can prove the results. 
I do not know if people have any questions about the right eye exam or not.  
 
(5:18) Senator Mathern: Thank you for your work on brain injury. The Senate committee 
amended this bill so that it no longer provides payment for treatment. It provides $100,000 
for the school of medicine to do research and attest to the outcomes of these treatments. I 
am wondering if you’re asking the bill to be amendment or do you support it as is.  
 
Representative Anderson: Dr. Denham has found a protocol that works. There are 
hyperbaric chambers all over the country. Over her years of research, she found one system 
that works. The way the language was, it basically leaves the door open to someone else.  I 
want the language funneled through her clinic. I know, from talking to people on the federal 
level, that this is coming for the vets. It is a great opportunity for our state and the city of 
Fargo to have this there. I know it works. When I went to the clinic, I visited with the people 
who were getting treatment. I am sold on it. The way the language was changed in the 
Senate, this would open it up to someone else’s protocol and I think we need to have a test 
where the results are positive.  
 
(7:33) Senator Poolman: The bill was also amended to ensure that it is $2 matching funds 
from not state sources for each dollar that is allocated. Does the University of North Dakota 
have partners in mind for the $2? 
 
Representative Anderson: I don’t know. I was not involved with that amendment. I just went 
to appropriations on the House side and told them what I needed. They came up with this.  
 
Bruce Murray, Executive Director, Association of Community Providers 
My board has given me permission to volunteer with this effort. If this goes to conference 
committee, and any drafting or research ideas were to be necessary, I’d be most happy to 
assist. There might be ways to accomplish some of these goals through demonstration 
projects, vouchers, etc. 
 
Representative Austin Schauer, District 13, West Fargo 
I have been to clinic in Fargo twice. I visited between 15 and 20 patients. The results are 
phenomenal. The evidence is there and it will either push this forward, or it won’t. I would 
highly recommend that we go with the pilot program. I was very disappointed with what the 
Senate Committee did. We need to go forward with this pilot program. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: You are confident that if we pass this and it goes to conference 
committee, those rough edges would be able to be smoothed out?   
 
Representative Schauer: There are some rough edges, as you know. This is an opportunity 
for us to help people. I think we all know someone with an adolescent who has undergone a 
concussion. This treatment that Dr. Denham has come up with is helping people.    
 
Senator Wanzek: You said you were visiting with patients and their families. What is a 
common cost for people to get this hyperbaric service?  
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Representative Schauer: With help of the trainer and the Dakota Medical Foundation, along 
with a Gary Tharaldson, for adolescents, the cost is zero. For adults, it is about $250 - $270 
a session. Each session is about 45 minutes in which you go into the chamber. The effects 
are like you are landing in an airplane and you’re yawning.  
 
Senator Wanzek: We’ve come a long way in recognizing the significance of a head trauma.  
Back in my day, they just rubbed some salts on your nose and told you to get back in there.  
 
Senator Robinson: We have folks in my district who have contacted me on this bill. My wife 
also went to Fargo visited the clinic. We had friends who had a son with multiple concussions 
and they were doing everything to save their son. They lost him. They were here a few weeks 
ago when the bill was on the House side. They are pleading with us to give this pilot a chance. 
They are convinced that this might have saved their son. Thank you, Representative 
Anderson, for your work on this bill. I think there is potential here. We owe it to the folks who 
are searching and struggling for an answer.  
 
Representative Schauer: I talked to a Navy veteran. He was to the point of suicide in 
September of 2018. He underwent treatment in October and for the next two months he said 
it’s night and day. How can we walk away from people like that?  
 
Senator Poolman: Do we have a history of doing this for other conditions? What is the 
history of picking a condition and paying for people’s treatment and using that as a data 
collection type of pilot?  
 
Representative Anderson: I cannot answer that. You have a couple suggestions where it’s 
been done before. 
 
Bruce Murray: During the time I worked with protection and advocacy, there were 
legislations for Russell Silver syndrome. There were some supplemental food therapies that 
were very disease specific that were emerging treatments at the time. Those were funded 
successfully. There is some precedent for it. I think there are other ways to do it that aren’t 
quite so experimental. It can be more of a demonstration project or a voucher system that 
could be worked out in a conference committee.  
 
Representative Anderson: I have some information on the cost of a treatment and other 
things that could be provided. They are in my iPad and need to print them out.   
 
Senator Dever: I am not sure to what extent hyperbaric treatment is delivered elsewhere in 
ND. I understand there was a doctor here in Bismarck that did it several years ago. It seems 
to me that a study may yield results that already exist. If they exist, then why do we need the 
pilot program rather than just taking the information that already exists and advance the 
argument that there should be some coverage of it?  
 
Representative Anderson:  Hyperbaric has been around for many years. The protocol that 
Dr. Denham was partially by accident. It is different than anyone else’s. She is currently 
working with an insurance company and they are going ahead with the protocol. They wanted 
her to release her protocol and she is protective of it. She spent 3-5 years on it. I sat in a 
chamber for a while and it is like going up and down in an airplane. They use the right eye 
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brain function exam and they figure out the pressure point and the times it triggers the brain 
to start working again. There was one gal who took two treatments a day after she was in an 
accident. She started on a Monday and by Wednesday, she said she could tell she is feeling 
better. By Friday, she said she was the best she has felt in a 11 years. Instead of working 
part time, she’s working almost full time now. With the right eye brain function data she uses, 
they come in with a concussion and they have them draw circles in a horizontal line. A person 
with a concussion can usually not do that because their eyes are not working together. After 
treatment, they are able to have a vast improvement over what their first test was. After 2-3 
days of treatment, there are dramatic results. After this treatment, the majority of kids are 
back in school within a week. I know it’s been around for years, but she’s found a system 
that works.  
 
Senator Dever: I can understand her being protective of her protocol. If we’re being asked 
to provide money to create a pilot program using that protocol. Is she going to extend that to 
others? 
 
Representative Anderson: Her goal is to get this going so it is an option to treat. She just 
hopes she can be a consultant and wants to get her protocol established in other areas. 
When she handles a patient, you can tell in her eyes that she wants this to move forward.   
It’s not about her. It is about her protocol being used.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Anyone else looking to give us further information?  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on HB 1359. We can sit on this or pass it so it can 
go to the conference committee to iron out the rough edges.  
 
Senator Wanzek: Moved Do Pass on HB 1359.  
Senator Bekkedahl:  Seconded the motion.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 14 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent 
Motion Carried. 
 
The bill goes back to the Human Services Committee and Senator Anderson will carry 
the bill.   
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      Committee Clerk: Nicole Klaman 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide for a study of the efficacy of hyperbaric oxygen therapy; and to 
provide an appropriation. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Anderson:  Opened hearing 

 

Senator Lee:  We had no objection to effective treatment as a result of hyperbaric oxygen 
therapy, that is not the problem here at all.  The constitution in a limited law provision does 
not permit state money to be given directly to any entity.  I thought I had a copy in my desk 
drawer and didn’t so I will make sure you get a copy.   
This is why I’ve visited with a variety of people including Dr. Josh Winn at the medical school 
and he understood that as well.  He suggested away that we could do this.  Instead, give 
money to the University on a research project on hyperbaric oxygen therapy and having a 
supervising physician, an oversite by someone to be a neutral party.  They may then see to 
it that the research being done the way it needs to be for proper consideration for grants.  
Also, visiting with majority leader Wardner and appropriations chair Homberg they thought 
the way to do it was $100,00 in state money with a 2 to 1 private match.  I visited with Pat 
Trainor several times with Dakota Medical Foundation and I know he’s firmly behind this as 
well.  In concept, we are as well but financing is the issue.  It’s not the therapy, it’s the 
financing.  Also, we found other grants which the application to be made but it’s got to be in 
the proper form. 
He suggested money to the University They thought the way to do it was 100,000 state 
money with a 2 to 1 match.   
 
Chairman Anderson:  Do you understand my bill or the way it was wrote? 
 
Senator Anderson:  I don’t know that we have questions however to take state money and 
pay for any form of medical treatment for anyone is different than what we use to do.  We 
have autism vouchers, we have brain injury vouchers, all of which you have to qualify for to 
pay for your care under Medicaid or whatever else.  It would be very unusual for us to take a 
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pot of money and say we are going to directly pay for care for anything.  Regardless of 
whether it works or whether it doesn’t.  It might even be an approved therapy, that we know 
works.  We still are not going to take money and pay for it directly.  That’s where we are 
coming from. 
  
Chairman Anderson:  Senator Anderson, I guess I have a slight disagreement with that.  We 
fund the Dept. of Commerce a huge amount of money every session and they end up funding 
projects all over.  So I don’t think this is really unique in doing that. 
 
Senator Roers: Representative Anderson, we are funding the Dept. of Commerce and they 
decide but I think the problem with this is there is no one else that could even apply for the 
money.  It’s one person that is even eligible.  Whereas the Dept. of commerce will put out a 
call for a request for proposal to decide how to divvy out the money.  I think this is the 
challenge here, talking about 1 provider. 
 
Chairman Anderson:  I will agree, we are talking about one provider but her data which I 
gave to you and she continues to collect it.  Whatever she’s doing works well and I’m not 
sure anyone else could do it with her protocol, this is why I wanted to funnel the study to her. 
 
Senator Roers:  We’ve only heard the good stories.  
 
Chairman Anderson:  I provided some information for your review.  I’ve heard cases of 
people saying it didn’t work, but she may not have been given all the data.   
 
Senator Lee:  Then she would be the only person to qualify for the University of ND Medical 
School and Research when they call for proposals.  In which case, it would be a scientifically 
supervised properly done research project.  We don’t also know the long term impacts.  It 
doesn’t matter to me what the science or the data is.  I’m talking about the process and want 
to do it correctly.  The process has to be done the way proper medical research is done. 
 
Chairman Anderson:  Currently the money goes through Dakota Medical Foundation, they 
handle the grant.   
 
Senator Lee:  But that is private, I don’t care what you do privately.   
 
Chairman Anderson: Is that a problem sending the money through the Dakota Medical 
Foundation? 
 
Senator Lee: We can’t give money to Dakota Medical Foundation either.  Unless it’s made 
available to everybody.  Constitutionally this is inappropriate. 
 
Chairman Anderson:  I’ve been told numerous times that money has been issued to fund 
studies. 
 
Senator Lee: They can do whatever they want Representative Anderson, we can’t 
constitutionally have tax dollars going directly to an entity.  We do not fund direct care for 
diabetics.  The other important thing, we have insurers who are very interested in seeing 
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what is going on but they cannot look at reimbursing any of this treatment for anybody of their 
insured and same with Medicaid if we don’t have the proper longitudinal studies type 
proposals in order to have proper research project.  Which can be done through that UND 
proposal.  I would think they would be happier not being involved with a state project to avoid 
the who gets how much of what ever conversation. 
 
Senator Anderson:  If this were a Dept. of commerce program to do medical research for 
business developments, then I could see or maybe we could give grants for business 
development.  The problem I have is paying for funds directly.  Let me give you a quote I 
have a fellow in my church coffee every Sunday morning.  His grandson went to this clinic 
and they provided him a free hyperbaric oxygen treatment as a result of a concussion he got 
in wrestling.  He thought it helped, at least short term, obviously there was only short term 
after the thing happened.  I said to that constituent, “So then the State of ND spend money 
to fund those treatments directly?”  He said, “Of course not!” and that’s kind of the way I feel 
about it. 
 
Chairman Anderson: Senator Anderson, I’ve talked to Dr. Denim several times about the 
cases where the data wasn’t there.   Some probably had more than one concussion and 
some of them received 1 treatment and left.  So it’s not a thorough test.  The one’s that have 
gone there several times and had the recommended treatments have done very well.   
 
Senator Anderson:  Here I want to reinforce what Senator Lee said; we are not talking about 
a treatment and whether it works or whether it doesn’t. We are talking about what ND should 
be doing with people’s money.  We feel like paying directly for care for somebody in these 
situations, whatever the ailment or treatment is, is not appropriate way to go about it. 
 
Rep Schneider:  Did the Senate explore the possibility of a pilot project or some of the things 
we see within the Dept. of Human Services where money goes to a nonprofit organization 
such as Dakota Medical foundation might be to have a pilot project on brain injury and 
treatment for it.  Would that be a possibility to explore?  How do we get money to 211 for 
instance.  It’s thru Human Services to a nonprofit entity to run a particular program that 
nobody else runs. 
 
Senator Lee;  The 211 example is where there are criteria that have to be met and it’s a  
contract, providing after hours call answering for example.  Everybody within the state that 
makes a call to 211.  It’s no different than any other approved provider that has a contract to 
provide those services.  Whether it’s an intermediate for SIIF Facility and it’s no different from 
any approved provider that is qualified for reimbursement that has a contract to provide those 
services.  This doesn’t qualify, it hasn’t gone through that.  Let’s go back to FDA research 
levels. If when looking at a drugs, they are doing their lab work.  A petri dish process, then it 
moves to animals, then it moves to healthy adults, then it goes to adults or children that have 
the condition.  There is a protocol that is important in this whole thing.  I think the enthusiastic 
support you have already for Dakota Medical Foundation, would provide far fewer strings but 
will have a hard time using taxpayers money.  The Dept. of Human Services does not 
entertain grant opportunities. They have particular services that have to be done, they write 
up what it takes to do that and the people that want to do it will offer their services.  First Lake 
is the only one in the case of 211 then that is the one who is likely to get the contract. 
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Chairman Anderson:  I did try to go through Medicaid to start with.  The amount of money 
needed, I had no chance. So I went back to find the minimum amount to get the insurance 
data was needed for moderate to severe concussions.  Dr. Denim is working on acute, all 
the data shows it works.  I’m trying to get the moderate to severe part of the equation.  I don’t 
have a problem going through UND Medical School, but I want the money to be funneled 
through Dakota Medical Foundation and I’m up front about that, and get to Dr. Denim.  What 
she is doing appears to be working better than what anyone else is doing. 
 
Senator Roers:  I think the challenge we have is the goal where this can become FDA 
approved and sent through insurance.  Sending it through a proper research study, she will 
get accreditation the correct way and then the ability to help so many more people. We are 
trying to help her, we are not here trying to hurt this research project.  We trying to make it 
work and have the a credibility to be able to help so many more people by doing it in a valid 
research methodology. 
 
Chairman Anderson:  If we went through the Dakota Medical Foundation,  what is the time 
frame to get the information collected?  I know I was told yesterday that she can’t get any 
more people in there than she has now.  They are going to expand that place greatly.  It’s 
the people that believe in it and I don’t think they would be coming back if it didn’t work. 
 
Senator Roers:  I apologize upfront as my next question may sound rude, but does she 
really need our money? 
 
Chairman Anderson:  She’s only testing acute. She needs a group of people that have had 
concussions for a number of years.  So that is the data she’s working for.  I’m not working 
with any of the acute cases.  I’m trying to get the data.  A lot of people with concussions are 
on Medicaid.  I know a couple in Rugby that can’t go there because they don’t have the 
money.  Right now we spend a lot of money per year on head injuries and this would reduce 
it. 
 
Senator Roers:  The intent behind my question was really to say, if she doesn’t have capacity 
to care for any more patients, we could give her all the money in the world and that doesn’t 
change her capacity. 
  
Chairman Anderson:  The capacity is coming.  Right now ND spends ten million dollars a 
year on head related injuries and services and I know this would reduce it by half.  I could go 
through UND Medical School but Pat Trainor is used to working on this and I would like the 
money to go through Dakota Medical Foundation and that is how it’s worded. 
 
Senator Lee: Of the 2 million Mr. Therelson is giving, at least 1.3, by the assets of her clinic 
they will be providing this care.  They will assemble this data because right now it’s the 
equivalent of an electronic shoebox because she is so busy.  The process needs to be 
followed, better outcomes for the patient.  It takes some time to get to the 4th quarter of the 
football game. 
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Chairman Anderson:  I know she’s had issues with the data, however she’s upgrading that 
now. 
 
Senator Lee:  Then she will be ready to go and able to apply for other grants.  Pat has told 
me we are going to help her with the data and grant applications.  Then everything will fall 
into place but not overnight.  This way all the insurers and Medicaid will cheerfully pay for 
better outcomes for the patient, lower costs in the treatment and ultimately everybody wins. 
 
Rep. Schneider: Why was the money cut down and additional barriers added, two for one 
match? 
 
Senator Lee:  Appropriations was never going to approve the original amount. We had to 
have the match and go through the medical school in order for it to go through the Senate.   
 
Chairman Anderson:  I’m committed to this and will find a way.  
 
 
Chairman Anderson:  Closed meeting 
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A BILL for an Act to provide for a study of the efficacy of hyperbaric oxygen therapy; and to 
provide an appropriation. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman D.  Anderson:  Opened the Conference committee hearing on HB 1359.  I’ve 
been involved with traumatic brain injury since 2011.  I’ve worked with several people who 
have suffered, one you met Hannah Anderson.  There are several others as well, you’ve not 
met.  When I first got involved with Hyperbaric, I asked to go through the facility.  I talked to 
a bronc rider, he said he’d been kicked in the head so many times he could no longer stay at 
his ranch without a treatment.  Explained other situations. They all seemed to show great 
improvement. This started when an individual I worked with didn’t have insurance and that is 
what got the ball rolling.  I’ve been accused of being a part of the clinic, and I am not.  I know 
you don’t like the funding mechanism in this.  It’s in Appropriations on the house side in SB 
2012.  Any comments? 
 
Senator J.  Lee:  I think we’ve made it clear since the beginning, we are not saying this is an 
effective treatment.  The appropriate thing is to make sure that the information is put together 
in an appropriate scientific manner so that the insurers including Medicaid are willing to 
support it.  They are watching this.  The whole program ought to be moving towards that kind 
of approval. There isn’t any question we are anxious to see how this will work.  We hope it 
will work for everyone in the best way possible. However, the Appropriations group is done 
with it on our side.  They would not look at anything over $100,000 in the match with a 
program that went to the Medical schools. With a $2 million grant and less interest in 
providing additional state money.  It would be at the most $100,000 with a 2-1 match and 
done through the medical school as done in the original proposal.  The research must be 
done in order for it to be proper.   
 
Chairman D. Anderson:  I agree, get the data so the insurance accepts it.  As far as the 
money amount goes, I tried for the minimum amount of money that would work to get the 
data.  Maybe it is not the proper way to fund it but I had no other way to fund it.  I tried to go 
through Human Service budget, and that didn’t work.  Maybe I would have been better off 
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going to the Department of Commerce.  Now this late in the process, I am going to have to 
do what I’m going to do.  It will go to Appropriations.  I know Rep. Tveit is being treated for 
West Nile virus and she is improving.  This works, I know it works. 
 
Senator J. Lee:  I am not trying to speak for my colleagues. 
 
Rep. D. Anderson:   I know we have to have the data, that was the whole purpose going 
here is to get the insurance company to cover it.  I think we spend $10 million a year on 
traumatic brain services and I don’t see that we get much benefit from it.  Why we don’t try 
to fix the problem and hopefully we would save money there.   I would like to see having a 
good policy, better outcomes and save money and I think this will do it so that is why I am 
pursuing it.   
 
Senator Anderson:  My feelings are pretty much the same as Senator Lee’s.  No problems 
with the treatment or outcomes and no question it works in many cases.  The problem lies in 
the funding of this, and we do not fund them directly.  The way it was in the Senate it sounded 
like there was some private donors who would step up through the University of North Dakota 
and the study that would reach the research criteria that they would set is the best way to get 
it published.  Once it is published like other studies has been it begins to get the insurance 
companies to pay for it as a regular treatment.  We did not see in the Senate that they had 
the data together or the institutional review board to get things ready. 
 
Chairman D.  Anderson: In that hearing the last thing I heard was 11:30 am the Senate 
requested some data and we agreed to get you some data but you voted a do not pass out 
of the committee on the same day. 
 
Senator J. Lee:  We voted on it right away not because of the data not being acceptable but 
because of the funding mechanism here.  Not whether or not it works.  There are a lot of 
people that are interested in this.  There is a process.  The insurance and Medicaid, CMS, 
aren’t going to approve it because we think it is a good idea it has to be done because there 
is process that is followed.  We thought with UND being involved we thought was a good 
recommendation.  We altered it and changed it.  I don’t recall a do not pass.   What we sent 
to you was with UND and $100,000 and a 2-1 match because that what Appropriations said 
they would do.  It still can be put together to make this acceptable to the payers.  It is a bad 
idea to be sending money directly to any individual for any particular cause.  
 
Chairman D. Anderson:  That may be correct but I know we have done it numerous times. 
Such as in the oil business we sent some for pipeline studies. It’s on the record. 
 
Senator J. Lee:  But it is not a medical thing. It is different for medical procedures.  It doesn’t 
go to an individual where this is talking about giving money directly to a physician. This is an 
enormous Pandora’s box, never mind the constitutionality.  Funding directly to an individual 
for any cause, we cannot be going there. 
 
Chairman D. Anderson:  I understand your point.  However, I do believe we should be a 
leader in the state especially with the Congressional delegation coming to Fargo next week. 
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Rep. Schneider:  In both of your discussions can we conceive any idea to marry a research 
component to Dakota Medical Foundation.  
 
Senator J. Lee: I visited with Pat Traynor, Dakota Medical Foundation and they understand 
the importance of that.  His board is primarily physicians and business people who are 
connected and they get it.  That is a good involvement and they are very supportive of 
exploring this opportunity.   But I think it’s way better to stay at the private side than 
government involvement. 
 
Rep. Schneider:  Is there a way that the Dakota Medical Foundation could pull in a research 
component rather than go through UND? 
 
Chairman D. Anderson:  They will go through UND, I already talked to them about that. I 
know how important the data is.  My whole goal here is to get the insurance companies get 
on board. 
 
Senator Roers:  You say there is no problem going with UND.  So where is the problem 
now? 
 
Chairman D. Anderson:  To make sure the research goes through Dr. Denham’s clinic 
because her protocol is working best.  
 
Senator Roers:  From what I understand, she’s the only one that qualifies.  So I’m struggling 
to see where the disagreement is.  I feel we are more on the same page than before.  What 
change could be made from the way the Senate passed it out that would make you feel more 
comfortable with this?  
 
Chairman D. Anderson:  I would have to just look for money and investors.  I have a hard 
time asking people for money when I think the state should show some leadership here.  
 
Rep. Devlin:  Is there any chance the Senate would increase the $100,000 to a more 
acceptable level for the House?  Would the Senate increase that to $250,000?  
 
Senator Anderson:  I have no problem with trying an increased amount but Senator Lee is 
the one that went before the Senate Appropriations committee with this.  
 
Chairman D. Anderson:  Then if we get close I will talk to Pat Traynor and others to get the 
money.  Any way we can make it work that is what I want to do.  
 
Senator J. Lee:   What are they doing with the $2 million? 
 
Chairman D. Anderson:  The way it was set up it originally it got $335,000 she thought she 
could treat 30 patients up to 40 treatments.  That is what it was based on and it was about 
$11,000 per patient is what the funding was.  I do believe in Hanna Anderson’s case she only 
had 10 treatments.  So Dr. Denham may be able to treat 60 or 70 patients with that amount 
of money.   
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Senator J.  Lee:  And you don’t see the problem with the money going into treatments and 
not putting some of it into what we are talking about here. 
 
Chairman D. Anderson:  No, the data has to go to the UND Medical Foundation.  I did ask 
Dr. Wynne how much it would cost and he didn’t know exactly what they would need. He 
does want us to come down and visit with him.  
 
Senator Roers:  If we went to Appropriations with half of the $335,000 that was in there 
originally and would just have a 1-1 match instead of a 2-1 match. That would be $167,500. 
Would that be better?  
 
Chairman D. Anderson:  $200,000 would be better and then it would be easier to get the 
rest of it.  Talk to appropriations and see what you can come up with.  
 
Senator Anderson:  I am willing to make a motion that we would change the dollar amount 
and leave everything else the same.  I make a motion to say that the Senate would recede 
and further amend to $200,000. 
 
Rep. Devlin:  Seconded.  
 
Senator Roers:  I wonder if we don’t want to word that as not to exceed 200,000 with a 2 to 
1 match.  So if they don’t get an exact $400,000 match they can still go up to the whatever 
the match is or they needed.  Once UND finds out what it will cost them it might change the 
parameters to what it would cost to conduct a study. 
 
Chairman D. Anderson:   I will have to try to get a matching amount for whatever they need 
to cover their data collection from grants hopefully.  The way it is now it says the sum of 
$100,000 or so much of the sum as necessary so it is already there.  We just are changing it 
from $100,000 to $200,000.  Any further discussion?  
 
Roll call vote for the Senate recede from Senate amendments and amend from $100,000 
to $200,000.    Yes   4   No  2    Absent   0.   
 
Motion fails.  
 
Senator Roers:  I can make a motion to accede and further amend to $150,000 instead of 
$200,000.  Motion dies for lack of a second.     
 
Chairman D. Anderson:   We could meet again. 
 
Senator J. Lee:   I would like to see another meeting and see if we can find another pathway 
here.  Maybe we could explore a voucher program to help people who cannot afford this 
treatment and be able to access Dr. Denham’s system.  
 
Senator Roers:  one of the differences I see between the current programs that we have 
and the ones you are proposing is they are all generally medically accepted treatments and 
this is not.  I think we need to get this concept that we have seen benefit people be generally 
medically accepted and then vouchers may be a conversation down the road.  



House Human Services Committee  
HB 1359 
4/16/19 
Page 5  
   

Senator J. Lee:  Could there be a pilot medical project on this? 
 
Senator Roers:  I believe the chairman tried to do all of those routes and none of those were 
available for this program.  
 
Chairman D. Anderson:   People who have traumatic brain injury are not at the same level 
at getting services as someone with a disability.  They are in a category all by themselves 
and I was talking with some people and they just don’t know what to do.  If we could get them 
treated maybe it wouldn’t be an issue.  There are a lot of families out there with no place to 
go.  We will meet again.  Meeting adjourned.  
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Rep. D. Anderson:  Opened the Conference Committee on HB 1359.  Yesterday we were 
talking about adding additional money.  Did you come up with a figure or anything you 
wanted?  
 
Senator J.  Lee:  I did visit with someone in Appropriations and I don’t think we will be getting 
any more money. With the $2 million dollars and other support they should be able to make 
it.  It would move along much more quickly than if the state is involved.  

 
Rep. D. Anderson:  I did talk to Pat Traynor and he isn’t enthused about getting grant money 
and I talked a few people from the insurance industry and they are still trying to get more 
data from Dr. Denham. I think the big hang up is over protocol.  This will go to the 
appropriations committee and we will probably have to go from there.  
 
Rep. Devlin:  I don’t think we will settle this anywhere between here so I will move that the 
House accede to the Senate amendments on HB 1359. 
 
Rep. Schneider:  Seconded.  
 
Roll Call Vote:  Yes  5  No   1  Absent 0.  Motion carries.  
 
House carrier is  Rep.  D. Anderson.   Senate carrier is Senator J. Lee.  
  
Rep. D. Anderson:  Meeting adjourned on HB 1359.  
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D U nable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by : Senator Anderson 

Representatives 

Chairman D .  Anderson 
Rep. Devlin 
Rep. Schneider 

Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count 

House Carrier 

4/11 4/16 

h h 
h h 
h h 

Yes: 4 

Yes No 

X 
X 
X 

3 0 

Seconded by : _ R_e_._p_. _ D_ e_ v_l i _n _______ _ 

Senators 4/11 4/16 Yes 

Senator J. Lee (Chairperson) h h 
Senator Anderson h X 
Senator'Roers h h 

Total Senate Vote 1 

No :  2 Absent: 0 

Senate Carrier -----------

LC Number of amendment 

No 

X 

X 

2 

LC Number of engrossment 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

To amend to increase $ 1 00 , 000 to $200 ,000 . 

Motion fa i led. 

----------



Date: 4/1 7/20 1 9  
Roll Call Vote # :  1 

2019 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

B I LL/RESOLUTION NO . HB 1 359 as (re) engrossed 

House Human Services Committee 
Action Taken IZI HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments 

D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments and further  amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as fo l lows 

D U nable to agree , recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by : _R_ e�p_. _D _ev_ l _in _____ _ Seconded by: Rep . Schneider 

Representatives 4/17 

Chairman D .  Anderson X 
Rep .  Devlin X 
Rep .  Schneider X 

Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count Yes: 5 

House Carrier Rep. D. Anderson 

Yes 

X 
X 

2 

No 

X 

1 

Senators 4/17 

Senator J. Lee (Chairperson) X 
Senator Anderson X 
Senator K. Roers X 

Total Senate Vote 

No :  1 Absent: 

Senate Carrier Senator J. Lee 

Yes No 

X 
X 
X 

3 0 

0 

LC Number of amendment 

LC Number 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

Motion carried . 

of engrossment ----------



Com Conference Committee Report 
April 18, 2019 8:31AM 

Module ID: h_cfcomrep_70_007 
House Carrier: D. Anderson 

Senate Carrier: J. Lee 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1359, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. J. Lee, Anderson, K. Roers 

and Reps. D. Anderson, Devlin, Schneider) recommends that the HOUSE ACCEDE 
to the Senate amendments and place HB 1359 on the Seventh order. 

Reengrossed HB 1359 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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2019 TESTIMONY 

HB 1359 
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Non-Hea l i ng Wound of the Bra in  
Physical Abuse - 9 years after Injury - 21 y. female 

Pre-HBOT 1 . 5 Post-HBOT 1 . 5 

No wound wi l l  heal without oxygen!  

What i s  the d ifference between the d iabetic non-heal ing foot wound and  the non
heal ing brain Injury? Essential ly noth ing. FDA has a l ready approved HBOT for 

3 kinds of non-heal ing wounds and 3 neurological Inju ries! 

• 



3 1  yea r o ld  S IX  yea rs out  from m u lt ip le  concuss ions .  Su ic ida l .  , . @ 
JghtEye 

He  was tea rfu l when we d iscussed how bad h is b ra i n-eye fu nct ion was, but 
H BO ca n he l p .  
Repeat R ightEye was  18 days later, after 20 H BO treatments .  H is b rother  
was tea rfu l over the repeat as  he  had seen the imp rovements a nd 
wi l l i ngness to l ive a nd  be i nvo lved i n  l ife aga i n .  

Circu la r  Track ing 

Left Eye 

RIGHT EYE LEFT EYE 

S P  % : 86 .49 SP % : 88 .20 

Brain Hea lth I nd icator  

Dysfunctional My Score : 38 
0 1 0  

��- :: ... �r� .1 
- kt �7 

2:;.0 ___ 30.,_ 40 

1 1 
Right  Eye 

Overactive right Superior Obl ique and/or 
Underactive ri ht medial or inferior 

Translational 
View 

M uscles in red 
· i nd icate 
dysfunction 

Functional 

50 : - - - · ·so· · - - - - - - · :;a · · : 80 

Left Eye 

No imbalance 

Efficiency : 30.47 Efficiency: 26.80 
When looking down �e moves outward. 

1----�----ib..=-----=----=j This A-pattern extropia is caused by an imbalance between the eye m uscles. . . . . . .  �-------
S
_

ta
_b_

i
_
l i
..:.
ty _______ -f Typical symptoms:  headaches, eye fat igue, sleep d isturbances, dizziness, l ight and sound sens1t1v1ty. binocu lar v1s 1on 

Right Eye Left Eye issues. 
t r Typical risks: fal l ing, driving at n ight, low energy and fatigue, impaired focus and concen ra ion.  

Trop ia : 1 . 37 Depth : - 22 .65 mm 

RIGHT EYE LEFT EYE 

5 2° : 96 . 1 8% 5 2° : 99.43% 

2° and 5 4° : 3 .66% 2° and 5 4° : 0 . 53% 

> 4° : 0 . 1 6% > 4° : 0 .04% 

RIGHT EYE LEFT EYE 

S P % :  80.73 SP % :  8 1 .99 

Efficiency : 42.97 Efficiency: 40 .34 

Horizonta l  Speed & Target ing 
Right  Eye 

z 

Left Eye 

RIGHT EYE LEFT EYE 

Pu rsu its 
My Score %i le 

27 21 

Saccades 
My Score %i le  

47 5 3  PURS U IT 

F ixations 
• Eyes are not working opt imal ly when having to track a n  object. 
• The brain areas that may be affected are the cerebel lum and/or parietal 
lobe. 

My Score 

79 

%i le  

82 

* Typical symptoms: impaired tracking abi l it ies, sensory d isturbances 

• Typical risks: m isjudging speed _of moving objects _ (e . g .  cars when 
driving), catch ing a bal l ,  left and r ight f ield of view d ifferences. 

Vert ical Tracki ng 

Right Eye Left Eye 

Distance: 6mm Distance: 3mm 
¾ile:  1 1  %i le : ti:! - - - - - - r - - - - - - - 1 ...,. f - - - -

I i , , I ' 

LEFT EYE , 
C'D Of_ Q1 0 '?  

Vertical  Speed & Target i ng  

Right Eye Left Eye 

, I I 4 if: 

RIGHT EYE LEFT EYE 
T /J. /mm, 1 1 nn TA Imm\ · 1 0  �?  



® 
RightEye 

LESSONS LEARNED :  Even 6 yea rs l ate r, H BO ca n he l p .  
Th ree weeks a nd twenty t reatments saved t he  l ife of a ve ry ca pa b le  pe rson .  
M a ny peop le  have bette r than  "Fu n ct iona l"  b ra i n -eye coord i n at ion .  

r-------------------�--------------------·- ···----· ----------==-s 
Ci rcu la r  Track ing  

Right Eye 

RIGHT EYE LEFT EYE 

S P % : 97. 8 8  S P % : 9 5 . 5 1  

Bra i n  Health I nd icator 

My Score @ 

,..-,...,;,;;...--�2�0 __
_ ,

3�0
,__ 

40 50 

� -----1.....---1 __ I I 
Translationa l  

View 

Functional 

60 70 

' ' - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Left Eye 

-
No imbalance 

M uscles i n  red 
ind icate 

dysfunctio n  Overactive l e ft  Superior Oblique and/or 
Underactive left medial o r  inferior rectus Efficiency : 1 2 . 3 0  Efficiency: 1 1 .44 

-=-----==_,_ ________ ....J. When looking down lefl eye moves outward. 
Stab i l ity This A-pattern exlropia is caused by an imbalance between the eye muscles. 

-------------'---------J" Typica! symptoms: headaches, eye fatigue, sleep disturbances, dizziness, l ight and sound sensitivity, binocular vision 

;,/ Right Eye ;Left Eye ·ssues. 
Typical risks: fa l l ing,  driving at night, low energy and fat igue, impaired focus and concentration. 

Trop ia : 0 . 32 Depth : - 52 .37 mm 

R IGHT EYE LEFT EYE 

,; 2° : 95 .72% 5 2° : 96. 1 6% 

2° and ,; 4° : 2 . 1 2% 2° and ,; 4° : 1 .64% 

> 4° : 2 . 1 6% > 4° : 2 .20% 

Horizonta l  Track ing 
R i g h t  Eye 

� �-�- �- ,:,:- �-'llSe���l""',_o;#:i r -��,,,..,,��'"""��""" 
1 0 istance: 3 m m  '\.) 
•¾i le :5• Left Eye 

R IGHT EYE LEFT EYE 

S P % :  96. 8 1  S P % :  98.46 

Efficiency : 1 2 .99  Efficiency 1 3 .21  

H orizontal S peed & Target ing 

R IGHT EYE 
TA / m m \ · a t;A 

Right Eye 

Left Eye 

LEFT EYE 
TA f ......, ......, \  · .., ..,  r::n 

Pu rsu its 
My Score %i le 

63  80 

Saccades ! .  
My Score %i le 

64 81 PURSU IT  

F ixations 
• Eyes are not working opt imal ly when having to track an object. 

I My Score 

• The brain areas that m ay be affected are the cerebel lum and/or parietal 
lobe. 

%i le 

I 68 70 

" Typical symptoms:  impaired tracking  abi l i t ies,  sensory disturbances . 
... Typical risks: m isjudging speed of moving objects (e .g .  cars when 
driving), catching a ball , lefl and right field of v iew differences. 

Vert ical Track ing 

Right  Eye Left Eye 

Distance:  1 m m  Distance:  2 m m  
%ile:  %He:  i9 - - - - - - r - - - - - - - , -

' I 

' ' 
Distance: 2 Distanc 
%He:  . !J 1 % i l  

_ _ _ _ _ _  ij _ _ _ _ _ _ _  _ 

\ 

PLO : 
6.32mm 
ITT1!!'47 

R IGHT EYE LEFT EYE 

Vert ica l  Speed & Ta rget in g  

Right Eye Left Eye 

RIGHT EYE LEFT EYE 



Budget : 
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H BO treatment u s i ng acute concu ss i on  p rotoco l  

G0277 

99 183 

$85 (2 )  

$ 107 

$ 170 

$107 

$277 · pe r tx (Medicare rate) 

20-40 treatments @ $277 is  $5,540 - $11,080 

30 pat ients, 20-40 treatments each  pat i ent  

$166,200 - $332,400 



Cost to Pat ient 

;113 /35q 
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Each 1 5  po in t  I Q  i ncrease trans lates to about $20 , 000 i n  i ncome.  

Persons who suffer from a si ng le  mTB I  have a future lifetime 
income loss of 50%.  
(Matched to themselves and  the i r  non- inj u red cou nte rparts , 
matched for ed ucation , i nte l l igence ,  etc . , Gamboa , Ch icago 
School  of Economics) 

45%> wi l l  be u nemp loyed 2 years post i nj u ry 

33% wi l l  have "anger" issues ri s i ng  56 . 7% with co-morb id  
depress io n .  

1 4 . 9 %  wi l l  become substance abusers .  



Safety 

H BO i s  a safe p roced u re .  
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The U n ited States A i r  Fo rce Schoo l  of Ae rospace Med i c i ne  d id a l ongte rm fo l low

u p  study  of 563 pat ie nts, each of whom had  more tha n 20 d a i ly H BO thera p ies of 

90 m i n utes of oxygen b reath i ng at 2 .4  ATA. The fo l l ow u p  per iod was s ix  months 

to e ight yea rs .  No chronic or late effects due to HBO were seen . Cata ra cts 

occu rred i n  o n ly two pat ie nts (a poor ly contro l l ed d i a bet ic  a nd  a 67 yea r o ld  man  

on  h igh  dose ste ro ids ) .  

D ive rs if i ed C l i n i ca l Services d id a n  a na lys i s  of  adve rse events i n  a l l  t he i r  cente rs 

fo r 2009-2010 .  They exam i ned 340 hosp ita l -based outpat ient  wou nd cente rs, 

89% treat i ng o n ly F DA a pproved i nd icat ions .  

Monoplace Chamber Adverse Events Associated with Hyperbaric Oxygen Treatment (Tx) 

Tota l events i n  2 yea rs AE pe r 10,000 Tx 

N u m be r  of t reatme nts 463, 293 

Com p l icat ions  1870 40 

Ea r Pa i n  928 20 

Confi nement a nx iety 407 8 

Hypog lycem ic event 244 5 

Sho rtness of b reath 1 12 2 

Se i zu re 88 2 

S i n u s  Pa i n  66 1 

Chest pa i n  25 1 

Sp l it by yea r :  

I n  2009 the re were 916 adverse events re ported fo r 207,479 treatments i n  7 ,871 

pat ients, rate 0.44% 

I n  20 10 the re we re 954 adverse events re ported fo r 255,814 t reatments in 9, 396 

pat ients, rate 0.37% 
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I n cidence of the 10 Most Common Compl icat ions 

( in Surgica l Patients) 

Compl ication No. of Patients Affected Incidence, % 

Death 128 2 . 70 

Othe r  m i sce l l a neous  101 2 . 17 

Wou nd Infect ion  88 1 . 89 

Rea d m iss ion  74 1 . 59 

U r i n a ry t ra ct i nfect ion 65 1 .40 

Pneu mon i a  60 1 . 29 

Dys rhyth m ia o r  a rrhyth mia  55 1 . 18 

Othe r  gastro i ntest i n a l  com p l icat io n 52  1 . 12 

Othe r  vascu l a r  comp l i cat ion 40 0 .86 

Resp i rato ry fa i l u re 37 0 . 79 

https ://ja  ma  network . com/jou rna l s/ja masu  rge ry /fu I l a  rti c le/2 12419 
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The Po lemics of Hyperba ric Med ic i ne 

Richard A. Neubauer, M.D. 
William S. Maxfield, M.D. 

Early History 

The history of modern hyperbaric medicine dates back to 
around 1 620, when Drebbel developed a one-atmosphere diving 
bel l .  Forty years later, Boyle and Gay-Lussac fomrnlated the 
General Gas Law. 

The modern age of hyperbaric medicine began in 1 937,  when 
Benke and Shaw used a hyperbaric chamber to treat decompression 
sickness (DCS) .  

It was not  unt i l  1 95 5  that interest awakened in using hyperbaric 
oxygenation therapy (HBOT) for conditions other than DCS .  That 
year, Churchill-Davidson began to use oxygen therapy in a 
hyperbaric chamber to treat radiotherapy-induced damage in 
cancer patients. In 1 956 ,  Boerema of Holland perfo1med the first 
reported heart surgery in a hyperbaric chamber. In 1 962, Sharp and 
Smith of Scotland were first to treat carbon monoxide poisoning by 
HBOT. In 1 965 ,  PeJTins in the United Kingdom showed the 
effectiveness ofHBOT in osteomyeliti s .  In 1 966, Saltzman et al. in 
the United States showed the effectiveness of HBOT in stroke 
patients . In 1 970,  Boschetty and Cernoch of Czechoslovakia used 
HBOT for multiple sclerosis .  In 1 97 1  Lamm of West Germany used 
HBOT for treatment of sudden deafness .  In 1 973 .  Thurston showed 
that H BOT reduces m011ality in myocardial infarction. '  

The Undersea Medical Society was formed i n  the United States 
in 1 967 ,  and added hyperbaric to its name in 1 986 .  

Forgotten Breakthroughs 

Most physicians have never heard of these breakthroughs .  
HBOT has been cal led the Cinderella of modern medicine. With no 
large pharmaceutical interest to nmture and protect i t ,  hyperbaric 
medicine languished. 

S ince it was not taught in medical schools, knowledge about 
HBOT was restricted primarily to the fields of diving and aerospace 
medicine-small niches in the medical community. Even the simple  
fact  that pressure increases the  concentration of oxygen in  tissues is 
not w i d e ly appre c i a t ed .  There  are no pharmaceut ic a l  
representatives to offer ' 'free" Continuing Medical Education on 
the gas laws .  In addition, HBOT reaches across all medical 
spec ialties and doesn ' t  readily fit into one of the compa11ments into 
which medicine has been balkanized since the end ofWorld War II .  

In the early 1 970s, George Hart, M.D. ,  was asked to chair a 
committee fo1med by the Socia l  Security Administration to decide 
what should and shouldn 't receive reimbursement for HBOT 
therapy. He was a naval officer at the time and received an order 
from his commanding officer to make sure that "stroke" did not 
appear as a covered indication, even though there was mounting 
evidence that HBOT worked for treating stroke patients . '  The 
explanation was that it would bankrupt the U .S .  Treasury if all the 
stroke patients in the United States wanted to receive HBOT for 
neurorehabil itation. 

Insurers tend to focus on immediate costs, and often fail to 
consider long-term savings from a given therapy. For example,  the 
fact that HBOT prevents 75 percent of all major amputations that 
would otherwise be necessary for diabetic wounds, with all the 
co l lateral costs and effect on qual ity of life, could not be factored 
into the decision about coverage of HBOT for diabetic foot 
wounds . The fact that the treatment worked was considered, but not 
the fact that it is cost-effective .  

For a t ime, cerebra l edema was a covered indication and 
ncurolo ical in · ury was cmg success u ly treated. This condition 
was, however, l ater removed from the Medicare coverage l i st-as a 
consequence, it is rumored, ofa conflict between two scienti sts. 

In 1 980, when the authors formed the American Col lege of 
Hyperbaric Medicine (ACHM) to foster the ethical advancement 
and expansion ofhyperbaric medicine, it appeared that hyperbaric 
medicine might be ready to make a major breakthrough. B .H .  
F ischer, M .D . ,  a tenured professor at New York University, became 
the principal investigator of a study funded by the Multip le 
Sclerosis (MS) Society. The MS Society in the United States had 
great difficulty accepting the results of the work Dr. F ischer had 
completed, and multip le revisions were required to weaken the 
conclusions sufficiently to satisfy the editors of the New England 
Journal of Medicine:' 

In a double-blind controlled study of patients with advanced 
chronic disabilities, Fischer found significant improvement in 
objective measurements, and the treatment effect persisted for at 
least one year. For reasons hard to explain, this study was never 
followed up, despite the positive results, and the treatment 
languished for lack of financial support and sponsorship . Indeed. 
Fischer lost his position, and his chamber was destroyed. 

In 1 983 , . the year that Fi scher 's  study was published, we 
became founding board members of the American Board of 
Hyperbaric Medic ine .  

Journa l  of  American Physicians and Surgeons Volume I O  Number I Spring 2005 1 5  
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Hyperba ri c Oxygen The ra py 

What is i t? 

B reat h i ng 100% oxygen i n  a pressu r i zed cha m ber/vesse l  

These a re med i ca l  g rade  cha mbers .  Phys i c i a n s u perv i s i on  i s  req u i red . 

These a re n ot the  soft s ided/bag/z i p pe r  cha m be rs p rofess i on a l  p l ayers 

b uy off t he  i nte rnet .  
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How does it work? 

Hyperba r i c  oxygen  the ra py does 4 bas i c  t h i ngs :  

1 .  Hype r-oxygenates the  t iss ues  to a l l ow t hem to repa i r  

2 .  Decreases swe l l i n g  

3 .  Tu rns  off i nf l a m mat ion 

4 .  St i m u l ates new b lood vesse l ,  a n d  n ew ce l l  g rowth ,  i n c l u d i ng b ra i n  

ce l l s  

-.r� H BOT: It's About Oxygen Satu ration 
The body's liquids are saturated with more oxygen, helping areas with compromised circulation. 

Before H BOT 

Image Courtesy of Dr. Stol ler 

After HBOT 

We increase the amount of oxygen in  the l iqu id pa rt of b lood 

by 500-1,200% based on the protoco l for i nj u ry. 

(as demonstrated by the wh ite bubb les) 
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1 .  Hype rba ric  Oxygen 'Therapy gets oxygen to damaged tissue 

to a l low them to repa i r  

N orma l ly, a l l  ce l l s  a re c l ose enough 

to a vesse l to get oxygen .  

Afte r a t ra u ma the  t i ss ue  i s  da maged 

a n d  some  ce l l s  ca n not get the  oxygen  

they need ,  espec ia l l y to repa i r  

t hemse lves .  I nj u red ce l l s  i n  b l u e  a nd  

dead  ce l l s i n  b l a ck .  

U nde r  hype rba r ic  cond it ions, oxygen 

gets to the i nj u red ce l l s  a nd l ets 

t hem repa i r . 
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2 .  Hyp�rba r ic  oxygen  the ra py dec rea ses swe l l i ng 

N orma l ly fl u i d  i n  eq u a l s  f l u id out .  Afte r tra u ma ,  i ncreased fl u i d  i n , the refo re swe l l i ng .  

With hyperba r ic, less  fl u i d i n , the refo re less  swe l l i ng .  

Blood 

I nflow 

Norma l Situat ion 

Dlb�· 0 . ..., .. 0 0 C) · ") -"' "' . 

.,, .• ,. · C) . ·::::> '.) ,, ·p O c, .. - ,. 

' ' ,, 
F i l t rat ion = Reso rpt ion 

I nterst i t ia l  F l u i d  Ba l ance 

B lood 

Outflow 

Trauma or I njury 
Increased I nflow from Vasod i lat ion 

..a\M o o o o o o lfil..e-:. 
D� o O o o O 0 

JJJJ , , I nflow Outflow 

F i lt ra t ion > Resorpt ion  

Decreased I nflow 
Swelling 

with Hyperbaric Oxygen ( vasoconstricth, . .  , 

I nflow Outflow 

F i l t rat io n < Reso rpt ion  

20-30% Red uct ion i n  Swe l l i ng  

But we still have tissue oxygenation 
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3 .  H BO m it igates the  i nfl a m mato ry response 

"U nde r  H BO cond it i ons, a l l  th e body' s  c l e a r  f l u i d s ca rry 
oxygen ,  th e re by e l im i n at i ng the  need fo r t he  
i nfl a m mato ry response ."  

Immune and Defense System Amplified by HBOT 

require up 
efficiently. 

Immune and de eose .,,htle cells 
(leu' ocytes) patrol through the body 
read to rea lo Ill ad•og patnog ns 
When activated they require up to 24 
X 02 to energize. 

en aciNa ed some large "' 1 e celis 
become posoners· (phagocytes) and 1.1se 
reac o yg n spe (ROS) • free 
radicals . IO bl' "' u the mos e ·ec 
p0c on or th par11C\J .ar pathogen T 
process 1s call phagocyrosis 
As the ,n ad1ng pathogens are broken 
part macrophage complete e clean up 

of ce 1u1ar debns 

ls (e hrocyttt) - RBC - are e ony o yg n carl)'lng cells und r normal orcumstances •nen e tra o 1g n ,s requ o 
ac ,va! 1m n r �pon blood I n rg in proc cal 1n, amma ,on (to se on fire) to allot. mor RBC o ,-.er 02 lo 
en r ,ze ht � 1 
Under Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy (HBOT) conditions. all of the body's cJear fluids carry oKygen, thereby eliminating the 
need for the innammatory response 

https :// sa rasga rde n  .o rg/wp-content/up loads/2013/12/Lyme-Disease-H BOT. pdf 
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4 .  Hyperb a r i c  oxygen thera py st i m u l a tes the  g rowth of 

n ew b l ood vesse l s  a nd  new ce l l s .  

H BO works fo r ch ron i c  i nj u r ies .  F DA app roved fo r 

d i a bet i c  foot u l ce rs, ch ron i c  bon e  i nfect ion s, etc . d ue to 

the  a b i l i ty to grow new b l ood vesse l s  a nd n ew ce l l s .  

After  seve ra l hype rba r ic treatments, new b lood vesse l growth beg i n s, 

resto r i ng  more norma l b lood fl ow, as  demonst rated to the  left . 

S u r ro u n d i ng ce l l s a re a b le to beg i n  to remove/repa i r  the t i s sue . 

• Necrotic cel l  • lschemic cel l  l njuried blood vessel 
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Refe r  to #3 : H BO tu rns  off i nf la m mat ion . The refo re, it does not matte r 
h ow l o ng ago t he  concuss ion  was, we a re see i ng g reat responses to 
stopp i ng post-concuss ion symptoms .  

Research Ties Inflammation To Post
Concussion Symptoms 

1 J • €' ' � "  , 1 '- , r:.  

itiftifi f ih:41 G•1 D Share 

R ese archers a t  r,lchla ster Un i  ers ity i n  Canada  ha  e ound evi dence supportin g  th e be l i e th at m'lammallon I s  a n  
underly i ng actor acIhtattng S} mptoms o traumatJc b ra i n  i nju r ies  

The stu dy pu b l t s h ed  i n  Bra ,n  Beha � ,or and .'mm..,flii} 
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We a re a hospita l g rade  center .  

H BO i s  a ve ry safe p rocedu re .  

The U n ited States A i r  Fo rce School  o f  Ae rospace Med ic ine d i d  a long term fo l low-up  study o f  563 
pat ie nts, each  of whom had more than  20 da i ly H BO thera p ies of 90 m i n utes of oxygen b reath ing at 2 .4 
ATA. The fo l low u p  pe r iod owas s ix months to e ight yea rs .  No ch ron i c  o r  l a te effects d ue  to H BO were 
seen .  Cata racts occu rred in on ly two patie nts (a poorly contro l led d i a bet ic a n d  a 67 yea r o l d  man  on 
h igh  dose ste ro i d s ) .  

D ive rsified C l i n ica l Se rvices d id  a n  ana lysis o f  adverse events i n  a l l  o f  the i r  centers for 2009-2010. They 
exa m ined  340 hosp ita l -based outpat ient wound  centers, 89% treat ing o n ly FDA app roved i nd ications .  

Monoplace Chamber Adverse Events Associated with Hyperbaric Oxygen Treatment (Tx) 

Tota l events in 2 yea rs AE per  10,000 Tx 
N u m be r  of t reatments 463,293 
Comp l icat ion s  1870 40 
Ea r Pa i n  928 20 
Confi nement a nx iety 407 8 
Hypog lycem ic event 244 5 
Shortness of b reath  112  2 
Se i zu re 88 2 
S i nus  Pa i n  66  1 
Chest pa i n  25  1 

Sp l it i nto yea rs :  

I n  2009 the re were 916  a dverse events reported fo r 207,479 t reatments i n  7 ,87 1 pat ie nts, rate 0.44% 

I n  2010 the re were 954 adverse events reported fo r 255 ,814 t reatments i n  9 ,396 pat ie nts, rate 0.37% 



Department of Human Services 
Medica l Services Division 

Med icaid Services for Ind ivid ua l s  with TBI 

C( 2017 CY 2018 
Hospita l Services $785,620 . 78 $7 12,276.03 
Physic ia n Services $97,360 . 67 $81 ,974 . 52 

Institutiona l Services 1 $4,495,720 . 33 $4,662,229. 79 

Wa iver Services 2 
$4,552,583 .44 $4,466,303 . 17 

Other Services $123,045 . 66 $187,751 . 45 

Tota l Pa id Amount 3 $10,054,330 .88 $ 10 ,1 10,534. 96 

Tota l 
$ 1 ,497,896. 81  

$ 179,335 . 19 

$9, 1 57,950 . 1 2  

$9,0 18,886 . 6 1  
$3 10,797 . 1 1  

$20, 164,865 .84 

1 Insitutional  Services incl udes nursing faci l ity, swi ng bed, and ICF. 
2 Wa iver Services incl udes services provided under one of ND Med ica id 's  

191 5(c) home and com munity based wa ivers. 
3 1 , 196 i nd iv iduals received Med ica id  services in either one or both years. 
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HBO treatment using acute concussion protocol 
G0277 $85(2) $ 1 70 
99 1 83 $ 1 07 $J.Q1 

$277 per tx (Medicare 
rate) 

20-40 treatments @ $277 is $5,540 -
$11 ,080 

30 patients, 20-40 treatments each patient 
$166,200 - $332,400 
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Good morning Mr. Chairman and members of the Human Services 

committee. 

Thank you for your time and service. 

My name is Austen Schauer, a Representative from West Fargo, 

District 13 .  

I t  i s  my honor to speak in  support o f  a Medicaid Pilot Project for 

Hyperbaric  Oxygen Treatment, House Bill 13 59.  

I have toured the Hyperbaric Oxygen Treatment Center or HBO in 

Fargo twice. 

I was extremely impressed with Dr. Daphne Denham and her team 

which includes an Optometrist from UND who helps with diagnosis .  

Dr. Denham is a surgeon by trade but moved into the study of 

hyperbaric treatment after her daughter suffered a serious 
concussion in 2 0 1 5 . 

Dr. Denham's  protocol is different from other Oxygen treatment 

facilities .  The results according to client testimony have been 
outstanding. The emphasis is to reduce inflammation in the brain 

after a concussion occurs . This reduction of swell ing can also  be 

used to treat other injuries .  

Much of Dr. Denham's  work is with adolescents . HBO treatment in 

Fargo has proven to help young people recover from the l ingering 

effects of a concussion.  Currently, the HBO Clinic in Fargo is offering 

free treatment to adolescents . This is made possible through the 

gifting of hotel developer Gary Tharaldson in partnership with the 

Dakota Medical Foundation .  

I 
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HBO treatment has also proven to help veterans suffering from Post
Traumatic Stress Disorder and depression. It has also  helped clients 
who continue to suffer from past brain injuries .  

Recently, I was at Sanford Hospital in Fargo waiting to visit a friend. 
I was on the phone talking to Rep.  Dick Anderson about hyperbaric 
treatment. A man in the waiting room approached me and said he 
overheard my conversation. He wanted me to know how Hyperbaric 
treatment has helped him. He said he was assaulted in 2005  and 
suffered a serious brain injury. He said he 's  had little relief over the 
years until undergoing hyperbaric treatment. He  said it has 
changed his life .  

We are asking you Mr.  Chairman and members of the Human 
Services Committee to provide help for those suffering from 
concussions and other brain injuries by supporting HB 13 59 .  

Thank you Mr. Chairman and I am open to questions .  
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Testimony for HB 1359 - Hyperbaric Oxygen Treatment 

My name i s  Dr .  David H .  B iberdorf. I am an  optometr ist who has p ract iced i n  G rand  Forks, North Da kota 

for over 30 yea rs where I subspecia l i ze in vis ion deve lopment, v is ion thera py and neuro-optometric 

rehab i l itat ion .  I a l so co l l a borate in research at the U n iversity of North Da kota with Dr. Dm itr i Poltavsk i  

i nvestigat ing the ab i l ity of ocu lomotor and e lect ro phys io logica l d iagnostics to p red i ct past h i story of 

concuss i on .  Our resea rch has been pub l ished i n  the Journa ls Vision Research, Brain Injury, a nd 

Optometry and Vision Science and has been cited i n  the Journal of Neurosurgery and  Journal of Neuro

Ophthalmology (see references be low) .  

In the concuss ion wor ld ,  new resea rch is  cha l l e ng ing the tradit iona l  approach to concuss ion 

management of "rest u nt i l  symptoms reso lve" . I t  suggests, in fact, that p ro longed rest adverse ly affects 

the pathophys io logy of concuss ion .  U nwitti ngly perhaps, th i s  "wa it and  see" a pproach can de lay the 

inst itut io n  of effective thera pies for acute concuss ion and may be detr imenta l  to recovery. Although the 

cu rrent management of concuss ions ca l l s  for ta rgeted i nterventions with therap ies such as  v is ion 

thera py, vesti bu l a r  therapy, and cogn it ive therapy for symptoms that do not resolve, these i ntervent ions 

ca n cause symptoms to become protracted and exacerbated from the lack of b ra i n  energy ava i lab le  for 

opt ima l  rehab i l itatio n .  Hyperbar ic oxygen treatment ear ly on  after head i nj u ry cou ld  potent i a l ly shorten 

the d u rat ion of acute concuss ion symptoms, speed up  retu rn-to- lea rn, return-to-p lay and return-to

work t ime  de lays a nd  a ugment the rehab i l itat ive benefits that ta rgeted thera pies for post-concuss ion 

syndrome current ly p rovide. 

On  J anua ry 14, 2018 I attended a meet ing organ i zed by a group  of sc ient ists, phys ic ia ns, engi neers, and 

ph i l a nth rop i sts who had a vis ion .  That v is ion was the esta b l i shment a hyperba r ic oxygen c l i n i c  i n  Fa rgo 

Nort h  Dakota for the p u rpose of treat ing pat ients who were suffer ing with acute concuss ions and post

concuss ion syndrome us i ng off- labe l  Hyperba r ic Oxygen .  A su rgeon from the Ch icago a rea by the name 

of Dr .  Dap h ne Denham was i n  attenda nce who had vast c l i n ica l exper ience with hyperbar ic oxygen 

treatment of acute a nd  chron ic  concuss ions .  Th is  group  hoped to uti l i ze my expert ise i n  ocu lomotor and 

v isua l p rocess ing to he l p  determ i ne the  overa l l  efficacy of  hyperbar ic oxygen t reatment for b ra in  i nj u ry. 

H istor ica l ly, efficacy stud ies of hype rbar ic oxygen have re l ied on  symptom su rveys and neu ro-cognitive 

meas u res befo re a nd  after hyperbar ic oxygen treatment . Because the visua l  system is so extens ively 

i nvolved in the bra i n's  functiona l  processes, it i s  qu ite sens itive to a ny a ltered neu ro log ica l  function .  

Objective measures of  eye movements, focus i ng mechan ism, pup i l l a ry dynamics, and  perceptua l  

p rocesses a re now be i ng used as evidence-based b ioma rkers for b ra i n  i nj u ries and i nterventiona l  

thera p ies .  

I ntr igued by the poss i b i l ity that  hyperba ric oxygen may reduce b ra i n  i nfl ammation, p revent the 

metabo l i c  concuss ion cascade and induce neu rop last ic ity, I agreed to loa n th i s  hyperbar ic  c l i n i c  over 

$200,000 i n  d iagnostic ophtha lm i c  equ i pment and  to vo l unteer my t ime to co l lect evidence-based 

outcome  data to exp lo re the efficacy of hyperba ric oxygen treatment of concuss ion .  Us ing FDA

app roved eye track ing techno logy, I have been gather ing data of acute and  ch ron ic  concussed patients 

rece ivi ng treatments at the hyperbar ic c l i n ic  in Fa rgo, North Da kota s i nce August of 2018. 



-

• 

-

//6 /3oc? 

Yi&l;q 

/Jj/./j 
So fa r, there is c lear c l i n ica l evidence of a more ra p id improvement of ocu lomotor performance and 

reduct ion of symptoms for the majority of pa rt ic i pat ing patients: more than one wou l d  otherwise expect 

us ing a "wa it a nd  see" a pproach.  Add it iona l  data from a prospect ive c l i n ica l tr i a l  to i nc lude such 

measures as  pup i l l a ry dynam ics, accommodative dynamics, vergence dynamics, visua l evoked 

potent i a l s, e lectroencepha lograpy and perceptua l-motor d iagnostics wi l l  be needed to better 

u ndersta nd  the mechan isms behind hyperbar ic oxygen treatment on bra i n  funct ions and the potenti a l  it 

may have for lower ing the overa l l  cost of hea lth ca re for bra i n  i nj u red patients. 

The i nfrastructure to i nvestigate prom is ing new c l i n ica l  tri a l s  using hyperba ric oxygen is now in p lace in 

the state of North Dakota . I wou ld  l i ke to encou rage the ND State Legis lature to support the fund ing of 

a Hyperbar ic Oxygen Med ica id P i lot Project for the benefit of its head i nju red citizens, the i r  fam i l ies and 

those i nvolved w i th  the i r  hea lth ca re support services . 

Thank  you for you r  t ime and consideration  of H B  1359.  

Dr .  David H .  B iberdorf 

G ra nd Forks, N D  
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January 1 6 , 20 1 9 
Testimony to House H uman Services 

H B  1 359 
Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy 

Dr. Edward F .  Fogarty 

Th is  is the testimony of Dr .  Edward F .  Fogarty of B ismarck, North 

Dakota regard i ng any bi l l  under cons ideration of the North Dakota 

Leg is latu re that i nvolves the use of hyperbaric oxygen therapy for 

neu ro log ica l  i nj u ry ,  specifica l ly but not l im ited to its use in  U . S .  

Veterans .  

F i rstly ,  am gratefu l to North Dakota Veterans Affai rs 

Commiss ioner Lonn ie Wangen for speaking these words on my 

behalf to the leg is lative members assembled today . My test imony 

regard i ng the issue of hyperbaric med ici ne for our cit izens is based 

u pon over a decade of med ica l  imag i ng analyt ics and va l idation of 

the resu lts of th is i ntervent ion with my academic med ici ne 

col leagues at the Lou is iana State Un ivers ity , led by Pau l G. Harch , 

M D . 

I n  my role  as the Chaiman of Rad io logy at the U n ivers ity of North 

Dakota School of Med ici ne, I have had the opportun ity to teach a 

number of ou r  state's veterans who have served the country pr ior 

to matricu lati ng i nto our state's  med ica l  schoo l . Many of these 

students and thei r  classmates have had the opportun ity to see see 

the powerfu l effects of hyperbaric medicine through our  review of 

cases from LSU wh ich a l low me to show them the physics of 

imag i ng as wel l  as the gas law physics of pressu re vessels .  Many 

of these cases document profound improvement i n  both imag ing 

fi nd ings and cl i n ica l  status. 

Page  1 of 5 
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e Having spent over a decade worki ng with LSU researchers on th is 

crit ica l issue for our nation 's veterans .  I am most g ratefu l to the 

network of North Dakotans who fi rst connected me to Dr. Harch in  

2007 . Our  research pub l icat ions i n  th is  arena of  i n novation have 

he l ped defi ne  the art and science of th is powerfu l med icine .  I t  has 

been an i ncred i ble privi lege to he lp advance the science wh i le  

advocati ng  for th is i ntervention for our  veterans .  

• 

-

Based on a l l  of the imag ing changes documented i n  the med ical 

l iteratu re in the use of H BOT for bra in  i nju ry ,  there shou ld be no 

doubt that it is  h igh ly efficacious .  I n  October of 20 1 7 , Is rael i  

researchers pub l i shed the fi rst M RI proof of wh ite matter tract 

regeneration i n  bra ins treated with H BOT for TB I . That same month 

our  LSU/U N D  team of researchers pub l ished a statistical ly 

s ign ificant decrease in su icida l  ideation with the use of hyperbaric 

med ic i ne i n  a portion of the LSU Phase 1 Safety tria l  

part ic ipants .  The regenerative effect of H BOT imp l ied by the 

i mag ing  fi nd i ngs in the LSU Phase 1 Tria l  pub l ished in the Journal 

of Neurotrauma in 201 2 has v irtua l ly been confi rmed by Shari 

Efrati , M D  and h is  col leagues i n  Is rael . I n  2007 , a study by led by 

Dr. S Thom at U n iversity of Pennsylvan ia showed stem cel ls  are 

re leased after 1 0  hours of hyperbaric therapy. Many other stud ies 

show the i mpactfu l b io logical  effects of gases under pressure i n  

h u mans and  an imals .  I nternationa l ly ,  there a re many who 

recogn ize the Un iversity of North Dakota's leadersh i p  in the 

cred i b le  p roof of concept documented by imag i ng for the bra in  

hea l i ng effects of Hyperbaric Med icine .  

Page 2 o f  5 
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My jou rney i nto th is rea lm of research started by seeing recoveries 

of severa l ly b ra in  i nju red patents by the artfu l cl i n ica l  practice of Dr. 

Harch . U nti l late 2006 , I had never seen anyth i ng l i ke th is 

physician 's  work in al l  of my med ical  tra in ing  and across the tens 

of thousands of cases I had i nterpreted over the years in cl in ica l  

rad io logy.  H is work shou ld be on the n ightly news for its i ncred ib le 

breakthroughs ,  but it's not-it's  too d is ruptive .  The science we have 

p ioneered has been d isparaged for not havi ng p lacebo contro ls or 

for s imply being case reports-astound ing  resu lts but no fund ing for 

larger  stud ies to add to the world 's  u nderstand ing of a ubiqu itous 

effect on a l l  species i njury recovery speed . What I have come to 

learn over the last decade of i nvestigat ion i n  th is arena is that there 

has been a terri b le mis interpretat ion of the concept of a p lacebo in  

hyperbaric med ica l  research . Th is  ha propagated the d ismissal of 

these i nnovations .  Th is is an important issue for leg is lators to 

u nderstand as the use of a b io log ica l  active p lacebo is  m is lead ing 

and u lt imately costly for society and our  taxpayers . 

There is  a h istory of p lacbos from one era of med ici ne bei ng 

d iscovered as bio log ical ly active in another, and thus 

u neth ica l . Th is changes the whole landscape of an area of study 

and renders old i nterpretations of research nu l l  and vo id in many 

i nstances . Hyperbaric med ici ne is  not primari ly a ' d rug '  based 

specia lty . I t  is a device based specia lty .  I n  device based 

specia lt ies l i ke surgery ,  interventiona l  rad io logy or i nterventional 

card io logy it is  d ifficu lt to j ustify the expense of a "fake" or sham 

procedu re .  A tru ly eth ica l  p lacebo should have the h ighest of 

safety i ndexes and lowest of costs wh i le  having no b io log ica l  

activity .  The h istory of the misuse of b io log ica l ly active p lacebos in  

hyperbar ic med ic ine wi l l  probably make everyone who's been 

Page 3 of 5 
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paying  attention to th is l i ne of research for the last few years qu ite 

upset .  

In  200 1 , a g roundbreaking study on ch i l d ren with cerebra l  palsy 

was pub l ished i n  the Lancet . The researchers used hyperbaric a i r  

therapy at  30% more than we are experienci ng rig ht now as a 

p lacebo .  That i s  the same dose that was shown to be b io log ica l ly 

active i n  Eden Carlson 's recovery from severe bra i n  i nj u ry ,  wh ich 

Dr. Harch and I pub l ished in J u ly of 201 7 .  Al l of the stud ies in our 

veterans outs ide of those publ ished by the LSU team have used 

the same b io log ica l ly active p lacebo . Because a i r  under pressure 

is  a lmost as he lpfu l as oxygen under pressu re ,  these "contro l led" 

stud ies end up treat ing a lot of people with 2 good but s l ightly 

d ifferent i nterventions for the bra i n .  Study after study shows 

remarkab le improvement i n  so many of these parameters of 

neuro log ica l  i nj u ry i n  both the "sham" and the experimenta l  g roup 

that a re contin ua l ly d iscounted as a strange " i ntention to treat" type 

of effect or some other tru ly b izarre explanation for how the 

neu ro log ica l ly  i nju red are making amazing strides across i ncred ib ly 

short windows of time.  Pressurized oxygen at 2 1  % or at 1 00% 

accelerates a l l  sorts of biolog ica l  fence mend i ng .  

From m y  perspective as a long-stand i ng "observer" of med ical  

p ract ice th rough imag ing ,  we have lost a lot of time on a s imple 

m isunderstand i ng that started a long time ago .  I t  is  t ime to tu rn the 

t ide on th is  p rogress ive misuse of our  resou rces . There is l itt le po int 

i n  looking  back for you as leg is lators except to understand you now 

have a powerfu l knowledge poi nt to d iscuss with others who 

d isparage th is  powerfu l med ici ne .  M is i nterpreted shams from 

pund its i n  academic medici ne have left a lot of the wou nds of the 

Page 4 of 5 
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bra ins  of our  m i l itary fam i ly members untreated . I can assure you 

that the next 20 years wi l l  be a revo lutionary t ime where the real 

"decade" of the bra in  wi l l  man ifest th rough th is s imp le concept of 

hea l i ng . As a state , we. a re qu ickly becoming the national 

leadersh i p  in real  bra in  heal i ng  on the g round . Th is is main ly 

because we have a number of insightfu l supporters of a specia l  

physic ian in Fargo named Daphne Denham , M D .  These civic 

leaders are see ing with thei r  own eyes i n  Fargo that p lacebo 

contro l l ed stud ies have d iverted the nation 's attention from real  

hea l i ng with hyperbarics . It' s an open secret that we can do th is 

without b reak ing the bank in North Dakota , i t 's t ime to show the 

world smal l p laces can sti l l  do g reat th i ngs .  

As an educational Basecamp ,  check out  H BOT.COM for more 

i nformation . 

Ted Fogarty , M D  

Cha i r , U N O  Rad io logy 

SELECTED MEDIA/RESEARCH HIGHLIGHT:  
Ped iatr ic Hyperbarics 
https://www.usatoday.com/story/news/nation-now/20 1 7  /07 /20/todd lers-bra in-damage
reversed-treatment-after-near-d rown ing/496 1 3400 1 / 
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Good morn i ng ,  Cha i rman Weisz and members of the com mittee . My name 

is Hannah Anderson from Leeds ,  N D . I am here today, to testify in  favor of 

House B i l l  1 359,  and to expla in how hyperbaric oxygen therapy has made 

a d ifference in my l ife . 

On November 1 2 , 2007 , I was in  a nearly fata l car accident ,  where I 

suffered a traumatic bra in  inj u ry a long with other i nj u ries. After 3 months in  

d ifferent hospita ls ,  I re learned how to breath again on my own , without the 

use of any mach ines ,  I a lso learned how to talk ,  and how to walk  on my 

own .  My traumatic bra in inju ry, however, left me with issues that I have 

strugg led with da i ly for the past 1 1  years .  My short term memory is very 

poor, I am ti red a l l  the t ime and j ust getti ng th rough the day is exhausti ng .  

suffer with headaches every day and am on med ications to help me get 

th rough the day and then take med ications to hel p me sleep at n ight. I am 

easi ly overwhel med in large groups of people and strugg le to fol low 

conversations .  I become i rritated when th is happens.  

Due to the g reat support that I had , I was ab le to g raduate h igh school and 
even got my Associate Degree from Tri n ity B ible  Col lege i n  El lendale,  ND .  

I am cu rrently worki ng part time a t  the M innewaukan Pub l ic  School as  a 

paraprofess ional  and l iv ing at home with my parents .  

1 
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My mom heard of other bra in i nj u ry survivors doing Hyperbaric Oxygen  

Therapy i n  Fargo ,  so  she started doing research on it .  We decided , as  a 

fami ly, that i t m ight be a good th ing for me to try. I was wi l l i ng to try almost 

anyth i ng that wou ld  hel p get rid of the headaches that I had every day. We 

were not su re if H BOT would do anyth ing for me because it had been 1 1  

years s ince my traumatic bra in inj u ry. We were not g iven any promises, or 

any fa lse hopes. 

H BOT tu rned out to be the best th ing I cou ld have done. On day one, I was 

t i red from my sessions,  just l i ke they said that I m ight be . On Day 3 ,  

ha lfway th rough the treatments ,  I felt as  i f  my  bra in  fog was l ifting . I thought 

bra in  fog was someth ing I wou ld have to l ive with the rest of my l ife . It was 

• 
also i nteresti ng to me that the headaches were much less severe than I 

had previously had . Also after the 3rd day, or 6 treatments ,  I was able to go 

out to supper with 5 other people .  At that supper, I was ab le to concentrate 

on the menu and choose my own meal . I was ab le to keep up  with the 

conversat ion the enti re even ing and accord ing  to my mom , I responded 

appropriate ly to questions th roughout the even ing .  By the t ime I was 

fi n ished with my 1 0  treatments in 5 days , I felt l i ke my bra in  i nj u ry a lmost 

d idn 't exist. 

I t  was on ly last week that I was in Fargo ,  havi ng H BOT treatments .  I went 

to work on Monday, and d idn 't become overwhelmed with everyth ing that 

was go ing on at the school , and a l l  the kids that needed hel p .  I have not 

• 
had a headache s ince last week, which is so amazing .  I have more energy 

2 



;,-- · 

• 

• 

• 

than  I have had i n  1 1  years .  I wish I cou ld have had th is treatment a long 

time ago ,  because the sooner I wou ld  have tr ied th is  therapy post i nj u ry, the 

sooner  I cou ld  have felt less exhausted and had fewer headaches.  I used 

to j ust d rag th rough each 4 hour sh ift and come home exhausted . These 

last two days at work have actua l ly  been fun because of the amount of 

energy I 've had . 

Than k  you for you r  t ime and you r  cons ideration of House B i l l  1 359 . If  you 

have any questions ,  I wi l l  be happy to try and answer them for you . 

Hannah Anderson 

608 1 58th Ave N E  

Leeds ,  N D  58346 

70 1 -35 1 -6747 (ce l l )  

70 1 -466-256 1 (home) 

3 
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Human Services Committee 
January 1 6, 201 9 

Good morning ,  Chairman Weisz and members of the committee. My name is Lisa 

Anderson from Leeds, ND. I am here today, to testify in favor of House Bill 1 359 ,  and 
explain why I support this bill. 

You heard my daughter, Hannah's story, and how Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy made a 

difference in her life. It is my belief that HBOT has made a tremendous difference in the 

quality of Hannah's life. I t  helped her to focus better, it has helped her balance and it 

has helped with her fatigue. We are amazed at the difference 1 0  Hyperbaric Oxygen 

Treatments made for Hannah . 

Hannah 's insurance company has paid over half a million dollars in benefits since 2007, 

for Hannah 's medical expenses. Hannah's father and I have paid over $ 50,000 out of 

pocket since 2007 , for Hannah 's medical expenses. I t  is my firm belief that if Hannah 

• had received H BOT years ago, not only would everyone have saved thousands of 

dollars ,  but Hannah's quality of life would have been so much better. These figures do 

not include food, motel or mileage for any of the medical trips that we have made with 

Hannah . 

• 

In  closing ,  I would like to thank you for your time, and for your thoughtful consideration 

of H B  1 359.  H BOT can make a huge difference in the life of a brain injury survivor. 

Please vote in favor of this pilot program for brain injury survivors. Not only will it 

potentially save the State of ND money, it will give brain injury survivors a better quality 

of life. If you have any questions for me, I will be happy to try and answer them. You 

can reach me at: Lisa Anderson 

608 1 58th Ave NE 

Leeds, ND 58346 

70 1 -739-69 1 2  (cell) 

70 1 -466-256 1 (home) 

lisa.anderson@gondtc.com 
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Good ��fn?nf Cha i rman Weisz and members of the committee . 

• My name is Lynne Ostrem from Rugby, ND .  I am here today, to testify i n  favor of House B i l l  
1 359 , and exp la in  why I support th is b i l l .  

• 

• 

My son is David Folden .  David was fin ish i ng up  Ch i ropractic School i n  I owa when he 
susta ined a traumatic bra in  i nj u ry in  November 201 1 .  We were told David wou ld not survive , 
and if he d id ,  the p rognosis was g rim ;  he wou ld be wheelcha i r  bound and un responsive . 
David overcame those odds and learned how to eat, ta lk  and walk  aga in .  David and h is 
fam i ly retu rned to North Dakota in  August 201 2 .  I can 't even beg in  to come up  with a dol lar 
amount that has been spent for med ical care ,  out of pocket expense, and lost wages of fam i ly 
members that p rovide informa l  support for David s ince November 20 1 1 .  

David contin ues to strugg le with the long term side effects of traumatic bra in  i nju ry ;  wh ich 
inc lude persistent headaches , seizu res , short term memory deficits , and mood swings. I n  
add ition  to h is prescribed med ications, David was taking Tylenol  o r  Ibuprofen every 4 hours 
da i ly and even with that, some days he sti l l  had a "s l ight headache". David 's last labs showed 
e levated l iver and k idney levels which h is  Primary Care said is probably d ue to the Tylenol 
and I buprofen ,  but we d id not want to introduce narcotics for pain .  

David started do ing Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy i n  Fargo i n  m id/late December. After h is 4th 

treatment he asked me, "Do you th ink I 'm  getting better?" I asked h im what he thought. 
David 's  response was , "My headaches are not as bad and I fee l  l i ke my bra in  is so much 
clearer. "  David be ing able to verbal ize and notice an improvement was enough for me to 
want to contin ue treatments for David and tel l  others of how it he lped David . 

So far, David has had a total of 7 treatments and no longer compla ins of headaches . There 
are other  improvements I have witnessed : 
1 . ) David can now set a t imer and remembers what the t imer was for - he doesn 't need to 

write a note as a rem inder what the t imer was for. 
2 . )  David is more relaxed and content - wh ich is u nusual  for a fronta l lobe b ra in  inju ry. 

David recently attended a meeting with me.  He was walk ing up  to people he d idn 't know 
and i n it iat ing conversation - he usual ly isolated h imself and was on h is phone/iPad . 

3 . )  When he fin ishes a task he wi l l  seek me out and let me know he is done and asks what he 
can do to he lp next .  

4 . )  The amount of t ime needed to remember th i ngs i n  the short term has reduced . Previously, 
we wou ld sti l l  have d ry erase boards up for months rem ind ing h im it was a new year. 

5.) H is careg ivers have noticed an improvement i n  memory and mood - they d idn 't know he 
was do ing H BOT. 

I n  c los ing , I appreciate your  time and you r  consideration of HB 1 359. I bel ieve HBOT can 
make a d ifference i n  the l ife of a bra in i nj u ry survivor. I have a l ready seen the positive effects 
for my son . Improvements for su rvivors wou ld  have a mu ltitude of ripple effects for fam i ly 
members ,  potentia l  future med ica l  costs but the most important item is a l lowing our ND  Bra in  
I nj u ry Su rvivors a better qua l ity of l ife . P lease vote i n  favor of H B  1 359. 
I f  you have any questions for me, I wi l l  be happy to try and answer them . 

Lynne Ostrem 
5693 Hwy. 3 South 
Rugby, N D  
70 1 -208- 1 051  
ostrich@gondtc.com 
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HB 1359-Pilot project for hyperbaric oxygenation treatment 

Chairman ' l and members of the committee my name is J im Nelson and I 

represent the ND Veterans Legislative Counci l . I serve as its Vice President and 

Legislative Director. The Veterans Legislative Council is made up of the top 

officers from the American Legion, AMVETS, Disabled American  Veterans, 

Veterans of Foreign Wars and the Vietnam Veterans of America . We are here 

today to support this b i l l .  

A pi lot control study of veterans with mi ld traumatic brain injury (TBI )  or 

persistent post-concussion syndrome {PPCS), with or without post-traumatic 

stress d isorder {PTSD) has found significant improvements in TBI and PPCS with 

PTSD symptoms, neurologica l exam, memory, IQ, attention cognition, 

depression, anxiety, qual ity of l ife and bra in  blood flow fol lowing hyperbaric 

oxygen treatment. 

Sim ultaneously and most importantly, subjects experienced a significant 

reduction in  suicidal ideation and anxiety, this is probably the most significant 

finding of the study given the current suicide epidemic in and out of the mil itary. 

Dr. Pau l  Hatch, Cl inica l Professor and Director of Hyperbaric Medicine at LSU 

Hea lth New Orleans School of Medicine a long with Dr Edward Fogarty Chair  of 

Rad iology at the UND School of Medicine. Dr Hatch writes ''The PTSD symptom 

reductions in PTSD symptoms in a four-week period with any reported diagnoses 

of b last induced PPCS and PTSD." 

The improvements include a d iscontinuation or decreased dosage of 

psychoactive medications, continued to increase over the six-month post

traumatic period . Dr. Fogarty writes "Mild traumatic bra in  injury, persistent post

concussion synd rome and post-traumatic d isorder are epidemic in  the United 

States I raq and Afghanistan war veterans. The only effective treatment of the 

com bined diagnoses that is ava i lable and wel l-stud ied is via these chambers . 
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Thirty active duty or retired mi l itary men and women 18-65 with on more mild

to-moderate b last TBls characterized by loss of consciousness that a minimum of 

one year  old and occurred post 9/11 participated in the study. 10 of 12 patients 

who expressed suicida l ideation prior to treatment did not express suicidal  

thoughts after treatment. Of the patients who indicated significant anxiety 

before treatment, 75% were no longer anxious after treatment. 

I have attached the testimony by one the participants experience with the study 

VA officia ls  have acknowledged that the new use of hyperbaric oxygen therapy 

and a re pairing it with new research efforts by the VA and mi l itary in treatments. 

As such they have given it a "off label" or unauthorized designation. This 

designation means the veteran must pay for it use 

We a re excited bi l l  because is could wel l be an avenue for the VA and mi l itary in 

changing the designation and we ask for your support of this b i l l  by a do pass. 

I wi l l  attempt to answer any questions . 
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Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy Has Helped Beat TBI/PTSD, Veteran's Testimony 
Sat, 08/3 1/2013  - 14:33 I Visitor (not verified) 

Veteran Testimony - One of the first five treated in the TBI/PTSD 
HBOT Pilot Trial 

The following is a testimony of one of the first five veterans treated by Dr. Harch with HBOT for TBI and PTSD. This veteran was referred 
by a compassionate Army doctor who was unsuccessful with other treatments. His story is typical of the ability ofHBOT to positively 
change the trajectory of a brain-injured individual's life and literally give people back their lives. It is also the foundation of the Oklahoma 
HBOT legislation for veterans and the National Grassroots Movement for 1-IBOT in the treatment of veterans that was lawiched by Rainey 
Owens in Texas. We hope you enjoy his story and realize that he is the rule, not the exception. 

I sustained a Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI) in April 2003 when an ammunition bunker in Iraq was 
detonated within close proximity to my location. The concussion was tremendous and the 
negative effects immediate. Later on, after brain surgery to fix some damaged blood vessels, the 
disabilities became even more evident. Then, on March I ,  2007, I was in my home when an F4 
tornado tom the place apart all around me. The sudden pressure changes from that event left me 
literally unable to cope with l ife. Everything was so confusing, overwhelming and frustrating, I 
would seek out the darkest areas of our rebuilt house and sit in confused agony for hours at a time. 
Often, not remembering what I had done earlier in the day, much less the events of the days 
before. I hardly knew what month it was and was completely unaware of the day of the week or 
the time of day. 

Prior to my Hyperbaric Oxygen treatment beginning in Jwie 2008, by Dr. Harch, I found myself 
living in a daily fog that was later diagnosed as Post Traumatic Stress Disorder. Everything from 

my ability to think to my impatient, misery/depression filled interaction with my family and friends, to writing and reading was affected by 
this PTSD fog. My frustration levels were extremely high. My family life was compromised to the point of my wife feeling as though she 
had an adult child in the house and my son didn't think l was very fun either! I was living in daily frustration with not being able to think 
clearly, sleeping on and off through out the day and generally, not having the capability to work or interact for very long with others. I was 
miserable. Knowing who I was before the TBI/PTSD, yet dealing with what I had become was depressing. I simply couldn't get myself out 
of that hole the bead injury had caused. 

Literally, during the first two Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy treatments, l found parts of my brain waking up and the fogginess becoming less 
intrusive. By the time I finished 80 treatments, I had rediscovered the ability to enjoy reading a book again for the first time in five years! 
Writing this simple statement would have taken me three or four hours before treatment but now, a matter of fifteen minutes. I have high 
hopes of worldng full time after my medical retirement from the Army and most importantly, my wife and son still come up to me on 
occasion and just hug me,. They then mention how happy they are to have their husband and father back. I also found myself able to sleep , 
again and feel refreshed! 

I still struggle with various issues, some cognitive and some physical, but I'm so very grateful that the Lord placed Dr. Harcb in my path to 
recovery. Dr. Harcb and his staff are some of the most dedicated, sincere and hard working medical professionals I've ever been treated by. 
The quality of life improvements I've seen since being treated by Dr. Harch have made the difference between an existence of sitting at 
home, too confused and frustrated to LIVE, and a life with hope, patience and most importantly, a reduction in the daily fog of brain injury. 
Hyperbaric oxygen therapy has helped me to find my motivation and desire for life again. Also, since I am able to process better, the 
following four months at the Shepherd Center were much more productive! 

For those who suffer with the fog and depression ofTBI/PTSD, you will know how tremendously important those kinds gains are . .  For the 
family members of those who suffer with this type of injury, the smiles and happiness from my wife and kids are testimony enough to know 
how much this treatment has given me back my life. God Bless ! !  



The Administrative Committee on Veter
ans Affairs (ACOVA) is responsible for the or
ganization, policy, and general administration of 
al l veterans' affairs in North Dakota. The Ad
ministrative Committee is comprised of 1 5  vot
ing members, each appointed by the Governor, 
representing the five major patriotic veteran or
ganizations in the state . 

Each year, the Governor 1s to appoint 
one member from a l ist of two names submitted 
by the following North Dakota veteran organiza
tions :  American Legion, Veterans of Foreign 
Wars, Disabled American Veterans, AMVETS, 
and Vietnam Veterans of America. The ACO
V A is also comprised of three nonvoting mem
bers who are to serve in an advisory capacity -
the North Dakota Adjutant General, the Center 
Director of the Federal Veterans Affairs, and the 
Executive Director of Job Service of North Da
kota. The Governor also appoints the ACOVA's  
Chairman and Secretary. 

The ACOV A has several activities they 
monitor on behalf of the Governor and the 
state ' s  veterans. 

North Dakota Veterans Home: 

The ACOV A appoints a seven member govern
ing board for administration of the North Dakota 
Veterans Home located in Lisbon, ND. It assists 
in creating the management and not in the day to 
day management of the Veterans Home. 
Post War Trust Fund:  

The veterans' postwar trust fund (PWTF) i s  a 
permanent trust fund of the state of North Dako
ta and consists of moneys transferred or credited 
to the fund under NDCC 3 7- 1 4- 1 4  and other 
laws. Al l  income received from investments is to 
be uti l ized only for programs of benefit and ser
vice to veterans or their dependents, and al l in
come earned in a biennium is  appropriated to the 
(ACOV A) on a continuing basis .  

ND Department of Veterans Affairs : 

The committee shall appoint the commissioner 
of the department of veterans' affairs . The com
missioner of veterans' affairs shal l  serve as the 
executive secretary for the subcommittee . The 
commissioner has no vote in the affairs of the 
sub-committee. 
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FIVE ND Patriotic Organizations 

3 1 ,000 Members Statewide 

5,456,000 Members Nationwide 

What is the difference between the 
NDVLC and the ACOV A? The acronym 
NDVLC stands for the North Dakota Veterans 
Legislative Counci l  and is a Non
Governmental Counci l  comprised of the five 
principal veteran organizations in the state of 
North Dakota. Their purpose is  to discuss and 
develop a unified consensus on veteran issues. 
ACOV A stands for the Administrative Com
mittee on Veterans Affairs which is  responsi
ble for the organization, policy, and general 
administration of al l  veterans '  affairs in North 
Dakota. 

The ND Veterans Legis lative Counci l  
i s  made up of three members from each of the 
following five ND Veterans ' Patriotic Organi
zations; The American Legion, Veterans of 
Foreign Wars, Disabled American Veterans, 
AMVETS, and the Vietnam Veterans of 
America. 

ND Disabled American Veterans 

5, 000 North Dakota Members, 1 1  local Chapters 

1 . 2  Million Members Nationwide 

ND Veterans of Foreign Wars 

7, 715 North Dakota Members, 54 Local Posts 

I. ?Million Members Nationwide 

The NDVLC was establ i shed to bring 
veterans organizations together in a united 
effort on behalf of all veterans and depend
ents. It is meant to provide a practical means 
through which the Veterans organizations 
throughout the state may effectively contrib
ute to the betterment of all veterans .  

The three major responsibil ities of the 
Legislative Council are to sponsor and moni
tor legislation that affects veterans and their 
dependents, monitor al l general programs for 
veterans including hospital benefits, employ
ment programs, social programs and final ly to 
establ ish a system of public relations for vet
erans. 

No member of the Legis lative Counci l  
may hold concurrent membership on the Ad
ministrative Committee on Veterans Affairs . 
The three representatives from each Veterans 
organization shal l be the Department 

111, ,. ' " ' · , - · ····· 

ND A merican Veterans 

2, 800 North Dakota Members, 1 4  Local Posts 

290, 000 Members Nationwide 

..5 

ND Dept. of the American legion 

I 5, 050 North Dakota Members, 2 15  Local Posts 

2. 2 Million Members Nationwide 

Commander, the Department Adjutant, and one 
other representative. Each member has one 
vote . The office of president, vice-president, 
and secretary/treasurer are elected from within 
these voting members . 

The members are volunteers and do not 
receive salaries for performing their duties as 
outl ined in the organizations by-laws. The third 
segment of the Council i s  the Legislative Com
mittee. Two members are appointed from each 
of the veterans organizations and a committee 
chairman . They are appointed for two years . 
They should be from the Bismarck area so they 
may attend hearings on bi l l s  affecting the veter
ans .  
The Legislative Council 's main function is 
drafting, monitoring, and seeking sponsors for 
veterans legislation . It is not an administrative 
body. Administration and implementation of 
veterans laws is  the function of the ACOV A. 

ND Vietnam Veterans of America 

435 North Dakota Members, JO local Chapters 

66, 000 Members Nationwide 
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ND  Department of Veterans Affai rs Budget 
• Return 2 of 3 Staff pos it ions 
• Remove Federa l  Fund i ng Mandate 
• Tra i n i ng & Outreach fu nd i ng 
• G rant  data base update 

Stand Down Funding $5,000 
• Serv ing vu l nerab le vetera ns 

Service Dog Grants $50,000 
• N D  vetera ns  with PTSD 

DAV Transportation Van $18,600 
• ½ cost to pu rchase 1 va n 

National  Service Officer Grant $150,0000 
• 3 gra nts at $50,000 

ND  Department of Veterans Affa i rs 
• Accept a n d  expend fu nds .  FH Co i n  

ND  Department of  Veterans Affa irs 
• Work with a l l  e nt it ies 

ACOVA & Post War Trust Fund 
• Set i nvestment  goa ls & objectives 

ND Veterans Legis lative Counci l 
• Name cha nge i n  N DCC 

Mi l ita ry Reti rement Pay 
• Exempt from N D  i n come tax 

ND I ncome Tax Check off 
• Donate to Post War Trust Fund 

ND  Veterans Affa i rs F i le Access 
• C lean up verbiage 

ND Assn.  County & Triba l Service Officers 
• VA d i sab led qu a l ify fo r ND  Gra nt & Loa n  
• CVSO accred itat ion to i nc lude NDDVA 
• Vete ra ns Prefe rence remove res ident 

and wa rtime .  Add Guard and  Reserve . 
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Me'fnbers of the North Dakota 

�0�terans Legislative 
19 Council 2018 

President: Karen Meier N D AL 
Vice President J im Nelson AMVETS 

Secretary: Ronald Matthews N D  AL 

Member Organizatio ns: 

ND American Legion 
Karen Meier 70 1 -595-3 7 1 7  bgkj meier@reste l .com 
Ronald Matthews 70 1 -293-3 1 20 adj utant@ndlegion .org 
Glenn Wahus 70 1 -842-2093 gwahus@gmai l .com 
ND AMVETS 
Wayne Krueger 70 1 -793-6022 har leym i 1 1 iona i rc(f_ilgma i I . com 
Keith Peterson 70 1 -87 1 -0208 petersonkc i th96@)vahoo.co111 
James Nelson 70 1 -400-5635 j imne l son73@yahoo.com 
ND DAV 
Joe Hall 70 1 -328-5048 joch a l l . Di\ V@lout look .com 
Larry Holweger2 I 8-779-048 cholweger@gra .m idco.net 
Steve Benson 2 1 8-99 1 -2366 steghen j ocben son({i'hotmai I . com 
ND VFW 
Bi l l  Tuff c7O 1 -26 1 -2 1 44 b l t u ra,1.ao l .com 
DarcyMedicineStone7O l -88O-2 1 7darcvwi l frcd 1 944(£1 gma i l .com 
Wayne Paulson 70 1 -83 8-8470 v fwnd({i m i not .com 
ND VVA 
Dan Stenvold 
Russ Stabler 
Larry Young 

70 1 -284-6426 troy@ polarcomm .com 
70 1 -306-2659 pa I k i d@aol . com 
70 I -786-3494 yohound50@vahoo.com 

NORTH DAKOrA 
. ieterans Leglslat1,. 
v Counci l  v� 
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H o u se B i l l  1 3 59 - Depa rtment of H u m a n  Services 

House H u m a n  Services Comm ittee 

Representative Weisz, C h a i rm a n  

J a n u a ry 1 6, 20 1 9  

C h a i rm a n  We isz a n d  mem bers of the  H ouse H u ma n  Serv ices Co m m ittee, 

I a m  Ta m my Zach m e ier, Ut i l izat ion  Rev iew Ad m i n istrato r  fo r the Med ica l  

Serv ices  D iv i s ion  i n  Depa rtment  of H u m a n  Serv ices ( De pa rtment) . I a m  

p rov id i n g  test i m ony today reg a rd i n g  th e Depa rtment's o ppos it i on  to 

H ouse  B i l l  1 3 59 . 

The  M ed i ca i d  Ut i l i zat ion Rev iew staff i s  respon s i b l e  for m a ki n g  coverage 

d ec is ion s  for med ica l  treatment  and  serv ices . Th i s  i nvo l ves resea rch i n g  

a n d  assu ri n g  t h a t  th e treatment  i s  cons i stent  w i t h  genera l l y a ccepted 

p rofess i on a l  med ica l  sta n d a rds ,  rev iewi ng  l i teratu re for evidence- based 

p ra ct ices,  rev iew ing  coverage  determ i n ations  by oth er  payers ,  rev iewi ng 

M ed ica re 's n at iona l and l oca l coverage  determ i n at ions ,  a n d  resea rch i ng  

fo r a p p rova l o f  a med ica l  dev ice by  th e U . S .  Food & Drug  Ad m i n istrat ion 

( FDA) . 

M e d i ca l  Serv ices defi nes coverage  pa ra m ete rs for specifi c  serv ices a nd 

m a y  l i m i t coverage  to a specifi c  d iag n os is  when  a p p ropria te .  Hyperba ric 

Oxyg e n at io n  Treatment  ( H BOT) i s  covered by N D  Med ica i d  fo r co n d it ions 

such as ca rbon monox ide po iso n i n g ,  i n fection  of sk i n o r  bone ca us i ng  

t iss u e  death ,  n o n hea l i n g  wo u nds  such a s  d i a bet ic foot u l ce rs ,  ra d i at ion 

i nj u ry ,  a n d a rteri a l  gas  e m bo l i .  The use of H BOT is  covered for th ese 



tf8 Jos-CJ 
t&/;q 

/}#I 0 
co n d i t ion s  beca use they a re a p p roved by the FDA a n d  acce pted 

profess ion a l  med ica l pract ices . 

The Depa rtment  opposes House B i l l  1 3 59  fo r the fo l l ow i n g  reasons : 

• The treatment  is  not cons iste nt  w i th  genera l l y accepted p rofess iona l 

med i ca l  sta n d a rds .  

• M ed ica re d oes not pay for H BOT for tra u m at ic  b ra i n  i nj u ry (TBI ) . 

The re a re n o  nat io n a l  o r  loca l covera g e  determ i natio n s .  

• The FDA h a s  not a p proved H BOT fo r TBI . 

I n  a d d i t ion ,  w h i l e  we have soug ht g u i d a n ce ,  we do  not have  specific  

a p p rova l from the Centers for Med i ca re a n d  Med i ca i d  Serv ices ( C M S )  

w h eth e r  we w i l l  receive federa l  fu nds  for payment  o f  c l a i m s  for H BOT for 

TBI . A l so ,  i t  i s  u n certa i n  i f  the re i s  potenti a l Depa rtment  l i a b i l i ty for 

coveri n g  a serv ice that  is  not cons i sten t  w ith  accepted p rofess iona l 

sta n d a rd s  a n d  not a pproved by the  FDA . 

H ouse  B i l l  1 3 59 a ppea rs to req u i re the  Depa rtment  to con d u ct resea rch ,  

a n a l yze d a ta ,  a n d  report resu l ts . T h e  Depa rtment  does n ot e m p l oy 

experts i n  co n d uct i ng  resea rch . If the  Depa rtment  i s  d i rected by 

l eg i s l a t i on  to cover H BOT for TBI,  the Depa rtment  ca n report i n format ion 

on  expe n d itu res for the treatment  a n d  re l a ted serv ices ; howeve r, 

report i n g  o n  treatment  outco mes wo u l d  h ave to be outsou rced . G iven 

the n u m be r  of N D  Med ica id  rec i p ients w i th  a d ia g nos is  of TBI ,  a n d  the 

scope of d a ta co l l ection  a n d  expert ise that wou l d  be req u i red with  a 

co ntractor, t he  proposed a p propriat io n of $ 3 3 5 , 000  i n  H o u se B i l l  1 3 59 

wo u l d  be  i nsu ffi c ient .  The Depa rtment  esti mates a fi sca l i m pact of 

$4 ,898 , 5 50 for the 2 0 1 9-202 1 b ien n i u m  ( $ 2 ,449 , 275  federa l  fu n d s ;  

$ 2 ,449 , 2 7 5  state fu nds) . 

2 
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Th is  co nc l u d es my testi mony a n d  I wou l d  a d d ress a ny q u estions  that  you 

h ave . 

Esti mate per  person 

Total E l ig ible Population*  
Uti l ization 

Rate ** 

Estimated 
population for 

service 
500: 2019 - 2021 Bienn ium 2500 

500 
20% 
20% 100 Used the average of SFY 2017 and SFY 2018 new cases 

Serv ices / Treatmentp lan 
Re imb .  Code Rate as of 1/2019 

Exam CPT 99204 $ 161.84 

Hyperbari c oxygen under  
I pressure, fu l l body  chamber  G 0277 $ 84.65 
P hys ici a n  atte ndance and  

, supervi s ion  of  hyperbari c  
, oxygen therapy 99183 $ 107.42 
Fol l ow up post-tre atment 
exam 99214 $ 106.35 
V isua l  F i e l d  Exam 92082 $ 48.37 
Neu ropsycho log ica l  testi ng  96118 $ 97.26 

Trave l * * *  $ 0.53 

Subtotal Avl! ragl! �1Jst per recipient" 

. . . . . . . 
Un its 

1 

40 

20 

1 
2 
2 

6,668 

Tota l 

$ 161.84 

$ 3,386.00 

$ 2, 148.40 

$ 106.35 

$ 96.74 

$ 194.52 

$ -
$ 3,534.04 

$ 
.. -

$ 9,627.89 

Tota l esti mate for 20 19-20 2 1  B ien n i u m  

I 

Note 

30 mi nute s ess ions, two per  day, 20 hours of 
5 days a week for 4 weeks treatment, 

. . . . .  

. . . . . .  

Total State Fede ral Population Served 

2019 - 2021 Bienn ium/\/\ $ 4,898,550.00 $ 2,449,275.00 $2,449,275.00 500 

*Tota l pop u lat ion  was  ca lcu lated us i ng c la i m s  data from N D  Med ica id  members with the fol low ing d i agnos is  
codes : ICD 9 :  8 5 0 . 0  - 854 . 1 9 ;  ICD 10 :  506 . 0X0A - S06 . 9X9A, 506 . 0X0S - S06 . 9X9S, F07 . 8 1 . 
* * It  i s  esti mated that  20 percent of patients with a n  e l i g i b l e  d i ag nos is wou ld  pa rt ic i pate i n  treatment .  
* * *The esti mates a re based on a l l  pat ients rece iv ing  treatment i n  Fa rgo .  There i s  a l so a hyperbar ic 
oxygenat ion treatment prov ider i n  Ja mestown ,  but cu rrent ly that prov ider only treats pat ients with non
hea l i n g  wou n d s .  

" Esti mates a re based on t h e  serv ice be ing  ava i l ab l e  statewide t o  M ed ica id  mem bers who meet t h e  q u a l i fy ing  
cr iteri a .  If ava i l a b i l i ty of serv ices were l i m ited to  a specif ic geog raph i c  a rea ,  fisca l esti mates wou ld  change and  
ND Med ica i d  wou ld  need to  app ly  for a wa iver from the Centers for Med ica re a n d  Med ica id  Serv ices (CMS)  to 
i m p lement  the serv i ces with a l i m ited ( not statewide)  popu lat ion . Deve lop ing  the wa iver app l icat ion and 
rece iv i ng  wa iver approva l from CMS wou ld  de lay i m p lementat ion of  serv ices . 
" "  Esti mates do not i nc lude any study-re lated costs, i nc l ud i ng  report ing  on treatment outcomes.  

3 
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To Whom it May Concern : f:J I 
Our  ch i ld was involved in  a sports re lated co l l is ion with another ch i ld  that resu lted in  a severe bra in 

concussion .  Pr ior to the injury our  chi ld was a very active, qu ick witted, happy-go-lucky ch i ld and was 

a lso participat ing in the gifted and ta lented services at schoo l .  

After  the co l l is ion we d id make a hospita l visit i n  which the  d iagnosis was a bra in  concussion .  The 

doctors p rescribed no school attendance, nausea med icat ion, no screen t ime, low l ight and  lots of bra in  

rest . We d id keep  our  ch i ld out of school for a pproximately five days and strictly fo l lowed the doctor's 

recommendat ions .  A repeat trip to the doctor resu lted in a clea rance to go back to school on a 

restricted bas is .  Ou r  ch i ld ,  who was very eager to get back to school, went and  qu ickly found out that 

the body a nd bra i n  were not ready. The fo l lowing cond it ions deve loped : headaches, extreme fatigue, 

d izziness, i nab i l ity to concentrate, sensitivity to l ight, unab le to produce words when trying to speak and 

the i nab i l ity to read  for more than five minutes without the words b lu rring together .  P rior to the 

concussion, th is ch i ld  would read a 200-300 pg. book in 1 day. Life had without quest ion changed 

dramatica l ly fo l lowing the concussion .  Most days resu lted in a nap/break a coup le t imes a day during 

the school day or a phone ca l l  saying our ch i ld needed to go home for the day. Our chi ld a lso suffered 

insomn ia and  horr ib le "zinging" pains in the temples in the even ing resu lt ing in l itt le to no sleep. Our 

ch i ld  was begging for he lp .  

We went  back to ou r  ped iatrician and emergency room a few more t imes in  the 5 weeks post

concussion period .  Ou r  emergency room doctor did refer us to a physician  that specia l izes in 

concussions .  The specia l ist to ld us i t  would take t ime and physica l therapy before we would notice any 

sign ifica nt changes. We were to ld sa id it would take between 3-9 months to recover from the 

concussion .  

We  d iscussed how ou r  ch i ld, our  fam i ly, o u r  ch i ld's school, a nd  our  fi na nces were go ing t o  hand le the 

next 2-7 months .  Ou r  ch i ld was a changed person and honestly m iserab le . Our fam i ly l ife and schedule 

were 100% reactive to the "cond ition" of our ch i ld at this point. 

At the point of week 7, with very l ittle change from week 1, our chi ld had rea l ly on ly lea rned to cope 

with the symptoms when the rea l ity was that there rea l ly was no-to-very-l ittle improvement .  At this 

point, when in a d iscussion with a fami ly member, the fami ly member had remembered hea ring a news 

story a bout a new c l i n ic i n  the Fa rgo a rea that was using hyperba ric therapy to treat concussions and 

how it offe red a so lut ion to patients suffering with concuss ion symptoms. Hea ri ng th is was a breath of 

fresh a i r  s ince wait ing was not working for us or  our  ch i ld .  This new i nformat ion took a day or  two to 

s ink in s ince it was not someth ing that we had hea rd come out of the mouth of any of the countless 

physicians  that we had been in contact with s ince this had happened.  Upon read ing a few a rticles and 

lett ing it s ink  i n  we decided that we would see if it would work for our  ch i ld .  We consu lted our  insurance 

to see if it was covered under the p lan we were on and it was not. Now the choice was if we wanted to 

sti l l  pu rsue th i s  t reatment it was going to be with out of pocket costs. It took a nother few days and no 

change in the post-concussion "new normal" with now zinging pa ins in our  ch i ld's temples a nd one of us 



J-/8 /3 01 /1/J- ld 1/;�/; q 
parents up  with o u r  ch i ld  for long periods during the n ight. Th is was a l l  that we needed to convince us 

that we were go ing to try a nyth ing to try to offer our chi ld some re l ief. 

We reached o ut to Hea l i ng Hyperba ric c l in ic in Fa rgo and set up a n  eva luat ion a nd a few appointments. 

This, for us, was a h uge decision due to the fact that it was 200 m i les from ou r  home.  There would be 

o ut of pocket cost and  my spouse or I would be missing work a long with ou r  chi ld m issing even more 

school .  With where we were at, we needed this to work as it was honestly ou r  last-d itch effort before 

comp letely accepting the "new normal" .  

We went, d id the eva l and saw fi rst ha nd what the prob lems were with our ch i ld's eyes a nd what our  

ch i l d  was  strugg l ing with .  Our  chi ld's eyes were inconsistently working together and motor sk i l l s  were 

greatly de layed when even compared to myse lf. We d id do a treatment a nd the fo l lowing day d id two 

more treatments. 

That even ing we went home got ready for bed and the next morning two th ings happened, our chi ld 

woke up and stated that it fe lt good to have s lept the entire n ight without waking up and waking up 

with no headache .  These two th ings for us were major mi lestones. Seeing th is improvement, it made my 

chi ld and  me eager to go for a few more treatments no matter the costs or t ime as we had fina l ly found 

someth ing that was working, or  at least took the edge off of the "new norma l" .  After two more 

treatments we went back home and had a much better experience with m uch less "new normal" .  The 

next t ime that we went back to Fa rgo we saw an eye specia l ist and he a lso confirmed that ou r  chi ld's 

eyes were not working wel l  together. G lasses that were to help the eyes work together were prescribed 

a nd we did a nother round  of treatments. We went back home and o rdered the glasses. Fo l lowing these 

treatments, we cou ld  see major improvements in  ou r  chi ld as so d id the as teachers, other fami ly 

members a nd a l l  the people that had been around our  chi ld late ly. The g lasses showed up  a nd our  once 

voracious reader  retu rned a nd cou ld read without the page b lu rring and  d id not give up  on read ing after 

on ly a few m inutes. We d id retu rn for another round of treatments a nd d iscussed what had been 

happen ing with the doctor. From this point and fo l lowing a few more treatments and getting a pa i r  of 

glasses we have never looked back and I would say that ou r  chi ld is back to, or very nea r, the former 

self, no "new norma l" for us . We a re thankfu l that ou r  fam i ly member saw a news story about a new 

c l in ic in  ou r  state for wound and concussion treatment .  We had a fam i ly member  in  the right place at 

the right t ime.  This thera py worked for our  ch i ld .  My number  one wish is that we had found it sooner 

than week 7 or 8 .  When I look at the after- insurance costs to our fam i ly that we had from al l  of the 

hospita l vis its that d id n't work compared to the costs of what d id work with hyperba ric therapy, it is a 

no bra i ner  to pu rsue the hyperba ric therapy. The nea r immed iate change p roves that it works. I am sti l l  

asking myse lf why; when this therapy works, why isn't a hospita l that should have every means and 

opt ion at i ts d isposa l not us ing this .  I am fearfu l that the reason we were not introduced to this therapy 

by ou r  hospita l is me rely due to the fact that it does not have a n  insura nce code that can be tied to it. 

Thank  goodness for people l i ke my chi ld, that there a re doctors who bel ieve in  the therapy, see its 

resu lts every day, have not given up on it and persevere through a l l  obstacles to make it ava i lable to 

patients l i ke my ch i ld .  P lease he lp  the other people suffering from concussions and make this option 

ava i l ab le  with an i nsura nce code so that others ca n stop l iving their  "new norma l" .  

S incere ly, 

A thankfu l fam i ly 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative D .  Anderson 

January 28, 201 9  

PRO POSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE B I LL NO . 1 359 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "to provide for a hyperbaric 
oxygen therapy pilot program; to provide an appropriation; and to provide for a report to 
the budget section. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION - HYPERBARIC OXYGEN THERAPY PILOT 
PROGRAM - REPORT TO BUDGET SECTION. 

1 .  There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state 
treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $335,000, or so much of 
the sum as may be necessary, to the state department of health for the 
purpose of contracting with a third party to implement a hyperbaric oxygen 
therapy pilot program, for the biennium beginning July 1 ,  201 9, and ending 
June 30, 202 1 .  

2 .  The department shall contract with a local nonprofit entity with experience 
implementing studies using hyperbaric oxygen for traumatic brain injuries 
to conduct a pilot program for treatment of moderate to severely 
brain-injured North Dakotans using an established protocol of hyperbaric 
oxygen therapy provided by a private entity with experience in treating 
traumatic brain injury using medical grade hyperbaric chambers 
pressurized with one hundred percent oxygen. The goals of the study 
include demonstrating improvement in brain-eye function using RightEye, 
significant improvement in quality of life of injured patients, significant 
improvement in cognitive abilities of injured patients, and financial savings 
and increased revenues for the state, including possible savings for 
medical assistance and workers' compensation and a positive impact on 
income tax revenues. The pilot program design must be established in 
consultation with a third-party physician. 

3. During the 20 1 9-21 biennium, the department shall make periodic reports 
to the budget section on the status of the pilot program and whether the 
goals are being recognized. "  

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 9. 0646.02001 
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Good morning Madam Chair Judy Lee, from the great community of 
West Fargo, and members of the Senate Human Services committee. 

My name is Austen Schauer, a Representative from District 1 3 , the 
heart of West Fargo. 

It is my honor to speak in support of House Bill 13 59 calling for a 
Therapy Pilot Project for Hyperbaric Oxygen Treatment. 

I have toured the Hyperbaric Oxygen Treatment Clinic in Fargo 
twice and was amazed by what I saw and what I learned. 

The number of people suffering concussions in this country each 
year is staggering. The Brain Injury Research Institute (B IRI) 
suggests it' s anywhere from 1 .6  million to 3 .8 mill ion, most 
happening in youth sports . 

Here is what the B IRI suggests when you receive a concussion : 

• Seek medical attention right away. 

That 's good advice, but the reality is most victims are sent home, 
told to rest up for a few days and then resume normal activity. 

But what happens if the effects of a concussion (headache, 
listlessness) linger for weeks, months? Is  there help? 

The answer is yes, and it is happening right now in Fargo with the 
backing of the Dakota Medical Foundation and lead donor Gary 
Tharaldson. 
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Dr. Daphne Denham runs the Fargo clinic. She is  a surgeon by 
trade but moved into the study of hyperbaric oxygen treatment after 
her daughter suffered a serious concussion four years ago . 

Her protocol is different from other treatment facilities and the 
results have been outstanding. The emphasis is to reduce 
inflammation in the brain. 

Much of Dr. Denham's  work is with adolescents but oxygen 
treatment is  also proving to be effective with veterans and others 
who 've experience Traumatic Brain Injuries. 

We are asking you, Madam Chair Judy Lee and members of the 
Senate Human Services Committee, to provide help for those 
suffering from concussions and other brain injuries by supporting 
this pilot program in House Bill 13 59.  

Thank you for your time and I am open to any questions you may 
have. 



Hype rba r ic  Oxygen The ra py 

What is i t? 

B reath i ng 100% oxyge n i n  a pressu r ized cha mber/vesse l  
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These a re med i ca l  g rade  ch a mbers .  P hys ic ia n s u perv i s i on  i s  req u i red . 

These a re not the  soft s ided/bag/z i ppe r  cha m bers p rofess i ona l p l aye rs 

buy off the  i nternet .  



How does it wo rk? 

Hyperba r ic oxygen the ra py does 4 ba s i c  t h i ngs :  
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1 .  Hype r-oxygenates t he  t iss ues to a l l ow them to repa i r  

2 .  Decreases swe l l i ng 

3 .  Tu rns off i nfl a m mat ion 

4 .  St i mu l ates new b l ood vesse l ,  a n d  n ew ce l l  g rowth ,  i n c l u d i ng b ra i n  

ce l l s  

���HBOT: It's About Oxygen Satu rat ion 
The body's l iquids are saturated with more oxygen, helping areas with compromised circu lat ion. 

Before HBOT 

Image Courtesy of Dr. Stol ler 
After H BOT 

We increase the amount of oxygen in the l iqu id pa rt of b lood 

by 500-1,200% based on the protoco l for i nju ry. 

(as demonstrated by the wh ite bubb les) 
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1 .  Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy gets oxygen to damaged tissue 
to a l low them to repa i r  

Norma l ly, a l l  ce l l s  a re c l ose enough 

to a vesse l to get oxygen .  

After  a t ra u ma t h e  t i ss ue  i s  d amaged 

a nd some  ce l l s  ca n not get the oxygen  

they need,  espec ia l l y to  repa i r  

t hemse lves .  I nj u red ce l l s  i n  b l u e  a n d  

dead  ce l l s i n  b l a ck .  

U nde r  hype rba r ic con d it ions, oxygen 

gets to the  i nj u red ce l l s  a n d  l ets 

them repa i r . 



»� 13 f'f' 
':3 / 11,, J /4 

2 .  Hyperba ri c  oxygen the ra py dec rea sers:·e l l i ng 

Norma l ly fl u id i n  eq u a l s fl u i d  out .  Afte r tra u ma,  i ncreased fl u i d  i n , the refo re swe l l i ng .  

W ith hype rba ric, l e ss  fl u id i n , the refore less  swe l l i ng .  

B lood 

I nflow 

Norma l Situat ion 

F i lt rat i on  = Reso rpt ion  

I nte rst i t ia l  F l u id Ba l ance 

Blood 

Outflow 

Tra uma or I njury 
I ncreased I nflow from Vasod i lat ion 

I nflow Outflow 

F i l t ra t i on > Resorpt ion  

Decreased I nflow 
Swelling 

with Hyperbaric Oxygen ( vasoconstricth,. . ,  

I nflow Outflow 

F i l t rat io n < Reso rpt i on  

20-30% Red uct ion  i n  Swe l l i ng 

But we still have tissue oxygenation 



3 .  H BO m it igates the i nfl a m mato ry response 
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"U nder H BO cond it i ons, a l l  th e body' s  c l ea r  fl u i d s  ca rry 
oxygen ,  th e reby e l i m i n at i ng the  n eed fo r t he  
i nfl a m mato ry response ."  

Immune and Defense System Ampl ified by HBOT 

n r ,ze v, , ee l  

lmmun nd defen e wh, cells 
(leu oc tes) pa rol I 10ugh the body 
r ad o react ,n ding pa hog ns 
When act,vated they require up lo U 
X O  2 to energize. 

Under Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy (HBOT) conditions. all of the body's clear fluids carry orygen. thereby eliminating the 
need for the inflammatory response 

https ://sa rasga rden . o rg/wp-content/u p loads/2013/12/Lyme-Disease-H BOT. pdf 
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4 .  Hyperba ri c oxygen the ra py st i m u l ates the  g rowth of 
new b l ood vesse l s  a n d  new ce l l s .  

H BO works for ch ron i c  i nj u r ies .  F DA a pp roved fo r 
d i a bet ic foot u l ce rs, ch ron i c  bone  i nfect i on s, etc . d ue to 
the  a b i l i ty to grow new b l ood vesse l s  a nd n ew ce l l s .  

Afte r severa l hype rba r ic t reatments, new b lood vesse l growth beg i ns ,  

resto r ing more norma l b lood fl ow, as  demonstrated to the left . 

Su rrou nd i ng ce l l s  a re ab le  to beg i n  to remove/repa i r  the t i ssue  . 

• Necrotic cel l  • lschemic cel l  l njuried blood vessel 
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Refe r  to #3 : H BO tu rns off inf l am mation . The refo re, it does not matte r 
how l o ng ago the  concussio n was, we a re seeing g reat responses to 
stopping post-con cussion sym ptoms .  

Research Ties Inflammation To Post
Concussion Sympton1s 

fiit5fi 
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Researchers at r·. l chl a ste r Un 1 ve r s 1ty in C anada ha •:e fOLI I  ct e v 1 c1 e 11 c e $ ll ppo1t I 11g the be l i e ' th a t 1 nfla 1111 1.:il io n I s  a r  
under l:,mg acto r  fac r l i ta trng s;mpto rris of tra umalic b ra in 1 111ur Ie s 

The stud; pub l ished i n  Bra ,fl 8e 11a •, •O '  and : 1m(ln,;, . 
ma; he lp e ·, p la in  1•, h ;  th ose , •• 1th mi ld bra 111 rn1u11es o r  
even i n  Jul) to other parts of the bod, e ,  penence 'rom 
s 1gn 1'icant post-concuss ,on- l l he s, mptoms such as  
headaches  d 1z:: i nes s  and  cogn 1hve 1mpa 1rrrient 

Accord ing to th e find ings  1 nd 1 •  1dua l s \'. fth a spec ific 
geneti c  change  re lated to a certa i n  mflam1 ,atory p rotem 
a 1 e pa 1 t1 c u la 1 1 1 1 11-.e l, to have a poo, e r  and , rn re  
p ro longed r ecover, rom bra in  inJur; 

R ather  ti an a co ,  cuss ion \', e d 1 1 1-.e to propose a 
un i  1 1 119 umbre l la ten"l o post- 1nflam,  1ator, b r am 
s;  n d ro r  ,es or  P ISS . sa i d  r .1 1che l Rathbone �.1 D Ph D 
pro essor o medic ine or r.1c111aste r s Michae l DeGr oote Schoo l  o r·,lechc 1ne  and a l ead  aulho 1 of 11,e �; tuct ; 

He continues to suggest that the ne 1•, rnd rngs 1•. 1 1 1  encou rage resea r che 1 s to e - p lore ne l' lme:  of re 0 ea , rh  1 11 o post
concuss ion s1mpto , 1s so  th at ph, s 1 c i ans  may be ab le to treat post- conwss ron - l lhe s, mptoms  e •. en  ,,., hen  the r e  1 s 110 
ob IOUS  bra in  tnJUr, 

The  author concluded the resu lts ma; al so pro 1de hope fo r  1 11 ct Iv 1dua l s s uffe 1 1 n g  , or , c ogn 1 t1 ve  cl , s unc t ion after 1 1c1 10 1  
1 111une s or  tra uma  as  the :, r ,a ;  bene ,t from s 1m 1 l a r  treatments- a s  those mth b 1  a I 11 l ll J lH l e s 

Th i s  r e s earc l  opens r ,an:,  ctoo r s  fo r  so 1 1an; d 11e rent pa hen ts \Ve a r e  e • c i te cl lo he s ta rtrng a tota lh  n e 1-. c1pp 1  o a ( h  to 
the 1 e l d . a n d  1·, e look o rward to I rnk 1 11g  a d1 e rence fo r the pat i en ts of the fu twe 

' I ' I ' i . ,  
! I • f' I' l ' l ll t ' I I 

www. tra u mat icb ra i n  i nj u ry. net/ res ea rch-ti es- i  nfl a m mat ion -to-post-concu ss ion -sym pto ms/ 
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H BO treatment us i ng  acute concuss ion  p rotoco l  

G0277 

99 183 

$85 (2 ) 

$ 107 

$170 

$107 

$277 per tx (Med icare rate} 

20-40 treatments @ $277 is $5,540 - $11,080 

30 pat ients, 20-40 treatments each pat i ent  

$166,200 - $332,400 



Cost to Patient 
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Each 1 5  po in t  IQ  i ncrease trans lates to about $20 , 000 i n  i ncome . 

Persons who suffer from a s i ng le mTB I  have a future l ifetime 

i ncome loss of 50%.  

(Matched to  themselves and the i r  non- inj u red counterparts , 
matched for education , i nte l l igence ,  etc . , Gamboa ,  Ch icago 
School of Economics) 

45% wi l l  be unemployed 2 years post i nj u ry 

33°/o wi l l  have "anger" issues ris ing 56 . 7% with co-morb id 
depress ion . 

1 4 . 9% wi l l  become substance abusers .  
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RightEye 
LESSONS  LEARN ED :  Even 6 yea rs late r, H BO ca n he l p .  
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Th ree weeks  a nd twenty t reatme nts saved the l ife of a ve ry ca pab le pe rson .  
M a ny peop le  h ave bette r tha n "Fu n ct i ona l " b ra i n -eye coord i na t io n .  
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3 1  yea r o l d S IX yea rs out  from m u lt i p le concus s i on s .  Su i c i d a l .  
He  was tea rfu l when we  d iscussed how bad  h i s b ra i n -eye fu nct i on  was, but  
H BO ca n he l p .  
Repeat R ightEye was 18 days l a te r, afte r 20  H BO treatments .  H i s b rothe r 
was tea rfu l over t he  repeat a s  he  had  see n t he  imp rovements a n d  
w i l l i ngness t o  l ive a nd be  i nvo lved i n  l ife aga i n .  
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Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy 
Pilot PrograITI 

for Moderate to Severe 
Trauinatic Brain Injury 



»-9 13�1 
3/JJ /1 1 

,# :i. fJ . ,3 

Protocol : 

1. Patient presents to Healing with Hyperbarics of North Dakota . 
a .  Patient with documented previous moderate to severe 

traumatic brain injury by any previous physician. [Glasgow 
Coma Scale 12 or below at some point] 

2 .  Focused History and Physical Exam 

a. History 
1 .  Document Quality of Life issues 

11. Document current functional status 
1. Activities of daily living 
2 .  Age appropriate Cognitive tests 

3 . RightEye exam 

4. Other age appropriate assessment tools as 
indicated 

b. Assess for safety to have hyperbaric oxygen (HBO) treatment 
1 .  Blood sugar check if diabetic 

11 .  Any suspicion of inability to tolerate pressure 
1 .  Tympanic membrane dysfunction 
2 .  Any implantable device that cannot be removed 

and/ or is contraindicated 

3 . Traumatic brain injury hyperbaric oxygen protocol 
a. Protocol used over past 3 years 
b. Patient treated daily or twice a day as patient's and clinic's 

schedule allows 

4. Repeat functional status performed after 10 treatment intervals by 
objective personnel 

5 . Follow up patient at 1 and 3 month post completion of HBO 

treatment; reassessed to document status 

PAGE 1 



Exclusions : 

1 .  Patients not medically cleared for HBO 
2.  Patients unable to tolerate pressure in the chamber 

Data Collection: 

1 .  All data will be kept in the office 

ti!> 13� 
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2 .  De-identified data will be reported back to demonstrate progress with 
the study 

3 . Institutional Review Board ( IRB) approval will be obtained through 
University of North Dakota 

4- Results will be published and/or used to initiate other pilot studies for 
private insurance to assess cost-effectiveness of using HBO for 
moderate to severe brain injuries 

5 . Anticipated results : 

a. Patients will demonstrate improved Quality of Life 
b .  Patients will demonstrate improved functional status 

1 .  Activities of daily living 
ii . Age appropriate Cognitive tests 

iii . Neuro-ocular function as demonstrated by RightEye 
c .  Patients may demonstrate change in employment or potential 

change ( for the better) 
d. Patient's medical expenses will be followed to assess if 

decreased due to improvements deemed to be due to HBO 

PAGE 2 
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A pi lot control study of veterans with mi ld traumatic bra in  injury (TBI )  or persistent post

concussion syndrome (PPCS), with or without post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) has found 

significant improvements in  TBI  and PPCS with PTSD symptoms, neurologica l exam, memory, 

IQ, attention cognition, depression, anxiety, qual ity of l ife and bra in b lood flow fol lowing 

hyperbaric oxygen treatment. 

Simu ltaneously and more importantly, subjects experienced a significant reduction in suicida l 

ideation and anxiety, this is probably the most significant finding of the study given the current 

suicide epidemic in and out of the mi l itary. Dr. Pau l  Harch, Cl in ica l  Professor and Director of 

Hyperbaric Medicine at LSU Health New Orleans School of Medicine a long with Dr Edward 

Fogarty Chair  of Radiology at the UNO School of Medicine. Dr Harch writes "The PTSD symptom 

reductions in PTSD symptoms in a four-week period with any reported d iagnoses of blast 

induced PPCS and PTSD was noted." 

The improvements include a discontinuation or decreased dosage of psychoactive medications, 

cont inued to increase over the six-month post-traumatic period. Dr. Fogarty writes "Mi ld 

traumatic bra in injury, persistent post-concussion syndrome and post-traumatic disorder are 

epidemic in the United States I raq and Afghanistan war veterans. The only effective treatment 

of the combined diagnoses that is avai lable and wel l -studied is via these chambers. 

Thirty act ive duty or retired mi l itary men and women 18-65 with on more mi ld-to-moderate 

blast TBls characterized by loss of consciousness that a min imum of one year old and occurred 

post 9/11 participated in the study. 10 of 12 patients who expressed suicidal ideation prior to 

treatment did not express suicidal thoughts after treatment. Of the patients who indicated 

significant anxiety before treatment, 75% were no longer anxious after treatment. 

I have attached the testimony by one the participants experience with the study 

VA officials have acknowledged that the new use of hyperbaric oxygen therapy and are pairing 

it with new research efforts by the VA and mi l itary in  treatments. As such they have given it a 

"off label" or unauthorized designation. This designation means the veteran must pay for it 

use 

We are excited with this b i l l  because it could  wel l be an avenue for the VA and mi l itary in  

changing their designation and we ask  for your  support of  th i s  b i l l  

I wil l  attempt to answer any questions. 
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Sat, 08/3 1/2013 - 14:33 1 Visitor (not verified) 

Veteran Testimony - One of the first five treated in the TBI/PTSD 
HBOT Pilot Trial 

The following is a testimony of one of the first five veterans treated by Dr. Harch with HBOT for TBI and PTSD. This veteran was referred 
by a compassionate Anny doctor who was unsnccessful with other treatments. His story is typical of the ability ofHBOT to positively 
change the trajectory of a brain-injured individual's life and literally give people back their lives. It is also the foundation of the Oklahoma 
HBOT legislation for veterans and the National Grassroms i'vlon:mcnt for HBOT in the treatment of veterans that was latmched by Rainey 
Owens in Texas. We hope you enjoy his story and realize that he is the rule, not the exception. 

I sustained a Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI) in April 2003 when an ammunition bunker in fraq was 
detonated within close proximity to my location. The concussion was tremendous and the 
negative effects immediate. Later on, after brain surgery to fix some damaged blood vessels, the 
disabilities became even more evident. Then, on March I, 2007, I was in my home when an F4 
tornado tom the place apart all around me. The sudden pressure changes from that event left me 
literally unable to cope with life. Everything was so confusing, overwhelming and frustrating, I 
would seek out the darkest areas of our rebuilt house and sit in confused agony for hours at a time. 
Often, not remembering what I had done earlier in the day, much Jess the events of the days 
before. l hardly knew what month it was and was completely unaware of the day of the week or 
the time of day. 

Prior to my Hyperbaric Oxygen treatment beginning in JUDe 2008, by Dr. Harch, I found myself 
living in a daily fog that was later diagnosed as Post Traumatic Stress Disorder. Everything from 

my ability to think to my impatient, misery/depression filled interaction with my family and friends, to writing and reading was affected by 
this PTSD fog. My frustration levels were extremely high. My family life was compromised to the point of my wife feeling as though she 
had an adult child in the house and my son didn't think I was very fun either! I was living in daily frustration with not being able to think 
clearly, sleeping on and off through out the day and generally, not having the capability to work or interact for very long with others. I was 
miserable. Kno\.\-ing who I was before the TBI/PTSD, yet dealing with what I had become was depressing. I simply couldn't get myself out 
of that hole the head injury had caused. 

Literally, during the first two Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy treatments, I found parts of my brain waking up and the fogginess becoming less 
intrusive. By the time I finished 80 treatments, I had rediscovered the ability to enjoy reading a book again for the first time in five years! 
Writing this simple statement would have taken me three or four hows before treatment but now, a matter of fifteen minutes. I have high 
hopes of working full time after my medical retirement from the Anny and most importantly, my wife and son still come up to me on 
occasion and just bug me •. They then mention how happy they are to have their husband and father back. I also found myself able to sleep "' 
again and feel refreshed! 

I still struggle with various issues, some cognitive and some physical, but I'm so very grateful that the Lord placed Dr. Harch in my path to 
recovery. Dr. Harch and his staff are some of the most dedicated, sincere and hard working medical professionals I've ever been treated by. 
The quality of life improvements I've seen since being treated by Dr. Harch have made the difference between an existence of sitting at 
home, too confused and frustrated to LIVE, and a life with hope, patience and most importantly, a reduction in the daily fog of brain injury. 
Hyperbaric oxygen therapy has helped me to find my motivation and desire for life again. Also, since I am able to process better, the 
following four months at the Shepherd Center were much more productive! 

For those who suffer with the fog and depression ofTBI/P'TSD, you will know how tremendously important those kinds gains are .. For the 
family members of those who suffer with this type of injury, the smiles and happiness from my wife and kids are testimony enough to know 
how much this treatment has given me back my life. God Bless ! !  
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On Tuesday, March 1 2 th, my son, Payton Rude, and I (Nicole Rude) had a chance to speak in 
favor of Bi l l  1 3 59  regarding the hyperbaric oxygen treatment (HBOT) . 

We are writing to continue to urge our support for B i l l  1 3 59  for the funding of hyperbaric 
oxygen treatment so that this treatment opportunity can continue to help more individuals 

with brain injuries in the future. 

Payton received ten treatments of hyperbaric treatments in early February. This has been the 
only thing that finally allowed Payton to feel himself again after nearly three years of  pain, 
therapies, and various appointments . This treatment alone has been a l ife changer for him ! 

Since receiving hyperbaric treatment, Payton is finally symptom-free from post-concussive 
syndrome. He has been able to perform in school, and complete all assignments and computer 
work l ike a normal student without the accommodation of his 504 education plan. He is fresh 
and alert in the morning and even has stamina to make it through the whole day. 

According to the Right Eye vis ion test, Payton's vis ion has had dramatic results in horizontal 
tracking (used for reading) from the 3 5%tile pre-treatment to the 95%tile one week after 
HBOT. His overall vision score was a 42, in the dysfunctional range, prior to H BOT. Three 
weeks after receiving treatments, Payton's  overall vis ion score was at an 80, which actually 
puts his vis ion in the exceptional range. Payton's vis ion scores have continued to show gains 
over the past month, telling us that his brain is continuing the healing process even after the 

hyperbaric treatment ended. However, Payton didn't need a test to tell us these results .  He 
knows his eyes are better because they finally "don't hurt" whi le reading. 

During our testimony, we shared that Payton had four concussions in  two years with MANY 
post-concussive symptoms. Some of these even included complications such as digestive 
issues, and a broken ankle and leg, which turned into a painful disorder call CRPS (Complex 
Regional Pain Syndrome) . In our testimony, we mentioned his medical costs have been 
reaching $ 1 00 ,000 in insurance expenses and also nearly $ 1 5 ,000  out of  pocket expenses. 
When considering the cost of HBOT to the cost of various other therapies, it only makes sense 
to use this as a first l ine of healing for concussions and inflammation on the brain versus the 

managing of concussion symptoms. 

Payton has missed a LOT of school over the past three years due to therapies and post
concussive symptoms, including five months in which he received homebound education 
services last school year. We outlined this during the testimony to help point out the expense 
of his brain injury to his education, in addition to the school district. 

Thank you for your time at the hearing and listening to us share our long journey to recovery, 
which lead us to finally finding hope and healing in hyperbaric oxygen treatment. 

Sincerely, 
Payton Rude ( 13  year old patient) 
Nicole Rude (mother from West Fargo) 
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Good morn i ng ,  Cha i rman Lee and members of the comm ittee . My name is 

Hannah Anderson from Leeds ,  N D .  I am here today, to testify in favor of 

House B i l l  1 359 , and to expla i n  how hyperbaric oxygen therapy has made 

a d ifference i n  my l ife . 

On November 1 2 , 2007 ,  I was i n  a nearly fatal car accident ,  where I 

suffered a traumatic bra in  inj u ry a long with other  i nj u ries .  After 3 months i n  

d ifferent hospita ls ,  I re learned how to breath aga in  on my  own , without the 

use of any mach ines ,  I a lso learned how to ta l k ,  and how to wa lk  on my 

• 
own . My traumatic bra in  i nju ry, however, left me with issues that I have 

strugg led with da i ly for the past 1 1  years .  My short term memory is very 

poor, I am ti red a l l  the t ime and just getti ng th rough the day is exhausti ng . 

suffer with headaches every day and am on med ications to he lp me get 

th rough the day and then take med ications to hel p me s leep at n ight .  I am 

eas i ly overwhelmed i n  large g roups of  people and strugg le to fol low 

conversations .  I become i rritated when th is happens .  

• 

Due to the great support that I had , I was ab le to g raduate h igh  school and 

even got my Associate Degree from Tri n ity B i ble Col lege i n  E l lenda le , N D .  

I a m  cu rrently worki ng part time at the M i nnewaukan Pub l ic School a s  a 

paraprofessional and l iv ing at home with my parents . 

1 



H8 130 
3 /1J- / 1q 

::#� fJ · a 
My mom heard of other bra in i nj u ry survivors do ing Hyperbaric Oxygen 

Therapy i n  Fargo ,  so she started do ing research on it .  We decided , as a 

fami ly, that it m ight be a good th ing  for me to try. I was wi l l i ng to try almost 

anyth i ng that wou ld  he lp get rid of the headaches that I had every day. We 

were not sure if H BOT would do anyth ing for me because it had been 1 1  

years s ince my traumatic bra in  i nj u ry. We were not g iven any prom ises , or  

any fa lse hopes.  

HBOT tu rned out to be the best th ing I cou ld  have done .  On day one,  I was 

ti red from my sess ions ,  just l i ke they said that I m ight be . On Day 3 ,  

halfway th rough the treatments ,  I fe lt as i f  my bra in  fog was l ifti ng . I thought 

bra in  fog was someth ing I wou ld have to l ive with the rest of my l ife . I t  was 

also i nteresti ng to me that the headaches were much less severe than I 

had previously had . Also after the 3rd day, or  6 treatments ,  I was ab le to go 

out to supper with 5 other people .  At that supper, I was ab le to concentrate 

on the men u and choose my own meal . I was ab le to keep up  with the 

conversat ion the enti re even ing and accord i ng  to my mom , I responded 

appropriately to questions th roughout the even ing .  By the t ime I was 

fi n ished with my 1 0  treatments in 5 days ,  I fe lt l i ke my bra in  i nj u ry a lmost 

d idn 't exist. 

I t  was 9 weeks ago that I was in Fargo ,  havi ng  H BOT treatments .  I went to 

work the fo l lowing Monday, and d i dn ' t  become overwhe lmed with 

everyth ing that was going on at the school , and al l the kids that needed 

help .  I have not had  any  m igrai nes over the last 9 weeks , wh ich is so 
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amazi ng .  I have more energy than I have had i n  1 1  years .  I wish I cou ld 

have had th is treatment a long time ago,  because the sooner I wou ld have 

tried th is therapy post i nj u ry, the sooner I cou ld  have fe lt less exhausted 

and had fewer headaches . I used to just d rag through each 4 hou r sh ift and 

come home exhausted . These last 9 weeks at  work have actua l ly been fun 

because of the amount of energy I 've had .  

Than k  you for you r  time and you r  cons ideration of House B i l l  1 359 . I f  you 

have any questions,  I wi l l  be happy to try and answer them for you .  

Hannah Anderson 

608 1 58th Ave N E  

Leeds ,  N D  58346 

70 1 -35 1 -6747 (ce l l )  

70 1 -466-256 1 (home) 
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Good morn ing ,  Cha i rman Lee and  members of the committee.  My name is Lisa 

Anderson from Leeds ,  N D .  I am here today, to testify in  favor of House B i l l  1 359 ,  and 

expla in  why I support th is b i l l .  

You heard my daughter, Hannah 's story, and how Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy made a 

d ifference i n  her l ife . I t  is  my bel ief that H BOT has made a tremendous d ifference i n  the 

qual ity of Hannah's l ife . I t  helped her to focus better, it has hel ped her balance and it 

has helped with her fatigue .  We are amazed at the d ifference 1 0  Hyperbaric Oxygen 

Treatments made for Hannah .  

Hannah 's insurance company has pa id  over ha l f  a m i l l ion do l lars i n  benefits s ince 2007 ,  

for Hannah 's med ica l  expenses. Hannah 's father and I have pa id  over $ 50 ,000 out  of 

pocket s ince 2007,  for Hannah 's medical expenses. It is my fi rm bel ief that if Hannah 

had received H BOT years ago,  not on ly wou ld everyone have saved thousands of 

dol la rs ,  but Hannah 's qua l ity of l ife wou ld have been so much better. These figu res do 

not i nc lude food , motel or m i leage for any of  the med ical tri ps that we have made with 

Hannah . 

I n  closi ng ,  I wou ld l i ke to thank you for your  t ime,  and for your  thoughtfu l consideration 

of HB  1 359. H BOT can make a huge d ifference i n  the l ife of a bra in  inj u ry survivor. 

Please vote i n  favor of th is p i lot program for bra in  i nj u ry survivors .  Not on ly wi l l  it 

potentia l ly  save the State of ND money, it wil l g ive bra in  i nj u ry survivors a better qua l ity 

of l ife . I f  you have any questions for me,  I wi l l  be happy to try and answer them . You 

can reach me at: Lisa Anderson 

608 1 58th Ave N E  

Leeds ,  N D  58346 

70 1 -739-69 1 2  (ce l l )  

70 1 -466-256 1 (home) 

l isa .anderson@gondtc .com 



I am read ing th i s  with the permiss ion of Bruce A. Hendrickson of K indred, ND .  I n  h i s  words, th i s  is a true-l ife 
experience with a happy end i ng. 

The knowledgeab le and p rofess iona l  staff at Hea l i ng  with Hyperba r ics of North Da kota a re eager to ass i st you a nd  
very he lpfu l .  They answer questions and concerns you  may  have and  he l p  t o  determ i ne  if hyperbar ics is r ight for 
you .  I know fi rsthand and  am sharing my experi ence with you as a l iv ing test imony.  Hyperba rics is s imp le  and  
effective. I t  i s  safe and the qu ick resu lts give why to  what  is true .  

On Janua ry 24th, 2017 I bumped my head and thought, "that w i l l  l eave a mark ! "  Th is was not the fi rst t ime, but it 
tu rned out to be the begi nn i ng of a long road to recovery. The emergency room was u n ab le  to detect a concuss ion 
and sent me home to treat sh i ngles. I was to ld that if  you r  body goes through tra u ma,  sh i ngles may occu r . I n  my 
case, the l acerat ion on the u pper left s ide of my sku l l  was the sta rt ing p lace for the sh i ng les to activate. They 
spread across the upper left s ide of my face, swe l l i ng  my l eft eye tota l ly  shut .  The comb inat ion of the concuss ion 
and sh i ngles left me  i n  u nbearab le  pa in .  

S i x  months l a te r  I was stu mb l i ng and confused . The hospita l to ld  me I had  post-concuss ion syndrome.  Therap ists 
worked with me and  taught me a new way to conduct my l i fe .  They sa id "write down everyth ing .  Take deep 
breaths, s low down and learn to accept th is .  I t  is  a long process with no guara ntee of return ing  to you r o ld  self. 
Accept you r  new norma l  and  be happy." Because of the amount of t ime that had  passed I was encou raged to app ly  
for d i sab i l ity for i ncome .  That  was not go ing to happen .  I was  57 yea rs o ld and  loved my work .  I wanted to fi nd  my 
OLD self. 

A close friend sha red informat ion about the new hyperba rics c l i n i c  i n  Fargo. Two weeks later I made the ca l l  for a n  
appointment .  I exp l a i ned my s ituat ion and asked a l o t  o f  quest ions .  I to ld t h em  how my cu rrent s i tuat ion h ad  me  
fee l i ng he lp less and  hope less. I was  encouraged to come i n  for a few treatments and  see how I fe lt .  

On August 20, 2018 I had my fi rst treatment. The 30-m i l e  r ide home after my fi rst treatment was b reath of fresh 
a i r !  I noticed a huge d ifference in my right eye .  I cou l d  see as fa r as the eye can take you .  Next, I turned my head 
for to the left with ease .  I had  comp lete range of motion with no d iscomfort. I was comp l et ing a ser ies of thoughts 
in a row. The th ing I had missed most was happen ing. That n ight I was i n  less pa i n  from my yea r and a ha lf head 
ache .  

I have had a tota l of 16 treatments and  had not had  a headache i n  6 months .  My tra i n  of thought i s  very near 
before the i nj u ry .  

A lthough insurance w i l l  not cover hyperbaric treatment, I be l ieve it shou ld .  Time  w i l l  te l l ,  for me, but  do l lar  for 
do l l a r, it was worth every cent. As for the hospita l  and  the money spent by me and  ou r  hea l th i n su rance, I wou l d  
sti l l  be paying with l i tt le or  no progress to  show for i t .  

Had  I had a treatment sooner after my i njury, I may have not even needed more than the 1st 5 treatments. 

P lease investigate hyperba rics for you rself. I t cou l d  be you or  a c lose friend who needs it .  The treatments are safe, 
fu n with the movies and  the best bang for you r  buck. 

Let Hea l i ng  with Hyperbar ics of ND  and their fri end ly, profess iona l  staff put YOU back i n  control of your own l ife . 

S incere ly, 

Bruce A. Hendrickson 



Senate Human Services - HB 1 359 - March 1 2, 2019 

Good morning , Chai rman Judy Lee and members of the committee. 

My name is Lynne Ostrem from Rugby, ND .  I am in support and in  favor of House B i l l  1 359 , 
and wi l l  explain why I support this b i l l .  

My son is David Folden. David was finishing up Chiropractic Schoo l  in Iowa when he 
susta ined a traumatic brain injury in November 201 1 .  We were to ld David would not survive, 
and if he d id ,  the prognosis was grim ;  he would be wheelcha i r  bound and unresponsive. 
David overcame those odds and learned how to eat, ta l k  and walk  again. David and his 
fami ly returned to North Dakota in August 20 1 2 . I can't even beg in to come up with a do l lar 
amount that has been spent for med ical care, out of pocket expense, and lost wages of fami ly 
members that provide informal support for David since November 20 1 1 .  

David continues to strugg le with the long term side effects of traumatic brain injury; which 
include persistent headaches, seizures, short term memory deficits, and mood swings. In 
add ition to his prescribed medications, David was taking Tyleno l or I buprofen every 4 hours 
dai ly and even with that, some days he sti l l  had a "sl ight headache" . David 's last labs showed 
elevated l iver and kidney levels which his Primary Care sa id is probably due to the Tylenol 
and I buprofen, but we did not want to introduce narcotics for pa in. 

David started doing Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy in Fargo in mid/late December. After his 4 th 

treatment he asked me, "Do you think I 'm getting better?" I asked him what he thought. 
David 's response was, "My headaches are not as bad and I feel l i ke my brain is so much 
clearer. " David being able to verba l ize and notice an improvement was enough for me to 
want to continue treatments for David and tel l others of how it helped David . 

So far, David has had a tota l of 7 treatments and no longer compla ins of headaches. There 
are other improvements I have witnessed : 
1 . ) David can now set a timer and remembers what the timer was for - he doesn't need to 

write a note as a reminder what the timer was for. 
2 . )  David is more relaxed and content - which is unusual for a fronta l lobe brain injury. 

David recently attended a meeting with me. He was walking up to people he d idn't know 
and initiating conversation - he usual ly iso lated h imself and was on his phone/iPad . 

3 . )  When he finishes a task he wi l l  seek me out and let me know he is done and asks what he 
can do to help next. 

4 . )  The amount of time needed to remember things in the short term has reduced . Previously, 
we would sti l l  have dry erase boards up for months rem ind ing him it was a new year. 

5 . )  H is careg ivers have noticed an improvement in memory and mood - they d idn't know he 
was doing HBOT. 

In closing , I appreciate your time and your consideration of HB 1 359. I bel ieve HBOT can 
make a d ifference in the l ife of a bra in injury survivor. I have a l ready seen the positive effects 
for my son. Improvements for survivors would have a multitude of ripple effects for fam i ly 
members, potential future med ical costs but the most important item is a l lowing our ND Bra in 
Injury Survivors a better qual ity of l ife. Please vote in favor of H B 1 359. 
If you have any questions for me, I wi l l  be happy to try and answer them . 

Lynne Ostrem 
5693 Hwy. 3 South 
Rugby, ND  
701 -208- 1 05 1 
ostrich@gondtc .com 



NDLA, S HMS  - Velez, Justin 

Lee, Judy E .  
Wed nesday, Ma rch 13 ,  2019  2 : 19  PM  

To: -G rp -NOLA Senate Human Services; N O LA, S H M S  - Velez, J u st in ;  N OLA, Intern 02 -
Ca rthew, A lexa nd ra 

Subject: FW: H B  1359 

I nfo from Rebecca Qu i n n, the  b ra i n  i nj u ry expert from the Center for Ru ra l  Hea lt h  

Senator J udy Lee 
1822 B rentwood Cou rt 
West Fa rgo, N D  58078 
home phone :  701-282-65 12 
e-ma i l :  j l ee@nd .gov 

-----O rigi n a l  Message-----
F ro m :  J udy Lee <judy lee 1822@gma i l . com> 
Sent :  Wed nesday, M a rch  13,  2019 2 : 17 PM 
To : Lee, J udy E .  <j lee@nd .gov> 
Subject :  FW: HB 1359 

* * * * *  CAUTION :  Th is  ema i l  o rig i nated from an  outs ide sou rce .  Do not c l i ck  l i n ks o r  open attachments un l ess you know 
a re safe . * * * * *  

-----O rigi n a l  Message-----
Fro m :  Qu i nn, Rebecca < rebecca . q u i n n@und .edu> 
Sent :  Wed nesday, M a rch  13,  2019 9 : 57 AM 
To : J udy Lee <j udy lee1822@gma i l . com> 
Subject :  Re : HB 1359 

Senator Lee, 

F i rst, let me say tha n k  you fo r the b ra i n  i nj u ry defi n it ion b i l l .  I l i ke to be l ieve somewhere J u n e  i s  sm i l i ng down p leased 
that  we cou ld  fi n a l ly fix i t .  

I n  rega rds to the hype rba ric, t he  offic ia l sta nce from the med i ca l  school  a nd the  adviso ry cou nc i l  it that there is 
i n suffic ient sc ientif ic ev idence to s uppo rt i t .  Curre nt ly, no othe r  states a re fu nd i ng it a s  a treatment and there i s  ve ry 
l im ited sc ie nt ific evidence .  A lmost a l l  of the eviden ce is a necdota l a nd  done  by a few promote rs/resea rchers .  I 
pe rsona l ly have concerns rega rd ing  state fu nds go ing to support ing th i s  type of i ndependent resea rch and  a bout the 
methods of how i nd iv id ua l s  wi l l  be screened, se lected, and  supported d u ring  the  p rocess .  

With the med ic i n a l  ma rij uana ,  I was a b l e  to point to the n umbe r  of states that  a l low it and it is not fo r the state to pay 
fo r the treatment, o n ly a l lowing it to happen .  I fee l  the hype rba ric d i ffe rs i n  not hav ing other  states precedent and  

i ng  state app rop riated do l l a rs to  fu nd t he  treatment .  

ase let me know if you have a ny other  q uestion s .  

1 



Rebecca Qu i nn  

> On Ma r  12 ,  2019, at 10 : 17 AM ,  J udy Lee <j udylee 1822@gma i l . com> wrote : 
> 
> Th is b i l l  p romotes the hyperba r ic c hambe r  a s  t reatment fo r b ra i n  i nj u ries .  
What a re you r  com ments a bout  th i s?  
> 
> J udy Lee 
> 1822 Brentwood Cou rt 
> West Fa rgo, N D  58078 
> Phone :  701-282-6512 
> Ce l l :  701-238-153 1 
> e-ma i l :  j udy lee1822 @gma i l . com 
> 
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pat traynor < ptraynor@dakmed .org > 
Thu rsday, Ma rch 1 4, 20 1 9  1 1  : 52  AM 
Lee, J udy  E .  

Subject: HB 1 3 59 

Fol low Up Flag: 
F lag Status: 

Fo l low u p  
Completed 

CAUTION:  Th i s  ema i l  or ig i n a ted  from an outs ide sou rce .  Do not c l i ck  l i n ks or open  atta chments u n less you know they 
a re safe .  

I wanted you t o  s e e  t h i s .  Tha n ks for a l l  you do fo r others J udy ! Pat 

Sent  from my i P ad  

Beg i n  forwa rded m essage : 

From: Da phne  Denh am  <denham2468@gma i l . com> 
Date : M a rch  14,  2019 at  11 :02 :39 AM CDT 
To: pat t raynor  <ptraynor@da kmed .org> 
Subject: H B  1359 

Pat, 

Tha n k  you fo r you r  h e l p  with H B  1359 .  There were some  th i ngs that  cam e  u p  at  t he  com m ittee meet ing 
that I fee l  I s hou l d  c l a r ify and fu rther  a rt icu late what we a re t ry ing to a ccom p l i s h .  

We know hyperba r ic works. The  O lympic  cyc l ist who  com m itted su ic ide 2 months  after a concuss ion 
has t roub led  me great ly .  She cou ld  be my 23-yea r-o l d  grad uate student who i s  an ove rach ieving ath lete 
that  wou l d  not be  h a p py not be ing a b le to overach ieve . But we ca n TREAT that, that  i s  what D M F  
he l ped us  show.  

I am not s u re that  I made c lea r that what DMF he l ped with was the p i lot o n  ACUTE o r  "fresh" 
concuss ion s  fo r student ath letes .  By defi n it ion a concuss io n i s  a M I LD t ra umat ic  b ra i n  i nj u ry with a 
G la sgow Coma Sca l e  of 13 o r  better . . . . the "wa l k ie  ta l k ies" a s  we say. Pr ior  to my treat i ng these acute 
concuss io n s  in No rt hb rook, I L, there was no p rotoco l .  I took an ex ist i ng  p rotoco l a n d  deve loped what 
we use today, w ith  my knowledge of infl ammat ion of the bra i n .  I funded th i s  acute concuss ion p rotoco l 
deve lopment  from my c l i n ic a nd D M F  ass isted with fu rther  d eve lopment with the  R ightEye . The 
R ightEye test was recent ly FDA a pproved as a test fo r concuss ions .  I t  i s  an objective measure 
demonstrat ing the  effects of the treatment of the concuss ion after H BO .  No  one  e l se i s  do ing  what we 
a re do i ng, a n d  we now have 8 months of data us ing th i s  device . To date we have treated more than  300 
acute concuss ion s, 104 under  DMF  with RightEye data a nd  th i s  data i s  i nc red ib l e .  

What  HB  1359 seeks  to fu nd i s  a p i lot fo r MODERATE TO SEVERE  tra umat ic b ra i n  i nj u ry, defi ned as  a 
G l a sgow Coma Sca re of 12 or  less .  Any p i lot pa rt ic ipa nt/pat ient needs  the  GCS of 12  o r  less documented 
at  a ny t ime  in t he i r  h i sto ry, from a nother  physic i a n .  We do not have m uch data on th i s  group, ce rta i n ly 
not enough to a p p ly fo r a gra nt .  What we do have,  that no one  e l se h a s, i s  my p rotocol fo r th is  group  of 
pat ients .  Aga i n ,  I took a sta nda rd protoco l ,  a p p l i ed  what I know from b ra i n  i n fl ammat ion ,  a nd  have 
cha nged it .  We have t reated on ly a few patie nts who wou ld  be c la ss ified  i n  th i s  mo re seve re catego ry, 
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a nd they ca me  t o  t he  com m ittee hea r ing to pass ionate ly te l l  t he i r  sto ry. Afte r H BO t reatment  they have -Jt I ftj,J.. 
retu rned to a m uch  mo re norma l  l ife with no more headaches a nd m uch  imp roved cogn it ion and  
ene rgy. The com m ittee heard from Hannah  Anderson a n d  Payton Rude .  

We p l an  to have U N O  i nvo lved a nd ga i n  the i r  a pp rova l fo r the scope a n d  des i gn  of the  p i lot .  Th i s  w i l l  
e n su re we have c red i b l e  data  fo r futu re grants .  The money from H B  1359 w i l l  o n ly fu nd  treatments .  No 
add it io n a l  fu n d i ng fo r the test ing, for a research person etc. We a re t ry ing to keep the  ask to on ly fu nd 
the t reatments .  I t  i s  j u st a p lus  that we p l an  to u se it to get p rivate i n su ra nce compan ie s  to see the 
benefit to then p ick up the  p i lot, j ust a s  we a re do i ng with the acute concuss ions .  

B ig p i ct u re, we a re ask ing that North  Da kota fu nd  treatments .  We then wi l l  u se the d ata we col lect as  a 
resu l t  of t hese t rea tments to demonstrate to p rivate i n su ra nce com pa n ies  that  it i s  cost-effect ive fo r 
them to ta ke a mo re p ro-act ive treatment approach for moderate to seve re head i nj u ries  us i ng 
hype rba r ic oxygen .  

I wou l d  l i ke t o  c l a r ify m y  expe r ience i n  research a s  a phys ic ia n .  I a m  we l l - pub l i shed i n  not  on ly 
cyto k i ne/ infl a m matory ma rker resea rch, but a l so i n  a cost-effective study that  cha nged the  sta ndard of 
ca re fo r pa rathyro id  s u rge ry .  Amaz i ng ly, what I a m  do ing fo r b ra i n  i nj u ries  is a u n i q ue  comb i nat ion of 
these two . With H B  1359 North  Da kota has a rea l opportun ity to lead the nat ion to cha nge the sta ndard 
of ca re fo r moderate to seve re bra i n  i nju ries, someth ing that  is long ove rd ue,  a nd fo r those who a re 
su ic ida l , we have a n  o pportun ity to show them we ca n make them bette r . 

H appy to d iscuss fu rthe r  at a nyt ime .  

Da phne  

Dap h n e  W.  Den h am ,  MD FACS FACCWS 

Healing with Hyperbarics of North Dakota, PLLC 

4487 Ca l ico D rive South, Su ite B 

Fa rgo, N D  58104 

(701)  532-2426 

(701) 532-2427 fax 
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Qu i nn, Rebecca < rebecca .q u i n n@u nd .ed u >  
Thu rsday, Ma rch 1 4, 20 1 9  9:38 AM 
Lee, Judy E .  

Subject: Re: HB 1 359 

CAUTION :  Th i s  ema i l  or ig i nated from a n  outs ide sou rce . Do not  c l ick l i n ks o r  open  atta chments u n less you know they 
a re safe .  

Senator  Lee, 

To p rov ide c l a rif icat ion ,  the e m a i l  was from Representat ive Ne l so n  to me expre ss i ng h i s  d isa ppo i ntment with me fo r my 
ro le  in the  b i l l  fa i l i ng .  I was s im p ly  lett ing D r. Wynne know so he  cou l d  be awa re of Rep N e lson ' s  concerns .  

Tha n k  you fo r p rovid i ng  the a dd it ion a l  i nfo rmat ion .  I a l so fee l  that the  treatment i s  p rom is ing a nd look fo rwa rd to future 
o utcomes .  To move from a p ro m is ing practice to evidence based is a h a rd step a nd I t h i n k  it wonderfu l that D M F  i s  
work ing with t hem .  I a l so wou l d  be more than  happy to he l p  i n  i dent ify ing othe r  fu nd i ng opportu n it ies and ass ist i n  a ny 
o ngo ing support of t he i r  goa l s .  

Tha n k  you,  

Rebecca Qu i n n  

• 

M a r  13,  2019, at 9 :54 PM ,  Lee, J udy E . <j lee@nd .gov> wrote : 

I ' d  be h a p py to exp l a i n .  Jon  Ne lson had noth i ng to do with it fa i l i ng .  N e ithe r  d i d  I .  

The p resentat ion w a s  conv inc ing a bout the im pact o f  the treatments fo r b ra i n  i nj u r ies .  Howeve r, Dr .  
Den h a m  a ppa re nt ly has data,  but has  not done a nyth i ng  to o rga n ize it so that it ca n be p resented as  a ny 
k ind  of g ra nt  a p p l icat i on .  

A lso,  the tobacco fu n d  from wh i ch  the money was  supposed to  come,  a cco rd i ng to  the b i l l , i s  a l ready 
$241,000 in the  ho le beca use of requests, so the fu nd i ng i s  not ava i la b le  t he re .  

Da kota M ed ica l Foundat ion i s  supportive o f  h e r  effo rt, tha n ks to a donat ion from Ga ry Tha ra ldson, 
which i s  g reat ! I s poke with Pat Traynor, head of DMF, th is morn ing, a nd he  i s  enth us iast ic a bout the 
p roject a l so .  We d iscussed the cha l le nges, a nd he is go ing to ass i st Dr .  Den h a m  i n  a ssem b l i ng her data 
to m a ke it u sefu l and a l so proba bly ass ist with preparat ion of gra nt a pp l icat ions .  

Wh i l e  we were d iscuss ing i t  i n  the comm ittee, a n  obse rve r checked on l i ne  a nd found  at  l east 6 potent ia l 
gra ntors wh i ch  wou l d  be l i ke ly p laces for such a request to be d i rected .  Th i s  i s  a popu l a r  top ic r ight 
now, beca use of a l l  of the concerns a bout concuss ions  from sports i nj u ries  as we l l  as othe r  ca uses. The 
com m ittee i s  opt im i st ic that there wi l l  be add it iona l  sou rces of fund i ng .  

But  one  of the  b iggest facto rs i s  that the state of ND ca n not be d i rect ly fu nd i ng resea rch ,  especia l ly 
when ,  at th i s  po i nt, it does not meet the req u i rements of a ny a pp l icat ion fo r gra nts . The leg is lature 
may  a pprop riate money to the 2 resea rch u n ive rs it ies, a nd  then  the  a pp l icat ion ,  if p rope rly prepa red, 
ca n be p resented to UN D's Cente r  fo r Rura l  Hea lth or  the Med ica l School ,  fo r exa m p le ,  when they a re 
cons ider ing resea rch poss i b i l it ies .  
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We want  he r  p roject to succeed, and  the people who testified i n  its favo r were very conv inc i ng.  But it is 
i n app ropriate gove rna nce fo r the state to d i rectly support such p rojects . The p rotoco l fo r gra nt 
app l icat ion s  is , as I u n de rsta nd ,  pretty cons istent from one gra ntor to a nothe r, a nd a l l  req u i re certa i n  
documentat ion .  When  that  i s  ava i l a b le ,  there w i l l  be opportun it ies fo r he r  to receive fu nd i ng, we a re 
confident .  

I n  the  mea nt ime ,  h e r  t reatments a re not  terr ib ly expens ive, a nd p rivate pay pat ie nts ca n cont i nue  to 
have treatments .  

I t  was i nte rest i ng  to me that eve ry other  comm ittee membe r  q u iet ly came  up to me  afte r the hearing 
a nd i n d iv id u a l ly expressed h is or  her  rese rvations .  Each of us  thought we were the o n ly o nes, and we a l l  
h a d  t h e  sam e  concerns .  T h e  end  does not justify t h e  mea ns, a n d  there w i l l  be othe r  routes to success. 

J udy Lee 
1822 B rentwood Cou rt 
West Fa rgo, N D  58078 
Phone :  701-282-6512 
e-ma i l :  jlee@nd .gov 

O n  M a r  13 ,  2019,  a t  5 :00 PM,  Qu i n n, Rebecca < rebecca .qu i n n@und . edu>  wrote : 

CAUTION :  Th is  ema i l  or ig inated from a n  outs ide sou rce . Do not c l ick l i n ks o r  open 
attachments u n less you know they a re safe .  

So rry, I fo rwa rded t h i s  t o  you .  I meant t o  send  i t  t o  J udy So l be rg s o  she  cou l d  u pdate Dr. 
Wyn ne .  

Rebecca Qu i n n  

Beg i n  fo rwa rded message : 

From:  " Ne lson, Jon  O . "  <jone l son@nd .gov> 
Date : M a rch 13, 2019 at 1 :58 : 12 PM CDT 
To: Rebecca Qu i n n  < rebecca .qu i n n@med . u nd .edu> 
Subject: HB1359 

Rebecca : I am try ing to find  out why the Senate H uman  Services 
Com m ittee voted to g ive H B1359 a Do Not Pass recommendat io n .  I h ea r  
you o ppose t he  b i l l  a nd  had  some i n fl uence on  t ha t  dec is ion .  I f  true,  I 
a m  VERY d isa ppo inted to hear  th i s .  Severa l of my const i tuents fee l  th i s  
treatment has  given the i r  loved ones  the most success they  ca n 
remembe r  and  Rep .  Anderson has  spent a great dea l  of t ime a n d  ene rgy 
o n  th i s  effort . He  has  been a great s uppo rter of Bra i n  I nj u ry a s  we l l  i n  
the  past .  P lease respond with you r  op i n i on .  

Jon  

Sent  from my i Phone  
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Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

l+B 13')'"1 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO 3/ t'-! /I q 
REEN GROSSED HOUSE BILL NO.  1359 4f 3 fJ · ) 

Representatives D. Anderson , Mock, Schauer , Schneider 

Senators Burckhard, Kreun, Robinson 

0--l �e;1 e, h f tc,j e cJ 

1 A BILL for an Act to provide for a hyperbaric oxygen therapy p�m; to provide an 

2 appropriation; and to pF0'v'ide for a report to tho legislative n ,anagemont _ 

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

4 SECTION 1.  APPROPRIATION HYPERBARIC OXYGEN THERAPY PILOT PROGRAM 

5 REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT. 

6 
7 
8 
g 

10 
11  
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

1 .  There is appropriated out of any moneys in the tobacco prevention and control trust 

fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $335,000, or so 

much of the sum as may be necessary, to the state department of health for the 

purpose of contracting •,vith a third party to implement a hyperbaric oxygen therapy 

pilot program, for the biennium beginning July 1 ,  2019, and ending June 30, 2021 . 

2. The department shall contract with a local nonprofit entity with experience 

implementing studies using hyperbaric oxygen for traumatic brain injuries to conduct a 

pilot program for treatment of moderate to se\•erely brain injured North Dakotans using 

an established protocol of hyperbaric oxygen therapy provided by a private entitywith 

experience in treating traumatic brain injury using medical grade hyperbaric chambers 

pressurized with one hundred percent oxygen. The goals of the study include 

demonstrating improvement in brain eye function using RightEye , significant 

improvement in quality of life of injured patients, significant improvement in cogniti'.ie 

abilities of injured patients, and financial savings and increased revenues for the state , 

including possible savings for medical assistance and workers' compensation and a 

positive impact on income tax revenues. The pilot program design must be established 

in consultation with a third party physician. 
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3. During the 2019 21 biennium, the department shall make periodic reports to the 

legislative management on the status of the pilot program and whether the goals are 

being realized. 

SECTION 1. UNIVERSITY OF NORTH DAKOTA SCHOOL OF MEDICINE AND 

HEAL TH SCIENCES - HYPERBARIC OXYGEN THERAPY STUDY. During the 201 9-

2 1  b iennium, the university of North Dakota school of medicine and health sciences 

may design and implement a study of the efficacy of hyperbaric oxygen therapy in 

treat ing brain injuries . 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION -HYPERBARIC OXYGEN THERAPY STUDY -

MATCHING FUNDS. There is appropriated out of the general fund in the state treasury , 

not otherwise appropriated , the sum of $1 00,000, or so much of the sum as may be 

necessary , to the university of North Dakota school of medic ine and health sciences for 

a study of hyperbaric oxygen therapy , for the biennium beginning July 1 ,  201 9 ,  and 

ending June 30, 202 1 .  The funds appropriated in this sect ion may be spent only to the r-ec, e� 
extent the university of North Dakota school of medicine and health sciences p�es 

two dollars of matching funds from nonstate sources for each one dollar provided from 

the general fund. 
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NDLA, Intern 09 - O 'Nei l l ,  Seth 

From: Roers, Kr isti n 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

Thu rsday, Apri l 1 1, 2019 3 : 1 5  PM 
N D LA, Intern 09 - O 'Ne i l l , Seth 
Fwd : Specia l l aws 

Krist in  Roe rs, BSN, RN 

Begin fo rwa rded message : 

From: " Lee, J udy E . "  <jlee@nd .gov> 
Date : Apr i l  2, 2019 at 4:49 :38 PM CDT 
To: -G rp-NDLA Senate Human  Services < nd lash umserv@nd .gov>, " N D LA, S HMS  - Velez, J ust i n "  
<shms@nd .gov>, " N DLA, I ntern 02 - Ca rthew, Alexa nd ra "  < i n tern2@nd .gov> 
Cc: "Wa rd ner, Rich P." < rwa rd ner@nd.gov>, " Raymon Ho lmberg ( ho lmbergfo rsenate@gma i l . com ) "  
<ho lm be rgfo rsenate@gma i l . com> 
Subject: FW: Special laws 

I had  d iscussed the  hyperba r ic i ssue with John  Bjornson today, a n d  h e  h ad  Chr i s  Joseph put 

together  the informat ion be low about the  "speci a l  l aws" sect ion of the  Con st itut ion wh ich 

wou l d  l i ke ly  be a n  imped iment to d i rect ly fu nd i ng  Dr .  Daph ne  Den ham and he r  b ra i n  i nj u ry 

p rogram .  

The App rop riat ions  Comm ittee w i l l  see t h e  or ig i n a l  l a nguage i n  2012 now, beca use they have 

been movi ng it a round  in the  House .  

Senator J udy Lee 
1822 Brentwood Cou rt 
West Fa rgo, ND  58078 
home phone :  701-282-65 12 
e-ma i l :  j lee@nd .gov 

From:  Joseph,  Ch ristopher  
Sent: Tuesday, Apr i l  2 ,  2019 4 :36 PM 
To: Lee, J udy E . <jlee@nd .gov> 
Subject: Specia l  l aws 

Good afternoon Senator Lee, 

Th is ema i l  i s  in response to you r  i nqu i ry rega rd ing loca l or  speci a l  laws in reference to House B i l l  No .  
1359 .  Art ic le IV ,  Sect ion 13, of the Const i tut ion of North Da kota p roh i b i ts the Legis lat ive Assemb ly from 
enact ing a loca l o r  specia l law a nd from i nd i rectly enact ing a loca l o r  specia l l aw by the pa rt i a l  repea l  of a 
genera l  l aw.  

The lega l defi n it ion of a loca l o r  spec ia l  l aw is :  "a law that a pp l ies to a pa rt icu l a r  p l ace or especia l ly  to a 
part icu la r member or  members of a c lass of pe rsons or th i ngs i n  the  same s i tuat ion but not to the ent i re 
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class and  that is unconst itut iona l  if the c la ss ificat io n made is a rb itra ry o r  without a reasonab le  or 
legit imate just ificat ion or  bas is ." 

The North Dakota Supreme Cou rt has he ld  that a specia l l aw is one wh ich re l ates o n ly to part icu lar  
persons o r  th ings of a c la ss, a s  d ist ingu ished from a genera l  l aw that a pp l i e s  to a l l  t h i ngs or  pe rsons of a 
c lass .  The Supreme Cou rt has  he ld the test fo r a spec i a l  l aw is not what the law inc ludes, but what t he  
l aw  exc ludes, a nd  t he  cou rts l ook  to  see whether a statute exc ludes a ny wit h i n  t he  c lass to  wh ich the  
law app l ies .  

Although the North Da kota Supreme Cou rt has  cons idered cha l l enges to leg is lat ion based on  the loca l 
l aw proh i b it ion, case law ind icates it is d ifficu l t  to p reva i l  on  those cha l l enges .  

I f  you need add it iona l  i nfo rmat ion or  have a ny q uestions, p lease do not hesitate to contact our office . 

S incere ly, 

Ch ristopher S. Joseph 
Lega l  Cou nse l  
North Da kota Leg is lative Cou nc i l  
600 East Bou l eva rd Ave 
B i smarck,  N D  58505  
( 70 1 )  3 28-29 1 6  
cjoseph@nd .gov 
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